Faith
Experience
Innovation
Growth

ANNUAL
REPORT 2025

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited

Manufacturers of Medical [ Industrial Gases & Chemicals



:

L
| Rre—

& 5 L

™ X -t-l L

L

COMPANY DVERVIEW
Corporate Information

Vision & Mission

Corporate Social Responsibilities
SHEQ

Customers Satisfaction

Brief History

Customer Segments

Products & Services

11 Core Values

12  Geographical Presence

13  Memberships/Certifications

SEISFTEER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
14 Financial Highlight
25 Pattern of Shareholding

30 Auditor’s Review Report to the Members
31 Statement of Compliance

NOTICE & DIRECTORS REPORT

15 Notice of Annual General Meeting
29 Chairman’s Review

34 Director's Report

45 Director’'s Report in Urdu

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
46  Auditor’s Report

52  Statement of Financial Position

53  Statement of Profit or Loss

54 Statement of Changes in Equity

55  Statement of Cash Flow

56 Notes to the Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i 109 Auditor's Report
- 114 Financial Statements
=

172 Form of Proxy (In English & Urdu)

%

Annual Report 2025




CORPORATE INFORMATION
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& VISION

& Ghani Chemical Industries Limited is committed to quality, service, value and honesty, with dedication to
provide the very best products of glass and to serve the health care industry particularly and greater
community at large.

% Ghani Chemical Industries Limited believes in faith, experience, innovation and growth, and will strive to
strengthen all employees, customers and business peers.

& Ghani Chemical Industries Limited always seek to cultivate trust and reputation in all business
relationships, both large and small.

MISSION (®

* Ghani Chemical Industries Limited strive to achieve market leadership through technological edge,
distinguished by quality and customer satisfaction, and emphasis on employee’s welfare and ensure
adequate return to shareholders.

% GCIL further wish to contribute to the development of healthcare, Environment, economy and country
through harmonized endeavor.
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CORPORATE
SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

As CorRPORATE CITIZEN, WE/GCIL.!
@

Ensure that the business values and policies are aligned in such a way that it strikes a balance between
improving and developing the weaith of business and contributing for betterment of society in an effective
manner.

Endeavor to assume an even greater responsibility towards our society and stakeholders, including
employees, their families and our business pariners eic.

Believe that the Corporate Social Responsibility is primarily about conducting business in a transparent and
ethical way that not only enhances value for all of our stakeholders but also suppaorts the events that enhance
the wellbeing of the community.

Ensure that corporate social responsibilities and guidelines for corporate governance are steps in the right
direction.

Endeavor that customer relation management is a strategic business philosophy and processes are rooted
through ethical practices.
Support a clean environment and motivates its customers for this cause.

Try our level best that business activities of customer must be environment-friendly and not be
hazardous to that Society.
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Environment

Ghani Chemical Industries cares for the employees, customers and general public and is committed to providing a
safe and injury free workplace.

Ghani Chemical Industries endeavors to carry out activities in a manner which:

—= Complies strictly with all the SHEQ legislations and regulations,

— Involves all personnel in a system of shared responsibility for safe operation,

—* Looks for continuous improvemnent in the workplace through the application of best safety & quality practices,
— Contributes to the permanentimprovement of operational efficiency and customers’ satisfactionthrougha

risk management program to protect our people, assets and business viability.

“We endeavor to achieve our objective of zero accidents.”
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CUSTOMER’S SATISFACTION

ustomer Service
n Excellent

= High quality customer service is an integral part of GCIL's philosophy. It is our constant endeavor to provide
exclusive service with wider accessibility.

= Besides “Safety”, our corporate slogan is "Customer First”. We always lay emphasis upon providing in the
best quality service to our customers.

= We continuously develop and improve customer - service oriented culfure within GCIL. Knowing our
customers and their need is the key to our business success.

== (0ur team of professionals are well-equipped and well-trained to provide the most efficient and personalized
service to our customers.

= it is incumbent upon the company and the management to ensure safe delivery of product to customers and
that all the employees, customers and visitors coming to the site(s), go back to their families in safe condition.

o= All the safety programmes, in-house and at customer’s premises, have been installed to ensure continuity in
programmes.

= A team of safety engineers is on board which ensures that all the safety aspects including human, machines,
buildings, vehicles tankers and storage are met and taken care of.

Customer First

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited {11 Anmual Report 2025




BRIEF HISTORY

Setup 1110 TPD ASU Plant for manufacturing of Medical and Industrial Gases near Lahore.

(el U 150 -9001-2008 Certification

i . fi H
Sem‘p 27110 _TP[] ASU Plant for manufacturing of Medical and Industrial Gases at Port
Qasim, Karachi.

TS FE 150 14001-2004 Certification

Transfer of entire manufacturing undertakings and business from Ghani Gases Limited to
JULY 2019 Ghani Chemical Industries Limited, as a result of merger scheme approved by the
Honourable Lahore High Court.

([Zrz L Setup 3° 110 TPD ASU Plant for manufacturing of Medical and Industrial Gases near Lahore.

m signing of long term agreement with Attock Refinery Limited for supply of Liquid Nitrogen for
aperiod of 05 years.

| NOVEMBER 2020 | Signing of long term agreement with Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited for supply of
MUY ENDER UL Oxygen and Nitrogen gases for a period of 15 years.

FSSC 22000 Food Safety System Certification

IS0 45001-2018 Occupational Health and Safety Management System Certification

PS 4992:2010 Halal Certification

Appreciation letter issued by National Command and Operation Center (NCOC) for
contributions by the Company for the national effort against COVID-19.

Setup of 4 100 TPD ASU Plant for manufacturing of Medical and Industrial gases at Port
JULY 2022 . .
(dasim, Karachi.

Transfer of G3 Technologies Limited with and into Ghani Chemical Industries Limited, as a
_ OCTOBER 2022 result of merger scheme approved by the Honourable Lahore High Court.

NOVEMBER Listing of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited at Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.
Carve out Calcium Carbide project located at Hatitar Special Economic Zone to Ghani
ChemWorld Limited (an associated company) under demerger/ merger scheme sanctioned
by the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore.

Setup of 5" 275 TPD ASU Plant for manufacturing of Medical and Industrial gases at Hattar
: ;
Special Economic Zone.

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited a7 Anmuesl Report 2025




CUSTOMER SEGMENTS

_ Light & Medium

Oil & Gas Engineering Works
Ghl‘-[l!il?ﬂ & Research and Analysis
Fertilizer

Scrap Cutting Environment
Pharmaceutical Merchandise Market
Health Care Glass

Food & Beverage S Refineries

Metal Fabrication Pulp & Paper

Steel & Iron Mills Livestock

GCIL! A Good solution for every situation...
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PRODUCTS & SERVICES

. "o

Liquid Oxygen Liquid Nitrogen Liquid Argon Liquid Helium
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L W Ethylene Ripener Pain Relief Mixture
A 53 h‘ -
1 A
i i
1l ‘E
Industrial Gases Pipeline Industrial Cryogenic / Calcium Carbide Liquid Medical Oxygen

Gases Cylinders
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CGompressed Medical Oxygen  Liquid Medical Cryogenic / Nitrous Oxide Helium
Gases Cylinders
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Oxygen Therapy Equipment Medical Gas Pipeline Gas Handiing Equipment Gas Manifold
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Aviation Oxygen Gas Regulator

Compressed Air Compressed Argon Compressed Acetylene Compressed Nitrogen
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Lamp Mixture Gas Argon Mixture Gas Co, Mig Wire
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GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE

Manufacturing Plants: = Punjab = Sindh = Khyber PK

We are! Where our customers are
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MEMBERSHIPS / CERTIFICATIONS

Memberships

KCCI - Karachi Chamber of Commerce & Industry

LCCI - Lahore Chamber of Commerce & Industry

HCCI - Haripur Chamber of Commerce & Industry

PCMA - Pakistan Chemical Manufacturer Association

Certifications
ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System

ISO 14001: 2015 Environmental Management System

ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety Management System
PS 4992: 2010 Halal Certification

FSSC 22000 Food Safety System Certification




Note:

0 ing Perioramance

Sales

Gross profit
Operating profit
Other income
Profit before tax
Profit after tax

Total Comprehensive Income
Eamning per share (EPS)

Balance Sheet

Share capital

Accumulated profits/reserves
Non-current assets

Cumrent assets

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Right issue

Bonus issue

Cash dividend

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2025

8,739,189
3,412,030
3,091,724
392,322
2,636,892
2,016,195
2,016,195
392

5,704,519
3,458,855
10,059,846
6,188,110
2,316,757
4,727,825

6%

2024

6,394,859
1,612,511
1,673,850
551,108
1,284,483
785,807
1,023,616
1.58

2,001,879
3,952,597

11,204,705

2,675,932
3,349 384
3,677,679

2023

5,111,123
1,459,838
1,306,021
330,935
931,639
507,891
1,005,169
1.06

5,001,879
3,828,079
7,777,715
5,349,908
1,987,754
2,309,911

10%

(Rs. in '000)

2022 201
4,781,791 4350558
1,746,672 1,657,115
1,390,694 1,175,011
211,830 55,092
1,163,912 966,746
812,426 691,149
2,199,944 691,149
2.26 228

Restated

4,347,163 1,535,250
3,257,626 1,377,161
6,351,335 4,198,105
4,405,441 1,792,056
1,425,030 1,344,080
2,405,836 1,733,585
6.51% 33.5%

120% -

During April 2025, the sharehoiders of the Company (Ghani Chemical Industries Limited/GCIL) received shares of Ghani ChemWorld Limited
{GCWL) inthe rafio of 1:2 (50 shares of GCWL against every 100 shares of GCIL) as per the DemergesMerger Scheme approved by the Honourable
Lahare High Court vide its order dated February 20, 2025,

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 10th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (the
Company/GCIL) will be held en Tuesday, 28 October 2025, at 10:30 AM, at the registered office of the Company,
located at 10-N, Model Town Bxt., Lahore, to fransact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and approve the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2025,
together with Directors' and Auditors ' Beports thereon.

In accordance with Section 223 of the Companies Act 2017 and pursuant to 5.R.0. 389(1)/2023 dated 21 March
2023, the Company's financial statements have been uploaded to the company's website, where they can be
downloaded via the provided weblink and QR-enabled code.

https://www.ghaniglobal.com/annual-reports/

2. To appoint auditors of the Company for the year ending 30 June 2026 and to determine their remuneration. The
retiring auditors, M/S ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered
ihemselves for reappointment.

3. To elect seven (07) directors as fixed by the board under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, for a term of
three years beginning on 31 October 2025.

The names of retiring directors are as follows:

1 Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan 2. | Mr. Atique Ahmad Khan

3. | Mr. Hafiz Faroog Ahmad 4. | Mrs. Rabia Atigue

5. | Mr Hafiz Imran Lateef 6. | Mr. Sheikh Muhammad Saleem Ahsan
7. | Mr. Muhammad Hanif

4. Any other business with permission of the Chair

SPECIAL BUSINESS

9. To consider and, if deemed appropnate, to increase the investment from Rs. 200 million to Rs. 300 million in Ghani
Global Holdings Limited (GGL/the Holding Company) by passing the special resolution with or without
modifications under section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, as annexed with the statement under section 134(3)
of the Companies Act, 2017.

6. To consider, and if deemed appropriate, to increase the investment from Rs. 1,300 million to Rs. 1500 million in
Ghani Global Glass Limited (GGGL/associated Company) by passing the special resolution with or without
modifications under section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, as annexed with a statement under section 134(3) of
the Companies Act, 2017.

1. To consider, and if deemed appropriate to enhance the investment from Rs. 1,500 million to Rs. 2,000 million in
Ghani ChemWorld Limited (GCWL/associated Company) by passing the special resolution with or without
modifications under section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, as annexed with the statement under section 134(3)
ofthe Companies Act, 2017.

Ghani Chemical Indusiries Limibed 15 Anmueal Report 2025




8. To approve the issuance of cross corporate guarantee of Rs. 1,000 million for Ghani ChemWorld Limited (GCWL)
being associated company to the bank(s) for financing facility by passing the resolution as special resolutions
under section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 as proposed in the Statement under section 134(3) of the
Companies Act 2017 annexed to the notice of AGM.

g. To consider and if deemed fit, to approve disinvest the investment of 50,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each from
its associated company namely, Ghani ChemWorld Limited (GCWL) at some appropriate price not less than par
value of shares, by passing special resolution with or without modification(s), addition(s) or deletion(s) under
section 183(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, as annexed with statement under section 134(3) of the Companies
Act, 2017.

10.T9 consider and, if deemed appropriate, to replace the existing Employees Stock Option Scheme (ES0S) by
passing the special resolution as proposed in the statement under section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

By order of the Board
. '|‘-r"'.l
g
Place: Lahore FARZAND ALI
2'3;"{?; October 06, 2025 Company Secretary

1. BOOK CLOSURE

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed, and no fransfers of shares will be accepted for
registration from Tuesday, 21 October 2025, to Tuesday, 28 October 2025 (both days inclusive). Transfer received
in order at the office of the share registrar

M/S CORPLINK thHWATE LIMITED

WINGS ARCADE, 1 - K, COMMERCIAL MODEL TOWN, LAHORE
TEL: +92 42 35916714, +92 42 35916719, Email: shares@corplink.com.pk

atthe close of business on Monday, 20 October 2025, will be considered in time for attendance at the AGM.

2. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Any person seeking to contest the election shall, whether he or she is a retiring director or otherwise, submit his or
her nomination along with all required documents (under Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulation, 2019) for election, duly signed by the member or members making the
nomination or by their duly authorized representative, to the Company at its registered office, 10-N, Model Town
Extension, Lahore. This mustbe received atleast fourteen (14) clear days before the meeting date.

3. ATTENDANCE OF MEETING
A member entitled to attend, speak, and vote at the AGM may appoint a proxy to attend, speak, and vote on their
behalf.

Proxies, to be effective, must be properly signed, filled out, and witnessed, then deposited at the company's
registered office along with certified copies of a valid computerised National Identity Card (CNIC) or passport at
least 48 hours before the meeting.

CDC Account Holders must adhere to the guidelines outlined in Circular No. 1 dated 26 January 2000 issued by the
SECP for attending the meeting.

Attendance at the meeting shall be upon production of the original CNIC or passport.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has advised, via circular No. 4 of 2021 dated 15
February, 1o facilitate members' participation through electronic means. Members may attend the AGM via Video
Link. To participate in the meeting via Video Link, members and their proxies are requested to register by providing
the following information via email at agmgcil25@ghaniglobal.com by 21 October 2025:
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Full Name Folio/CDC No. | Company Name | CNIC Number Hegiﬁgﬁﬁémail Cell Number

Video link details and login credentials will be shared with members whose registered emails, containing all the
necessary particulars, are received on or before Tuesday, 21 October 2025.

Shareholders can also submit their comments and questions regarding the AGM agenda items by email at
agmgcil25@ghaniglobal.com.

4. CONVERSION OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO THE BOOK ENTRY FORM

The SECP through its letter No. CSD/ED/Misc/2016- 639-640 dated 26 March 2016, has advised listed companies to
comply with the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, by converting their issued physical shares into
a book entry form.

Members of the Company holding physical folios or share certificates are requested to convert their shares from
physical form to book-entry form as soon as possible. For further information and assistance, Members may contact
our Share Registrar, M/s. Digital Custodian Company Limited.

9. AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON THE COMPANY'S WEBSITE:

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025 have been made available on the
Company's website www.ghaniglobal.com/ghanichemicals.

Notwithstanding the above, the Company shall provide hard copies of the audited financial statements to any Member
upon their request, sent to their registered address, free of charge, within one (1) week of receipt of such request.

6. CHANGE IN ADDRESS AND CNIC

Membeyrs are requested to notify or submit the following information and doecuments, in case of book entry securities
in CD5 to their respective participants and in case of physical shares to the registrar of the Company, by quoting their
folio numbers and the name of the Company at the address of the Company's Share Registrar mentioned below, if not
previously notified or submitted.

- Change intheir address, if any
= Members who have not yet submitted an attested photocopy of their valid CNIC are requested to do so
directly to the Company's Share Registrar.

7. POSTAL BALLOT/E-VOTING:
In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Resolutions, 2018 (“the Regulations”), the members of the

Company have the right to vote via electronic voting and/or postal voting, on the Election of Directors and Special
Businesses atthe upcoming AGM, subject to the requirements and conditions set out in the stated Regulations.

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. Digital Custodian Company Limited, as the Service
Provider for e-voting and M/s. Nasir Jamil & Co. Chartered Accountants, as Scrutinizer for the voting process under
the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 (the Regulations), to vote via electronic voting and postal voting for
agenda items No. 3, 5, 6,78, and 9 of the meeting. Both the above (Service Provider & Scrutinizer) fulfil all the
eligibility criteria as laid down by the Regulations and have the necessary knowledge and experience.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACT UNDER SECTION 134(3)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

The statement outlines the material facts relating to the special business items to be transacted at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company scheduled for Tuesday, 28 October 2025.
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Agenda ltem No. 5

The Board of Directors of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (GCIL/the Company) has proposed to enhance the
invesiment in Ghani Global Holdings Limited (GGL/the Holding Company).

The shareholders of GCIL have already accorded approval to invest Rs.200 million in GGL in their Annual General
Meeting held on October 26, 2024. Now, atthe request of the holding company (GGL) to extend its financing limits for
protection against increased frading activities, the Board of Directors of GCIL has recommended increasing the
investment from Rs. 200 million to Rs. 300 million in GGL through long-term loans and advances, subject to the other
terms and conditions specified in the statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017."

Thefollowing resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolutions:

RESOLVED THAT approval of the investment in Ghani Global Holdings Limited (GGL/the Holding Company) by the
shareholders of the Company (Ghani Chemical Industries Limited/GCIL) under section 199 of the Companies Act,
2017, be and is hereby granted to increase from Rs. 200 million to Rs. 300 million (Rupees Three Hundred Million)
through long-term loans and advances, subject to the other terms and conditions specified in the statement under
Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the resolutions as mentioned above shall be valid for a period of three years from the
date of approval by the shareholders, and that the Chief Executive Officer and/or Company secretary of the
Company are hereby singly authorized to undertake the decision of the said investment as and when required. They
are also empowered to take all necessary, incidental, and ancillary steps and actions, including executing any
documents and agreements that may be necessary in this regard, and to perform all acts, matiers, deeds, and
things as may be necessary or expedient for implementing the resolutions mentioned above.”

The Board of Directors of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (GCIL/the Company) has proposed to enhance the
investment in Ghani Global Glass Limited (GGGL/associated Company). The shareholders of GCIL have already
accorded approval to invest Rs. 1,300 million in GGGL in their AGM held on October 26, 2024. Now, upon request
of the GGGL the Board of Directors of GCIL has recommended to enhance the investment from Rs.1,300 miilion to
Rs. 1,500 million in GGGL by way of long term loans and advances, subject to the other terms and conditions
specified in the statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

The following resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT approval of investment in Ghani Global Glass Limited (GGGL/associated Company) by
shareholders of the Company (Ghani Chemical Indusiries Limited/GCIL) under section 199 of the Companies Act,
2017 be and is hereby accorded to enhance from Rs.1,300 million to Rs.1,500 million (Rupees Fifteen Hundred
Million) by way of long term loans and advances as per terms and conditions mentioned in the statement under
section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017."

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the resolutions as mentioned above shall be vaiid for a period of three years from the
date of approval by the shareholders, and that the Chief Executive Officer and/or Company Secretary of the
Company are hereby singly authorized to undertake the decision of the said investment as and when required. They
are also empowered to take all necessary, incidental, and ancillary steps and actions, including executing any
documents and agreements that may be necessary in this regard, and to perform all acts, matters, deeds, and
things as may be necessary or expedient for implementing the resolutions mentioned above.”
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Agenda ltem No. 7

The Board of Directors of Ghani Chemical Indusiries Limited (GCIL/the Company) has proposed to enhance the
investment in Ghani ChemWorid Limited (GCWL/associated Company). The shareholders of GCIL have already
accorded approval to invest Rs. 1,500 million in GCWL in their EOGM held on 12 April 2025. Now, upon request of the
GCWL the Board of Directors of GCIL has recommended to enhance the investment from Rs.1,500 million to Rs.
2,000 million in GCWL by way of long term loans and advances, subject to the other terms and conditions specified in
the statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Thefollowing resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT approval of investment in Ghani ChemWorid Limited (GCWL/associated Company) by
shareholders of the Company (Ghani Chemical Industries Limited/GCIL) under section 199 of the Companies Act,
2017 be and is hereby accorded to enhance from Rs.1,500 million to Bs.2,000 million (Rupees two thousand
Million) by way of long term loans and advances as per terms and conditions mentioned in the statement under
section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017."

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the resolutions as mentioned above shall be valid for a period of three years from the
date of approval by the shareholders, and that the Chief Executive Officer andfor Company Secretary of the
Company are hereby singly authorized to undertake the decision of the said investment as and when required. They
are also empowered to take all necessary, incidental, and ancillary steps and actions, including executing any
documents and agreements that may be necessary in this regard, and to perform all acts, matters, deeds, and
things as may be necessary or expedient forimplementing the resolutions mentioned above.”

nda Hem No. 8

On the request of Ghani ChemWorld Limited (GCWL) an associated Company, the Board of Directors of the Company
(Ghani Chemical Industries Limited) has proposed to issue the cross corporate guarantee up to Rs. 1,000 million to
the bank(s) of GEWL for amaximum period of five years subject to approval by shareholders of the Company.

The following resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolution under section 199 of the Companies Act,
2017.

RESOLVED that pursuant to the requirements of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, Ghani Chemical
Industries Limited (the Company) be and is hereby authorized to issue cross corporate guarantee up to Rs. 1,000
million to the bank(s) for financing facility to its associated company named Ghani ChemWorld Limited, subjectto
terms and conditions mentioned in the statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Further Resolved that the Chief Executive and Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby singly
authorized to take any and/or all actions to implement and give effect to the above resolution and to complete any or
all necessary required corporate and legal formalities for the purpose of implementation of the above resolution.

Agenda item No. 9

Ghani ChemWorld Limited (GCWL) was incorporated under the Companies Act, 2017, as a Public Limited Company
on 31 July 2024 (initially a2 wholly owned subsidiary of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (GCIL/the Company)). In
compliance with the Demerger/Merger Scheme approved by the Honorable Lahore High Court, the entire business
and underiaking of the Calcium Carbide Project, including all assets, liabilities, and properties, have been transferred
from GCIL to GCWL.

The Company currently holds an investment of 50,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each in GCWL. Due to this
investment, the Company, under applicable laws, is required to comply with additional legal formalities regarding the
attachment and publication of the consolidated accounts of GCWL with GCIL accounts. In view of the above, the Board
of Directors of GCIL has considered it in the best interest of the Company and its members to divest the said
investment to the directors of GCIL at the prevailing market price, but notless than the par value.

Ghani Chemical Indusiries Limibed 13 Anmueal Report 2025




Thefollowing resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolutions:

“RESOLVED that approval of shareholders of the Company (Ghani Chemical Industries Limited) be and hereby is
hereby accorded to disinvest the investment of 50,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each from its associated
company, namely, Ghani ChemWorld Limited (GCWL), to the directors of the Company at the prevailing market
price, but not less than par value.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr. Mahmood Ahmad, Independent Director and Mr. Farzand Ali, Company
Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby jointly authorized and empowered to take all decisions and sign the
documents for the purposes of carrying out the said disinvestment.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby singly authorized to do all
acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be deemed necessary, proper or expedient for the purpose of giving effect
to the resolutions as mentioned above and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto, and to take all
necessary steps as required under the law or otherwise for filing/completion of disinvestment formalities.”

nda lem No. 10

The shareholders of the Company (Ghani Chemical Industries Limited) approved the Empioyee Stock Option Scheme
(the Scheme) under Section 83 & 83(A) of the Companies Act, 2017, in their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on
December 20, 2022, However, due to certain reasons the Scheme could not be implemented. The board of directors
of the Company has proposed to replace the existing Employee Stock Option Scheme, in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter VI under regulation 7(v) (b) — Employee Stock Option Scheme under the Companies (Further
Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020.

The following resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the existing Employee Stock Option Scheme approved by the shareholders
in Extra Ordinary General Meeting dated December 20, 2022, Employee Stock Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) be
and is hereby replaced in accordance with Section 83(A) of the Companies Act, 2017, and Chapter V- Employee
Stock Option Scheme under the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020 as per Annexure A™.

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT each of the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and the Company
Secretary of the Company, acting singly, be and is hereby authorized fo take all necessary steps and execute all
necessary documents towards fulfillment of all iegal and corporate requirements involved, as may be necessary or
expedient for the purpose of fully giving effect to and implementing the letter, spirit and intent of the foregoing
resolutions.”
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THE INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SRO 1240(1)/2017 DATED 06 DECEMBER 2017 IS AS FOLLOWS:

() DISCLOSURES:

(A) Regarding the associated company or associated undertaking

i Ghani Global Ghani Glohal Glass Ghani ChemWaorld
Requirement Holdings Limited Limited Limited
Name of the associated Ghani Global Holdings Ghani Global Glass Ghani ChemWorld
company Limited (GGL). Limited (GGGL). Limited (GCIL).
Associated Company Associated Company
: ks Holding Company and
Basis of Relationshi : ; and Comman and Commaon
P Common Directorship. Decirsg. Decionsiun.
£amnings/(Loss) per 2025 0426 2025 126 2025: 145
share for the last three 2024: 0.069 2024: 060 2024: -
yEars 2023:  0.046 2023: 042 2023: -
Breakup value per share,
based on latest audited |Rs. 11.18 as on June 30, 2025Rs. 11.92 as on June 30, 2025 [Rs. 14.07 as on June 30, 2025
financial statemenis
Financial position, Unconsolidated Audited Financial| Audited Financial Statements for | Audited Financial Statements for
Inckidin E?En Bnd Staterments for the period ended | the period ended June 30, 2025 | the period ended June 30, 2025
ulhalm?:esmetand June 30, 2025 showed: showed: showed:
profit and loss account | oo g 1 gss: Rupees(000) | Profit & Loss: Profit & Loss: Rupees
N ”ﬂm}m of s latest | gajog ( Bﬁ,ﬁﬁé' )| es (net gga*os%uﬁ Sales (et 4
ancial statements; | gryss profit 1,217 Gross profit 773.332 | Gross profit -
Admin 6,396 Admin Expenses 93,746 | Admin BExpenses 12,919,128
(Other income 201,265 Other income 05,826 | Other income 2346
Hnance Cost 12,001 Hnance Cost 346,371 | Hnance Cost .
Profit after |Profit after Profit after
Taxation 151,010 |Taxation 300,230 |Taxation 75,387,663
Financial Position: Financial Position: Financial Position:
Assets 3,580,711 |Non-current Non-current
Current Assels 3,120,993 |Assets 3,878,043,600
Assets 440,587 |Current Current
Assefs 3,067,296 |Assets 805,456,735
Total Assets 4,021,298 |[Total Asseis 6,188,290 |Total Assets 4,683,500,335
paid up share paid up share paid up share
capital 3,541,197 |capital 2,400,000 ﬁgrﬁ‘r 2,501,433,500
Revenue Reserve 421,163 [Reserve 459,854 |Reserve 943,739,525
Current Nen-current Accumulated
liabilities 58,938 |Liabilities 549,182 |profit 75,387 663
Current Non-current
- 4 Liabilities 750,000,000
liabilities 2779,254 et
liabilities 412 933,647
Equity and Equity and Equity and |
Liabilities 4,021,298 |Liabilities 6,188,290 |Liabilities 4,683,500,335
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(B)General Disclosures:

Rs. 300 million as long lerm

Rs. 1,500 million as long

-Hs. 2,000 milkon as long lerm loans
and advances being increased from
Rs. 1,500 million.

Maximum amount of ;
: loans and advances being lerm loans and advances
investment o be made increased from Rs. 200 being increased from Rs. -Upto Rs. 1,000 million in shape of
million. 1,300 million. issuance of Cross Corporate
Guaraniee.
Purpose, benefits likely To earn profits on Company's
io accrue o the d funds
I company and| Toeam profits on Company's To eam profils on Company's
mrs from such| funds funds T . ; .
investment and m 0 meet the securily requiremeants
of mm of Bank(s).
Through internal sources, Through internal sources, Through internal sources,
SUINCES GTANKS I be B-qqilygmma and/or other equity 1ssue and/or other qu.!il]FQISEIJE and/or other
FANE options are under planning. | options are under planning. | options are under planning.
a;mrtanl{ “ufthe reement will be executed gmmwill}emuﬂﬂd reement will be executed
S), I any, Wi wi
with .'ﬂsucéd %nm extending the advances ore extending the advances ﬁgfum the advances
company or associated | and loans in accordance with | and loans in accordance with | and loans in accordance with
undertaking with regards{ the terms and conditions, as | the terms and condiions, as | the terms and conditions, as
io the proposed ammadhythest‘ﬂerddms approved by the shareholders. | approved by the shareholders
invesiment;
direct or indirect inferest | Shareholding position of the | Shareholding position of the ion of the
ok o, | daiiesol G e of o SRR o G
and their relatives, if any,| ChemWorld Limited in its ChemWorld Limited in its ChemWorld Limited in its
in the associated rﬂdmﬁmﬁrﬂnﬁm associated Company Ghani holding Company Ghani
company or associated | Holdings Limited (GGL) is as | Glabal Glass (GGGL) | Chemical Indusiries Limited
undertaking or the under: is as under: (GCIL) is as under:
transaction under
consideration;
Names of Number of " Names of Number of % Mames of Number of %
Directors Shares | Directors Shares - | Directors Shares T
-Mr. Masroar -Mr. Masroor -Mr. Masraor
Ahmad Khan 54,176,839 15.29| Ahmad Khan 2400 0.007| Ahmad Khan 6,716 0.003
-Mr. Aique -Mr. Atique -Mr. Atique
Ahmad Khan 48,819,510 13.78 | Ahmad Khan 2400 0.001 | Ahmad Khan 6.716 0.003
-Hafiz Faroog -Hafiz Faroog -Hafiz Faroog
Ahmad 51,003,082 14.42| Ahmad 2400 0001 Ahmad 18,267 0.007
-Mrs, Rabia -Mrs. Rabla -Mrs. Rabia
Atiue 10,720,515 3.02| Atique 2400 0,001 | Atique 6,164 0.002
-Hafiz Imran -Hafiz Imran -Hafiz Imran
Lateef ¥ = | Latesf - = | Lateef 251 0.000
-Sheikh M. Saleem -Sheikh M. Saleem -Sheikh M. Saleem
Ahsan 15,670  0.04| Ahsan 35 0.000 | Ahsan 7,624 0.003
-Mr. M. Hanif = = |-Mr. M. Hanil = = | -Mr. M. Hanif 50,000 Q.02
GCWL halds no shares in GEL. | GCWL holds no shares in G6GL. | GCIL halds 50,000 shares in GCWL
GCIL holds no shares in GEL. | GCIL holds no shares in GGGL.
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The Sponsoring directors of GEL | The Sponsaring directors of GBGL [The Sponsoring directors of GCIL
hold the following shares in GCIL: | hold the following shares in GCIL-  [hold the following shares in GCIL:
Names of Numberof . |Names of Number of . Names of Number of
Dirgclors Shares " |Direclors Shares " |Direclors shares. S
-Mr Masroor -Mr. Aligue -Mr. Masroor
Ahmad Khan 1,797,832  0.31| Ahmad Khan 1,797,832 0.31| Ahmad Khan 1,797,832 0.31
-Mr. Aique -Haliz Faroog -Mr. Atique
Ahmad Khan  1.797.832  0.31| Ahmad 1820934  0.31|Ahmad Khan 1,797,832 031
-Mr. Umar M. Abdullah -Hafiz Farooq
Ahmad 1,650,000  0.66 | Ahmed 1,650,000 066 | Ahmad 1820934 031
-Mrs. Saira -Mrs. Saima -Mrs. Rabia
Farooq 5929 0.002 | Shafi Rana = — | Atique 1,536,727 026
-Mt. Mahmood -Syed Siblul -Mrs. Saira
Ahmad 100  0.00 | Hassan Gilani - — | Farooq 1536727 026
Syed Sibtul Mt Asim -Haliz imran
oo~ ~ | Mahmud = — | Lateet 502 0.000
-Sheikh M. -Sheikh M. -Mahmood
Saleem Saleem Ahmad 221000 D03
Ahsan 7,624 0002 | Ahsan 7624  po02
In case any investment | The already approved investment The aready approved invesiment | The akready approved investment
in associaled cOMpaY | by the shareholders of the Company | by the sharehoiders of the Company | by the shareholders of the Company
undertaking has in AGM held on October 26, 2024 by | in AGM held on Oclober 26, 2024 (in EOGM held on Aprl12, 2025 by
already been made, the | way of long term loans and advances | by way of long term loans and way of long term loans and advances
mmwwﬂ for Rs. 200 million in Ghani Giobal | advances for Rs. 1,300 milionin  {for Rs. 1,500 mifion in Ghani
inluding !'"mm' Holdings Limited (GGL) be and is Ghani Global Glass Limited (6GGL)  |ChemWorld Limited (GCWL) be and
information/justification hereby modified and enhanced to be and is hereby modified and is hereby modified and enhanced to
gmmgﬂm“f Hs. 300 milion by way of long ferm | enhanced I Rs. 1500 mllonby  |Rs. 2,000 milkon by way of long
. lans and advances as per terms and | way ol long term loans and advances |term loans and advances as per
condiions mentioned in the annexed | as per tems and condiions terms and conditions mentioned
stalernent under section 134(3) of mentioned in the annexed stalement  |in the annexed statement under
Companies Act, 2017. under section 134(3) of Companies  {section 134(3) of Companies
Act, 2017 Act, 2017.
There has been no impairmet o wrie]
offs in this regard. There has been no impairmentor | There has been no impairment or
wirite: offs in this regand. write offs in this regard.
GCIL is aready eaming profits on the
imvesiment Le. GCLL & aeady eaming profits on | GCIL has already eamed profits
the investment ie. from Apgil 2025 fo June 2025
2025: 11.23 million Le. 5.2 milon.
2025: 168.08 million
2024:10.18 million
2024: 199.13 million
i Nl Nil Ni
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(C) In case of Investment in form of Loans and Advances:

Category wi To enhance long lerm lpans and | To enhance long lerm loans and | -To enhance long term loans and
of Imr%nﬂ% amount advances from Rs. 200 million to | advances from Rs. 1,300 million | advances from As. 1,500 million
: Rs. 300 million. lo Rs. 1,500 million. o Rs. 2,000 million.
-Cross Corporate Guaraniee up lo
Rs. 1,000 millian
i -3 months KIBOR -+ 1.10bps
A bormowing cost
of the investing company Jmonths KIBOR + 1.10bps 3 months KIBOR + 1.10bps _Commission on guaraniee @
0.1% per quarter
3 months KIBOR + 1.1 3 ths KIBOR + 1.106 _I::?llm lﬂ%.bumm
; mo i mon 1 no ann
ﬁwm% Ly i koot S average borrowing cost
average bomowing cost average borrowing cost o
gic. i be charged -Commission @ 0.1% per quarter
GGL will enhance Demand GGGL will enhance Demand mmm
Promissory Note amount in favor |Promissory Note amount in favor | of GCIL from Rs.1,500 million to
Pariiculars of collaleral | of GCIL from Rs.200 millionto  |of GCIL from Rs.1,300 million to | Rs.2,000 rrmt Fll'ﬂ'ﬂTHﬂFﬂ the
%P be obtained | Rs.300 million. Furthermore, the |Rs.1,500 million. Furthermore, the w
in o fhe proposed| sponsoring directors of GL shall |sponsoring directors of GGGL shall mﬂggf““ e 5000
mvesimernt issue personal guarantees in favor |issue personal guarantees in favor | millon.
of GCIL, equivalent to Rs. 300 of GCIL, eguivalent to Bs. 1,500
million. million. pricl Byl L ks
If the investment cary NIL NI NIL
Repayment of loan will be within ihvee: [Repayment of loan will be within hree of nan wil be within
Hﬂ]ﬂgﬂtmﬁaﬂ years from the date of payment with |years from the date of payment with fgrﬁﬁﬁﬂ;l‘ﬁtﬂﬂﬂf%
: m J on 1
mﬁwlﬂgﬁﬂmﬁhﬂ payment of profit on quarledy basis.  |payment of profil on quartery basis. - F&mﬁmﬁﬂhtﬂah’
gen associated MadTm of five
company or associaled | Any offer e or condiins approved Any ofher ferm or condiions approved Pttt i)
undertaking. by shareholders of the company.  |by shareholders of the company. -Colateral security(s) from Subsi
-Company as Demand Promissory
ofher lemms and condiion
by shareholdess of the Company

In pursuance to Regulation No. 3 (3) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated
Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 under SRO 1240(1)/2017 dated 6 December 2017, the directors of the Company
have carried out due diligence for the proposed investment in its associated companies i.e. Ghani Global Holdings
Limited, Ghani Global Glass Limited and Ghani ChemWorld Limited, before recommending it for member's approval.

The following documents shall be available to the members of the Company for inspection in the AGM o be held on
Tuesday October 28, 2025.

- Recommendations of the due diligence report of the investing company.
- Financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2025.

Note:

The directors of the Company (Ghani Chemical Indusiries Limited) have no interest in the above-mentioned Special
Businesses except to the extent that those executive directors, including the chief executive officer, who may be
entitled to ESOS whenever an option as an eligible employee is exercised.
24
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PATTERN OF THE SHARE HOLDING

as at June 30, 2025

_____Fom | T
1 100
101 500
501 1,000
1,001 5,000
5,001 10,000
10,001 15,000
15,001 20,000
20,001 25,000
25,001 30,000
30,001 35,000
35,001 40,000
40,001 45,000
45,001 50,000
50,001 55,000
55,001 60,000
60,001 65,000
65,001 70,000
70,001 75,000
75,001 80,000
80,001 85,000
85,001 90,000
90,001 95,000
95,001 100,000
100,001 105,000
105,001 110,000
110,001 115,000
115,001 120,000
120,001 125,000
125,001 130,000
130,001 135,000
135,001 140,000
140,001 145,000
145,001 150,000
150,001 155,000
155,001 160,000
160,001 165,000
165,001 170,000
170,001 175,000
175,001 180,000

1902
1963
579
1013
354
149
107
80
64
44
47
32
56
16
17
17

9

16
11

7

11

5

M2
-]

E = == B R = R = = B T — W = L = 5

FORM - 20

NO OF NUMBER OF
SHAREHOLDERS SHARES HELD

84,791
465,675
481,166

2 780,904
2,769,410
1,939,762
1,948,077
1,871,583
1,803,941
1,461,972
1,792,790
1,373,964
2 747,385
848,108
995,356
1,080,029
607,158
1,187,549
876,595
585,256
965,896
462334
2,689,700
512,273
548,000
446,108
469,500
619,180
255,857
933,819
137,100
142,100
450,000
605,443
1,110,679
821,100
1,006,697
350,000
710,850
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180,001
190,001
195,001
200,001
205,001
210,001
220,001
225,001
230,001
235,001
240,001
245,001
250,001
265,001
275,001
280,001
290,001
295,001
300,001
305,001
315,001
325,001
330,001
340,001
345,001
355,001
365,001
370,001
385,001
395,001
405,001
420,001
445,001
450,001
470,001
485,001
490,001
495,001
500,001
215,001
935,001
560,001
975,001
600,001
615,001
630,001

185,000
195,000
200,000
205,000
210,000
215,000
225,000
230,000
235,000
240,000
245,000
250,000
255,000
270,000
280,000
285,000
295,000
300,000
305,000
310,000
320,000
330,000
335,000
345,000
350,000
360,000
370,000
375,000
390,000
400,000
410,000
425,000
450,000
455,000
475,000
490,000
495,000
200,000
505,000
920,000
540,000
565,000
280,000
605,000
620,000
635,000

ek ek ok ke A b B et ek b ok [ bk Bk R Uk B ok bk ke ak b b b b Y = P ot ok = ) = L0 LD DA RS

366,500
583,140
1,600,000
606,099
627,826
638,300
225,000
453,976
231,800
239,189
241,044
1,000,000
250,600
537,900
280,000
280,408
291,500
1,199,500
303,000
305,350
320,000
330,000
331,000
341,644
700,000
359,580
366,500
743,213
386,893
1,200,000
409,000
421,000
1,348,380
454,719
475,000
487,000
493,982
2,499,999
505,000
1,034,748
540,000
562,302
580,000
600,750
618,936
634,800

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited

Annual Report 2025



Ghani Chemical Industries Limited

685,001 690,000 1 690,000
695,001 700,000 2 1,400,000
715,001 720,000 1 718,683
750,001 755,000 1 752,758
770,001 775,000 1 771,866
795,001 800,000 1 800,000
895,001 900,000 1 900,000
935,001 940,000 1 935,276
985,001 990,000 1 986,960
995,001 1,000,000 1 1,000,000
1,005,001 1,010,000 1 1,010,000
1,095,001 1,100,000 1 1,100,000
1,155,001 1,160,000 1 1,158,080
1,160,001 1,165,000 1 1,163,230
1,215,001 1,220,000 1 1,218,000
1,370,001 1,375,000 1 1,372,000
1,495,001 1,500,000 1 1,500,000
1,500,001 1,505,000 1 1,500,349
1,510,001 1,515,000 1 1,510,200
1,535,001 1,540,000 3 4,609,241
1,595,001 1,600,000 1 1,600,000
1,675,001 1,680,000 1 1.680,000
1,715,001 1,720,000 1 1,720,000
1,795,001 1,800,000 3 5,391,845
1,895,001 1,900,000 1 1,900,000
2,020,001 2,025,000 1 2,023,900
2,030,001 2,035,000 1 2,035,000
2,130,001 2,135,000 1 2,134,000
2,850,001 2,855,000 1 2,855,000
2,930,001 2,935,000 1 2,930,467
3,195,001 3,200,000 1 3,200,000
3,295,001 3,300,000 3 9,900,000
3,395,001 3,400,000 1 3,400,000
4,995,001 5,000,000 1 5,000,000
6,910,001 6,915,000 2 13,826,318
7,095,001 7,100,000 1 7,096,159
8,615,001 8,620,000 1 8,616,659
9,995,001 10,000,000 1 10,000,000
13,825,001 13,830,000 1 13,826,318
31,670,001 31,675,000 1 31,671,954
69,995,001 70,000,000 1 70,000,000
276,605,001 276,610,000 1 276,605,983
6,721 570,451,931
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CATEGORIES OF SHARE HOLDERS
as at June 30, 2025

Categories of Shareholders e OF R e Shares Held  Percentage
Holders

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their
spouse 9 10,566,589 1.852
and minor childern
Associated Companies 2 349,905,586 61.338
NIT and ICP 2 153,705 0.027
Financial Institutions 3 513,157 0.090
Insurance Companies 2 1,677 0.0003
Modaraba Companies 4 18,051 0.0032
Mutual Funds 1 7,288 0.0013
Leasing Companies 1 B,646 0.0015
Joint Stock Companies 52 16,347 568 2 8657
Foreign Companies 1 100,650 0.0176
Executives 1 123,180 0.0216
Individuals 6,643 192,705,434 337812
TOTAL 6.721 570,451,931 100
Shareholders holding 10% or more 2 349,905,986 61.34
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

| am pleased to present the Review Report to the shareholders on the Board's overall performance and effectiveness in
achieving the Company's objectives.

Review of Overall Performance and Effectiveness of the Board

The Board has diligently fulfilled its roles and responsibilities, making significant contributions to the Company's
strategic leadership. It has conducted regular reviews of the Company's financial statements and governance matters,
including the transparency of disclosures, policies, corporate plans, budgets, and compliance with regulatory
requirements.

In addition to reviewing strategic and critical business matters, the Board has specifically assessed the risks posed by
change in macroeconomic factors and supply chain disruptions to the Company. Appropriate safeguards have been
taken to minimize the impacts of these adverse factors on the Company.

The composition of the Board of Directors reflects a mix of varied backgrounds to provide quality strategic direction to
the management. The Board has also formed subcommittees, including the Human Resource & Remuneration
Committee, the Audit and Risk Management Committee. These sub-committees are operating effectively within the
framework of law.

The Board has approved a risk management framework with a vision to implement a robust system of internal controls
and provide an effective control environment for compliance with the best practices of Corporate Governance. The
Board has also stressed on high standards of honesty and integrity as pivotal factors for success of the business and

Company.

As required by Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance Regulations) 2019, annual evaluations of the Board
of Directors and its subcommittees have been carried out. This evaluation aims to ensure that Board has the skills
required to provide strategic leadership to the Company. Improvement areas, if any, identified as part of the evaluation
process are addressed accordingly. Based on the latest feedback received, the evaluation and performance of the
Board is considered satisfactory.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to acknowledge valuable contributions of directors who have
completed their term and warmly welcome our new directors who bring in diverse expertise of governance, strategy
and business acumen. | extend my special gratitude to all shareholders for their continued trust and support. |
acknowledge with thanks our employees' dedication and hard work at all levels and look forward to their continued
support. | would also like to appreciate the commendabie efforts and commitment of our Board Members and CED in

providing strategic leadership to the Company.

Lahore Masroor Ahmad Khan
Dated: October 04, 2025 Chairman, Board of Directors
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SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.

i
3 Sw PAKISTAN CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governanes) Regulations, 2010

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Govemance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulstions) prepared by the Board of
Directors of GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED (the Company) for the year ended
June 30, 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Reguistions is that of the Board of Dirsctors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
stalus of the Company's compllance with the provisions of the Reguiations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations A review is
limited primarily to inquiies of the Company's parsonnel and review of various documents

prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audt of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
tha acoounting and intamal conirol systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an sffective
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Direciors’ statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls or 1o form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
intemnal conlrols, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committes, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Commities, place befors the Board of Directors for thelr review
and approval, its related party ransactions, We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the sxtent of the approval of the related party transactions by
tha Board of Direclors Lpon Rcommendation of the Audit Cammittae.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our altention which causes us to believe thal the
Statement of Compliance doas nol appropriately eflect the Company's complianca, in all
malesal respects, with the reguirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2035,

LAHORE; October 08, 2025 %wmw hh

UDIN: CR202610195Q30F SicdE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Principal Office:
HM House
T-Bank Squars, Lahon.

Tel: +92 42 37235004-87 Other Offices:
m.mmcm: it o . Itamebad & Maften :. Catalyst for success
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate

Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: Ghani Chemical Industries Limited
Year ended: June 30, 2025

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-
1. The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following,-

a. Male: 6
h. Female: 1

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:-

I. Independent directors: Sheikh Muhammad Saleem Ahsan
Hafiz Imran Lateef

Ii. Non-Executive directors: Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan
Mr. Muhammad Hanif
Ms. Rabia Atique

iii. Executive directors: Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Mr. Atique Ahmad Khan

Female director: Ms. Rabia Atique

For a Board comprising of seven members, one-third equates to 2.33. The independent directors meet the
criteria of independence as laid down under the Code. The Board has fixed the number of independent
directors at two considering the required skills set and experience. However, fractional contained in one-
third number (i.e., 0.33) is not rounded up as one (1), being less than 0.5.

3.The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven (7) listed
companies, including this company;

4.The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5.The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strateqy and significant policies of
the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along
with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;
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7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

9, At present, the Board is in compliance with the requirements of the time frame related to directors’

fraining program as stipulated in the Regulations, furthermore, one (1) of the Directors s exempt
from the directors training program by virtue of his education and experience as per regulations.

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Hnancial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied
with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

11. The Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below .-

a) Audit & Risk Management Committee:

5o, | Name [ Saws |
1. | Sheikh Muhammad Saleem Ahsan ‘Chairman
2. | Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan Member
3. | Mrs. Rabia Atique Member

b) Human Resources & Remuneration and Compensation Committee:

St.No. | ~ Name P Status

1. | Hafiz Imran Lateef Chairman
2. | Mrs. Rabia Atique | Member
3. | Hafiz Faroog Ahmad | Member
4. | Mr. Muhammad Hanif " Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to
the committee for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the Committees were as per following:-

a) Audit & Risk Management Committee - Quarterly
b) HR&R and Compensation Committee - Annually

15. The Board has set up and effective internal audit function to who are considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;
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16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in
the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the
chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director
of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other

services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirements
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.

Hip ey S \/<

(HAFIZ FARDDOQ AHMAD) (ATIQUE AHMAD KHAN)
Chief Executive Officer Director

Lahore.
Dated: October 04, 2025
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders:
Assalam-o-Alaikum Wa RehmatUliah Wa Barakatoh

The directors of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (the Company) are pleased to present the unconsolidated as well
as consolidated audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025, in compliance with
ihe requirements of Companies Act, 2017.

OVERVIEW OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY

Pakistan's economy started to stabilize in the first half of FY 2025. Economic growth remained modest at around
1.5% during this period, with forecasts for the whole year ranging between 2.6% and 2.7%. Inflation, which had been
very high at 26%, fell notably to between 4% and 7%, and in April dropped to as low as 0.3%. The current account also
improved, showing a small surplus, helped by a 32% rise in remittances and a stronger export performance,
although impeorts still outpace exports.

The government successfully managed to spend more efficiently, lowering the overall budget deficit and boosting the
primary surplus. To stimulate economic activity, the central bank reduced interest rates from over 20% to around
11%. Despite these positive steps, growth remains below the official target of 3.6%.

The manufacturing sector showed signs of recovery, contributing to an overall industrial growth of 4.77%. Small-
scale manufacturing performed well, helping to offset the decline in large-scale manufacturing (LSM). Notably,
12 out of 22 sectors recorded growth, including automobiles, textiles, pharmaceuticals, and petroleum products.

However, despite flood damage, the Government's measures to promote investment, along with reforms to support
private sector-led growth, reduce inflation, and maintain an accommodative monetary policy, are expected to further
strengthen business confidence. A supportive global environment, rising demand from trading partners, and
Pakistan's recent trade agreement with the U.S. are likely to boost exports. At the same time, workers' remittances
will help offset trade deficit pressures caused by tariff rationalization-driven imports.

PRINCIPLE ACTIVITY

Your Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing, sale and trading of medical/ industrial gases and
chemicals.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Alhamduliliah, the sales and overall performance of your company have increased significantly. For the year ending
30 June 2025, your company recorded gross sales of Rs. 8,740 million, up from Rs. 6,395 million at the previous
year-end. Gross profit rose from Rs. 1,612 million to Rs. 3,412 million. Distribution and administrative costs incurred
during the year were Rs. 205 million and Rs. 282 million, respectively, compared to Rs. 144 million and Rs. 242
million in the previous year. Despite challenging economic conditions, your Company succeeded in increasing
operating profit from Bs. 1,674 million to Rs. 3,091 million compared to the same period last year. By the grace of
Almighty Allah, your company achieved a profit after taxation of Rs. 1.835 billion from Rs. 786 million, compared to
the same period last year. Your company also increased earnings per share to Rs. 3.57, whereas during the last year,
earnings per share were Rs. 1.58.
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A comparison of the key financial resuits of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2025 s as follows:

- ees in ‘000
Particulars o s

Jun-25 Jun-24
Sales 8,739,189 6,394,859
Cost of sales (4,023,390) (3,824,876)
Gross profit 3,412,030 1,612,511
Distribution cost (205,483) (144,685)
Administrative expenses (282,112 (242,069)
Profit from operations 3,091,724 | 1,673,850
Finance cost (453,021) | (389,367)
Profit before taxation, minimum and final tax levies 2,638,703 | 1,284,483
Taxation (620,697) | (498,676)
Profit after taxation 2,016,195 | 785,807
Earnings per share 3.92 | 1.58

During the year under review, your Company commenced commercial operations at Pakistan's most significant and
the Company's 5th State-of-the-Art 275TPD medical and industrial gases manufacturing project, located at Hattar
special Economic Zone, and has become the leading manufacturer in this secior.

Healthcare providers in the private sector are upgrading their infrastructure with centralized oxygen systems and
strict safety standards. In accordance with regulatory focus on purity, traceability, and continuous availability,
suppliers are expanding capabilities to meet increasing demand while maintaining full regulatory compliance.

Public sector hospitals across Pakistan, particularly in Punjab, remain under significant pressure due to
overwhelming patient demand and critically limited resources. This strain also affects essential medical suppliers,
including oxygen providers, as the demand for medical-grade oxygen continues to increase year after year.
Alhamdulillah, your company is well-positioned to support this rising need, with oxygen production facilities
operating throughout Sindh, Punjab, and Khyber Pakhtunkhwa. A nationwide presence allows your company to
reliably serve government hospitals and ensure continuous patient care across the country.

Across sectors such as Chemical & Fertilizer, Minerals & Metallurgy, Pharmaceuticals, Glass, Food Processing,
Electronics & Home Appliances, Automobiles, and Energy, demand for gases like oxygen, nitrogen, and argon
continues to grow. Key trends, including automation and clean energy integration, are encouraging increased
investment in efficient supply chains and bulk gas logistics.

Your company, as a market leader, is transforming distribution models to improve turnaround times and service
reliability. Meanwhile, smaller players are fostering innovation and agility, offering customized solutions for small-
scale healthcare providers and niche industrial needs. Sustainability is becoming a key priority for both customers
and industry stakeholders. In response, Industrial and Medical Gases producers are actively exploring energy-
efficient production methods, environmentally responsible sourcing, and greener storage and fransportation
solutions.

At GCIL, we remain committed to our mission to lead with reliability, integrity, and innovation. By aligning our operations with
national priorities and global best practices, we are confident in our ability to unlock new opportunities while upholding the
highest standards of quality, compliance, and sustainability.

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 35 Anmuesl Report 2025




FUTURE PROSPECTS

In April 2025, your Company formally commenced commercial operations as Pakistan’s largest unit, with a
production capacity of 275 TPD, and its fifth state-of-the-art medical and industrial gases manufacturing project,
located at the Hattar Special Economic Zone (HSEZ), became the leading manufacturerin this sector. This is the most
cost-efficient manufacturing project, compared to the Company's existing ASU plants. Furthermore, profits at HSEZ
are exempt from tax.

In addition to the above, your Company has taken steps to expand into other business areas by establishing a 450 MT
capacity L PG Storage and Filling Plant (the Plant) at Phool Nagar, District Kasur, for operations across the country
through M/s Ghani Gases (Private) Limited (GGPL), one of the wholly owned subsidianes of GCIL. For this purpose,
GGPL has recently obtained a licence from the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority, Islamabad. After completing all
required formalities and obtaining the necessary approvals, this subsidiary (GGPL) will begin construction of the
Plant shortly, Insha'Aliah.

As another bold move, your Company has signed MOU with a leading Pakistani energy company (involved in the
exploration, development, and production of hydrocarbons, including natural gas, crude oil, condensate, and
liguefied petroleurn gas) to develop a project jointly for capturing and processing cold vent/exhaust gases (including
fiue gas) in province of Sindh, to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and recover commercially valuable
products, including food-grade liquid CO.. Inthis respect, a formal agreement is expected to be signed shortly.

As a result of the above factors, the Company's shareholders are expected to experience a sharp increase in financial
results in the coming periods.
PAYOUT TO SHAREHOLDERS

The management of your Company strongly believes in returning profits to its shareholders. The board of directors of
your Company paid 6% Cash Dividend during March 2025.

In addition to the above, as a result of the sanction of the demerger scheme by the Honorable Lahore High Court,
Lahore, and the transfer of the Calcium Carbide project from GCIL to Ghani ChemWorld Limited (GCWL/listed at
PSX), during April 2025, the shareholders of the Company were further allotted 500 shares of GCWL against every
1000 shares (held by shareholders in GCIL).

STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

The current auditors, M/s. ShineWing Hameed Chaudhn & Co., Chartered Accountants, will retire at the conclusion
of the Annual General Meeting scheduled for 25 October 2025. As recommended by the Audit Commitiee, the Board
of Directors has proposed their re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending 30 June 2026.

SHARE PRICE TREND

The share price of your Company rose as high as Rs. 26.05 on June 30, 2025, and fell as low as Rs. 8.82 on October
4 2024. Asonthe reportdate, share price of your Company close at Rs. 33.51.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In compliance with the requirements of Section 228 of the Companies Aci 2017, the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, along with the auditors' and directors' reports thereon, have been attached to the
financial statements of the Company.

STATUTORY PAYMENT

There is no outstanding statutory payment payable other than those shown in the relevant Notes to the financial
statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

GCIL has adopted the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance as outlined in the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited (PSX) Rule Book, relevant for the year ending 30 June 30, and has duly complied with them.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
A Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019is annexed.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The board of directors of your company has adopted a code of conduct for its board members and employees. All
concerned are informed of these codes and are required to observe the rules of conduct regarding customers,
suppliers, and regulations.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

During the year under review, your Company contributed Bs. 1,111 million (2024: Rs. 667.26 million) in the form of
taxes, duties, and levies paid to central and provincial governments and local authorities.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The board of directors of your Company has established an Audit and Risk Management Committee. It consists of
three members, one of whom is independent and two are non-executive directors. Names of members are as under:

Name of Director Category Designation in Commitiee
Sheikh Muhammad Saleem Ahsan | Independent director Chairman
Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan Non-executive director | Member

_H!rs. Rabia Atique Non-executive director | Member

The Audit Committee has its terms of reference, which the Board of Directors determined in accordance with the
guidelines provided in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

HR&R AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a Human Resources and Remuneration (HR&R) and Compensation Committee. It
consists of four members, of whom one is independent, two are non-executive, and one is an executive director.
Names of members are as under:

Name of Director Category Designation in Committee
Hafiz Imran Lateef Independent director Chairman
Hafiz Farooq Ahmad Executive director/CEO Member
Mrs. Rabia Atique Nor- Executive director Member
Mr. Muhammad Hanif Non- Executive director Member
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a Nomination Commitiee. It consisis of three members, of whom one is independent, two
are executive director. Names of members are as under:

Name of Director Category Designation in Committee
Hafiz Imran Lateef ' Independent director * Chairman

Atique Ahmad Khan Executive director Member

Hafiz Faroog Ahmad Executive director/CED Member

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

GCIL is dedicated to sustainable business practices and its duties as a responsible corporate citizen. We believe that
Corporate Social Responsibility mainly involves conducting business transparently and ethically, which not only
increases the value for all our stakeholders but also supports events that improve community well-being.
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Your company recognizes its responsibilities towards sustainability and environmental stewardship. We aim to
ensure that these responsibilities not only reflect our commitment to our employees and our plant sites but also
extend beyond our gates to other stakeholders, including the communities in which we operate.

For many years, the Company has selected one employee annually through a ballot to perform Hajj, with the
expenses paid by the Company. GCIL sirives to be a trusted corporate entity and to fulfil its responsibilities towards
the environment and society as a whole.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS3

The Board of Directors, which consists of seven (07) members, has the responsibility to independently and

transparently monitor the performance of the Company and to make strategic decisions to achieve sustainable
growth in the Company's value.

Total number of directors:

Description Number of Direclors
Male 06
Female 01
Total 07

The composition of the Board is as follows:-

i. Independent directors:  Sheikh Muhammad Saleem Ahsan
Hafiz Imran Lateef

ii. Non-Executive direclors: Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan
Mr. Muhammad Hanif
Mrs. Rabia Atique

iii. Executive directors: Hafiz Farooq Ahmad
Mr. Atique Ahmad Khan

Femaie director: Ms. Rabia Atique
The Chairman board of directors is among the non-executive directors.

A written notice of the board meeting, together with working papers, was sent to the members seven days prior to the
meeting.

A total of seven (07) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year ended June 30, 2025. A leave of
absence was granted to the directors who were unable to attend some of the board meetings.

DURATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The current board of directors of the Company will retire on October 30, 2025. The board of directors of your
Company has fixed 07 directors forthe next term of 03 years. The agenda item for the election of directors is included
inthe notice of the Annual General Meeting.

BOARD EVALUATION:

In accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) and the Companies Act, 2017, the evaluation of the
Board, its committees, and individual directors was carried out.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ON ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG)

The Board actively participates in and strongly endorses the Company's ESG initiatives. The Company aims to
integrate ESG considerations into its strategy seamlessly. This promotes sustainable growth, mitigates risks, and
fosters trust with stakeholders. The Company's strategic objectives include environmental sustainability, social
responsibility, and effective governance. Key focus areas involve promoting diversity, ensuring employee well-being,
and engaging with the community. Decision-making is guided by ethical conduct, openness, transparency, and
prudent risk management.
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GENDER, RACE & DIVERSITY

Your Company demonstrated a commitment to cultivating a culture of inclusivity and diversity, where everyone has
the opportunity to thrive. We recognized diversity as a crucial driver of innovation and competitiveness. We remain
committed to continuing our efforts to create a workplace that reflects the diversity of our employees, including their
genders and races.

GCIL also actively promoted women's participation at all levels and provided equal opportunities for growth to
everyone.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND GRIEVANCES

The company places significant importance on its relations with investors and has established a grievance reporting
mechanism which seeks to resolve any complaints or unattended issues. To ensure that the stakeholders can
register their complaints conveniently, an online formis also available on the Company's website.

During the year, the Company has not received any complaints or grievances; however, certain requests for the
dispatch of physical reports were received, which were addressed to the satisfaction of the shareholders.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
The remuneration of executive directors, including the CED, is reviewed annually by the Board of Directors.

No remuneration, other than a Meeting Fee of Rs. 35,000 per meeting, is paid to non-executive and independent
directors for attending board meetings.

During the year under review, the total remuneration paid to the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director is
disclosed in Note No. 44 of the Audited Financial Statements of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Company has fully adhered to the best practices on transfer pricing as outlined in the listing regulations of the
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The transactions with related parties were conducted at arm's-length prices, determined
according to the comparable uncontrolled price method. During the year, the Company carried out transactions with
its related parties. Details of related party transactions are presented to the Audit Committee, and upon the Audit
Committee's recommendation, they are presented to the Board of Directors for review and approval in accordance
with regulatory requirements. Details of these transactions are disclosed in financial statements attached therein
(Note No. 45.1).

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

The chairman's review deals with the overall performance of the board and the effectiveness of the role played by the
board in achieving the company’s objectives for the year ended June 30, 2025, in compliance with section 192 (4) of
the Companies Act, 2017, and is annexed.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
A pattern of shareholding as required under section 227 (2) (f) ofthe Companies Act, 2017 is annexed.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between the end
of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report.
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The directors sincerely thank our valued stakeholders for their trust in the Company. We also wish to commend the
dedication of the Company's employees to their professional duties and the cooperation of the bankers and
government agencies, which have enabled the Company and its subsidiaries to achieve commendable performance
in both operational and financial areas.

We thank our shareholders who entrusted their confidence in the management of the Company, the officials of the
SECP the Pakistan Stock Exchange, all government functionaries, as well as the commandments of Allah
subhanatalizh and the Sunnah of our Prophet Muhammad (peace be upon him).

On behalf of the Board

Ay HW \/(
Lahore HAFIZ FARODQ AHMAD ATIQUE AHMAD KHAN
Dated: October, 04 2025 (Chief Executive Officer) (Director)
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QW paisran SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Report on the Audit of the Unconsoclidated Financial Statements
Opinion

Wa have nudited the annexed unconsolidated financial staternents of GHANI CHEMICAL
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (the Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial
position as at June 30, 2025, and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other
income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity. the unconsolidated
statemnent of cash fows for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial
siatements, including 8 summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
infarmaticn, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
hﬂdwwmm.mmhhpummh-ﬂ

:nmwwuhmﬁwmmmmmmmnmm
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and
mmmmm.hmmmmmnfmmhmmmm
unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the sccounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required
bym-cmm-mzummmmm.mnnmmmwmwgm-m
and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the profit and other
Wmhﬁmmmmummumnwmm.

Basis for Opinkon

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
wnmm.mwmmmnmmmmndhm
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsalidated Financial Statements section of our
mmt%mkﬂwuﬂuﬂdhﬂmhmmmmlﬂmmm
mmmm‘mamummmm“mwmwu
WMdWMM]!mwmmwmrﬁu
wmmmmmm.mmmmmwmnmmm

is sufficient and appropriate to provide @ basis for our opinioh
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matiers that. in our professional judgement, ware of most significance
hwmﬂmmwwmhmﬂw.mﬂmm;nm
mmnmwmmunwm-.mmmmm
n-piimhnuﬁ,mﬂmdumtprwﬁtsmﬂnpﬁmmﬂmmﬂ-l.

Following are the key audit matters: SWNs.

Principal Offica:
HM Housa
T-Bank Square, Lanora.
www. heopk com Tal: +82 42 3T235084-87 Other Offices:
sW.intemational Email: firgihccpk.com Warschi, istamabad & Multan =' Calalyst for success
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SW SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Koy audit mattors How tha matter was addressed in our audit

1.[Tha Scheme of Compromises,| Our audit procedures, amongst others,
Arrangements and Reconstruction for| Included the following:

ﬁnwm.hhl-mm&whmm
treatment of tha Scheme in the fight of the|
Movember 23, 2024, have unanimously| Courfs onder,

Main faatures of Scheme are as under; |- evaluated the intemal controls in place for
identifying, measuring and recording the|
- To carve out Calcium Carbide Project| Scheme and ensuring their accuracy;

Company st Hatter Special Emwriﬂl
Fona from the Company fo Brmi.mm-nhvﬂmMﬂlﬁmmmJ
ChemiWorld Lid. (GCWL). to the Scheme;

- To merge the left over assets of Ghani|- reviewed the Company's shareholders’
Products (Pvt) Lid. (GPL) with and intd| maetings minutes and resolutions related
e Company. the Scheme to ensure that the shareholders

- Ta issus ordinary shares to GCWL. had approved the transaction and that it was|
camied put in sccordance with their directives:

- Carving out of CACP from the Company|- ensured that the Courts Order was duly

land its transfer to GOWL and merger of| Complied with; and

GPL with and into the Company ara| - sasessad the adequacy of the disclosures in

considersd a key sucit matior due to the| the financiel statements made by

ot radire of : I Company with regard to the Scheme as per|
: the applicable accounting and reporting

of iz setlement and accounting| ciandamds

‘raatment in the financal stetements.

2. |Financing obligations and compliance| Our sudit procedures, smongst ofhars,

with relsted covenant requirements inciuded tha following:
(note 23)

outstanding long term financing facilites| egresments entarad Into by tha Company with
aggregating Rs.1,714 milion including various banks and financial mstitutions,

Rs.144.800 million obtained during Mel_ circidarised direct balance confirmations o
current  year,  which mmnmm--mw
approximately 24% of total fiabilities receipts and payments from relevant

the Company. statements;
S\

o Catalyst for success
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AN CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

&2 SW rnisr SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHR! & CO.

Koy audit matters How the matter was addressed In our audit

The Company's key operating /|- reviewed malurity analysis of financing
performance indicators including liquidity, muwdmwu
gearing and finance cost are directly| their remaining maturities,
]mﬂmqhdﬁmhhpﬂﬁ - assessed the atatus of compllance with

mmmmmm&mﬂ:l

and non-financial covenants for management with regard to their ability
Company to comply with. ensure fulure compliance with the covenants;
The significance of new financing|- checked on test basis the calculations of|
|obtained during the yeer along with the| finance cost recognised in the statement of
sensifivity of compliance with undaertying profit or loss; and
financing covenants are considered a -Mhmddm"'hl
amea of focus during the audt and] in respect of the long term financing
therefore, we have |dentified this as a key| obligations in the financial siatements.
audit matter.

3, |Contingencles (note 33) Our sudit procsdures, amongst others,

: included the following:

Company s subject o . discussed lagal cases with the internal legal
:;Ihm involving  different dapartment of the Company to undestand
pertaining to taxation and other matters,| management's wiew point, obtasined and
which regquire to make| reviewed the liigation documents lo Gssees

management  has m-mm‘mmmw
mmm legal counsels on thess with such cases in the form of confirmations;
mathers.

asssessment of provisioning 808 . evalusted the possible outcome of these legal
xHWIi:mﬁuwﬁ- cases in line with the requirements of IAS 3

requires  significant  judgements (Provisions,  contingent  liablities  and
determine the leval of cartainty on contingant assets), snd
matters.

along with|- discliosures of legal exposures and L
mmmmummmm were assessed for Mmum
disciosed In note 33 1o fthess| scouracy.
unconsolidated financial statements.

SWis

% Catalyst for success
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SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.

el S
W PAKISTAN CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 45

Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report
Thereon

Wuwmmmmm.mmwmn
|mmmwnmmmﬁammmmmmuﬁwmm|
statements and our auditors’ report tharean.

Our apinkon on the uncansolidated financial statements does not cover the olher Information snd
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion therson,

In connection with our audit of tha unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility s to read
the ather Information and, in doing so, consider whether the othes [nformation i materially
inconaistent with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
gtherwise appears to be materally misstated. If, based on the work we have perormed, wa
conclude that there is @ matarial misstatsment of this oher information, we are requined to report
that fact. We have nothing %o report in this regard.

wmﬁwmmumﬂmmuw“mm
Statoments

mwummuuwmmmanm
ﬁmﬁwhmmmmmwmm:mhmwm
Pakietan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such intarnal control
-Wmhmhmﬂhmmmmm
mmm:aﬁmmmﬂmmmumum«m.

dedm:hmpnumhrmmdmhcmmmmm.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

umummm’munhuhmﬂuplmm. Reascnable assurance i @ high level of
mmmnm-gmwmmmhmmm“uppﬁmh
Pﬂmumm;mﬂmmumwmmm
Mwawmmmmlr.mlmwnmmmmw
hmdhmu'nmmicmnfmuhMMHbﬂidm
unconsolidated financial statements.

jsa professional
hpﬂﬂmuﬂhhmﬂmw&hl&huupmmmm.mm
judgment and maintain professionsl skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. mmmﬂnrﬂndmmﬂmmmmmw

% Catalyst for success

Annual Report 2025




e’
- "‘.“
-

BV v SHIHEWINEM;HM!EEP!CHAUDHRI&CD.

Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procadures that are appropriate in the clrcumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing
mmmmmdmwmmmﬂ,

e FEvsluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
sccounting estimates and retated disclosures made by management.

. Gmmmhwmmdmmmmdmﬂﬂmwnmﬂ
mm,Mmummmm-mﬂw
mmumUmummmmmemms
thmunnniumnllumﬂmﬂ-mﬁmwmmm
nmnmmm«:ﬂh’muﬂ-mumnm
mm:,ﬁmmnmmmwmnOW
mﬂm“mﬁmhmmmmhmdwrm'mn
Hm.ﬁﬂnnvﬂwmﬂummwmﬂ:ﬁmmmmhmﬁlwma
qoing CONGE.

- mmumﬂlmmmmmmmmmnm
ﬂmmmnm,MMrmmmm:m
WMMMMMMhnMMMﬁ

presentation

mwmﬂmﬂmmddmﬂgﬂdm.mmmhm!mm
mmdmmmwmm. including any significant deficiencies in
intarnal control that we identify during our sudit.

annmmmammnmmm“mmmmﬂ
mmmw.ﬂhmummnmm
mmmmwhWHmemmmm

related safeguards.

mmmmmww
Eﬂdmwluﬂ.w-mm-mpmmnthmrnpinm:
1) Wbﬂﬂdmﬂmmmmmwawﬂdwmmn
Agt, 2017 (XX of 2017);

MWHMMH.NMWMHMw

" :wwww.memamhmm
nummdmmwmumwmm
muphﬁmﬂyﬂhh&ﬂm“ﬂﬁﬂpﬂﬂdiﬂﬂ]mﬂmhm

with the books of account and retums; Sw\‘sﬁ'

% Catalyst for success
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SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

¢} investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for
the purposa of the Company's business; and

d) zakat deduchible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980) was
deducted by the Company and deposited in tha Central Zakat Fund established under

section 7 of that Ondinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ reporl is

Nafees ud din.

LAHORE; Oclober 06, 2025
UDIN:AR20251019564V hraJA

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited

a1

Srive o~ Crondinée
SHINEWING D CHAUDHRI & CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

%  Catalyst for success
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Intangible assets

Long term investments

Long term deposits

Curmrent assets

Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Tax refunds due from Govemment
Prepaid tax levies

Advance income tax

Short term investments

Cash and bank balances

Tolal assets

Equity and liabilities

Share capital and reserves
Share capital

Share premium

Revaluation surplus on freehold and leasehold land
Merger reserve

Loans from directors
Unappropnated profit

Total equity

MNon-current liabilities
Long term finances
Redeemable capital - Sukuk
Long term security deposits
Lease liabilities

Deferred liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

Accrued profit

Short term borrowings

Current portion of non-current liabilities
Provision for tax levies

Taxation

Unclaimed dividend

Unpaid dividend

Total liabilities
Contingencies and commitments
Total equity and liabilities

19
20
21

23.10

23
24
25
26
27

28

K}
32

a3

2025 2024
Restated

Rupees in thousand
9,439,418 10,568,886
531,758 547,649
1479 1,479
20,575 20,075
66,616 66,616
10,059,846 11,204,705
427 844 362,135
94,839 160,587
2,081,861 2,142,223
1,650,403 1,336,248
358,297 590,358
59,219 93,841
2077 516
677,774 421,970
100,000 100,000
735,796 468,054
6,188,110 5,675,932
16,247 956 16,880,637
5,704,519 5,001,879
0 164.011
0 735,087
0 1,342,746
40,000 0
3,458,855 2,609,851
9,203,374 9,853,574
1,214,392 1.640 536
0 800,000
79,366 70,138
5,906 5,858
1,017,093 832 854
607,681 313,738
92,026 644,340
148,840 336,120
2,908,741 1,580,482
528,022 486 870
1,811 654
437,798 314,984
491 441
2415 0
4,727,825 3,677,679
7,044,582 7,027,063
16,247,956 16,880,637

The annexed notes 1 to 54 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial slatements.

it Sgger AL

Hafiz Faroogq Ahmad
{Chief Execulive Officer)

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 52

—" Asitn Mahmud
{Chief Financial Officer)

Afique Ahmad Khan

{Direcior)
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Restated
Note Rupees in thousand
Sales 34 8,739,189 6,394,859
Less: sales tax 34  (1,303,769) (957 ,472)
Sales - net 7,435,420 5,437,387
Cost of sales 35 (4,023,390) (3,824,876)
Gross profit 3,412,030 1,612,511
Distribution cost 36 (205,483) (144,685)
Administrative expenses 37 (282,112) (242,069)
Other expenses 38 (225,033) (103,015)
Other income 39 392,322 551,108
(320,306) 61,339
Profit from operations 3,091,724 1,673,850
Finance cost 40 (453,021) (389,367)
Profit before taxation, minimum and final tax levies 2,638,703 1,284 483
Minimum and final tax levies 41 (1.811) (654)
Profit before taxation 2,636,892 1,283,829
Taxation 42 (620,697) (498,022)
Profit after taxation 2,016,195 785807
Other comprehensive income
Surplus arisen upon revaluation of:
- freehold land 5.2 0 123,040
- leasehold land 52&6.1 0 114,769
0 237,809
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,016,195 1,023,616
Rupees ——
Earnings per share 43 3.92 1.58

The annexed notes 1 to 54 form an integral part of these unconsoclidated financial statements.

Y M “\/<

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad Atique Ahmad Khan
(Chief Executive Officer) [Ch;ef Financial L‘Ii'limr} (Director)
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance a5 al Juns 30, 2023

Total comprehensive income for e
year ended June 30, 2024

Balanes a8 al June 30, 2024
Transsctions with owners- distribution
Caah dividend paid for the period of six
months ended December 31, 2024

at the rale of Re. 0060 per share

Adjusiments incorporaled as per Uhe
Scheme as delailed in note 1.2

Balance ransleqed frofm mark-up
bearing loans of direclors

tumwﬂmmimhrm
year ended June 30, 2025

Balance &s al June 3, 2025

The snnexed noles 1 bo 54 form an inlegral part of these unconsolidaled Anancial statements.

s

Hafiz Faroodq Ahrmad
[Chief Executive Officor)

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited

Capilal reserves
Reverie
Nivhbantion Loans Pesefve
Share | SUTPMIS OO | e trom unappr- Total
. presmium wll ﬂl . reserve | Direclors | opriated
tand
Rupees in thousand
5,001,879 164,011 49T ITE 1342746 o 1,524 044 828 858
o o 237 509 i} a TBS. 807 1.023,616
5,001,870 164011 TISNET 1,342 746 a 2,600 851 8,853,574
0 0 0 0 0 (300113)  (300,113)
7O2640  [164041) [735,08T) [1,342.745) 0 (BET.OVE) [2.40632687)
a o L] 1] 40,000 1] 40,000
] o L) '} 2 206,185 206,185
5,704,518 o o 1] 40,000 3.458 855 9,203,374
S \K
a
Asim Mahrmud Atique Ahmad Khan
{Chief Financial Officer] (Director)
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year - before taxation, minimum and final tax levies
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Finance cost 40
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 53
Depreciation 5.6
Depreciation on right-of-use assels [
Allowance for expected credit loss 121
Adjustments incorporated as per the

Scheme as delailed in note 1.2
Profit before working capital changes
Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Slores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Short term investments
Tax refunds due from Government
(Decrease) / increase in trade and
other payables and contract liabilities

Note

Cash generated from operations

Income tax, minimum and final tax levies paid

MNet cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure - net of transfers to GCWL

Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assels 53
Long term investments made 8
Long term deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term finances (repaid) / oblained - net

Redeemable capital - Sukuik:

- issued 24
- transferred / redeemed 24
Long term security deposits - net

Short term borrowings

Lease liabilities 26
Finance cost paid

Dividends paid

Met cash generated from financing activities

Net increase [ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 18
Bank balance acquired on merger of GPL into GCIL 1.3

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 18
The annexed notes 1 to 54 form an integral p

Ay s W :
Hafiz Farooq Ahmad Asim Mahmud
{Chief Executive Officer) {Chief Financial Officer)
Ghani Chemical Indusiries Limibed 55

2025 2024
{(Rupees in thousand)
2,638,703 1,284,483
453,021 389,367
(6,063) (74,185)
204,890 176,432
15,891 14,332
38,193 5,000
{938,533) 0
2,406,102 1,795,429
(65,709) (48,290)
65,748 (81,212)
22,169 (1.038,998)
(314,155) 158,211
232,061 (146,788)
0 811,000
34,622 (59,611)
{258,371) 548,238
{283,635) 142,550
2,122 467 1,937,979
{566,698) {222 B72)
1,555,769 1,715,307
(1,359,441) (3.,529,549)
19,811 243,287
(500) (20,075)
0 577
(1,340,130) (3.305.760)
{350,228) 597,012
L] 800,000
L] (162,500)
9,230 21,045
1,328,259 453,043
64 69
(640,046) (175,335)
{297,698) 0
49,581 1,533,334
265,220 (57.119)
468,054 525173
2,522 0
735,796 468,054

of thes.e unconsolidated financial statemen

N

Atique Ahmad Khan
[Director)
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

11 Ghani Chemical Industries Lid. { GCIL - the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a
private limited company on November 23, 2015 under the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and was converted info a public limited company on
April 20, 2017. The Company is principally engaged in manufacturing, sale and trading of
medical & industrial gases and chemicals. The registered office and head office of the
Company are situated at 10-N, Model Town Extension, Lahore whereas production
facilities are situated at Phool MNagar, District Kasur and Industrial Zone, Port Qasim,
Karachi. The Company’s liaison office is situated in Sangjani, District Rawalpindi.

Ghani Global Holdings Ltd.'s { GGHL - the Holding Company) direct and indirect holding in
the Company is 55.93% as at June 30, 2025; therefore, the Company has been treated a
Subsidiary of GGHL.

GGHL holds 279905986 (2024: 279905983) ordinary shares of the Company
representing 49.07% ( 2024: 55.96%) of its paid-up capital as at June 30, 2025.

As per the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction (the Scheme), as
sanciioned by the Lahore High Court, Lahore on February 06, 2019, the Holding Company
had transfemred its manufacturing undertaking to the Company on July 08, 2019 after the
effective date.

The Company's shareholders in the exiraordinary general meeting held on
November 23, 2024, have unanimously approved the Scheme of Compromises,
Ammangement and Reconstruction for Demerger / Merger of Ghani Chemical Indusfries Lid.
(GCIL) and Ghani ChemWorld Ltd. (GCWL) and Ghani Products (Pvt) Ltd. (GPL) by
passing the special resolutions under the provisions of sections 279 to 283 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and other applicable provisions. Main features of the Scheme are as
under:

- To carve out Calcium Carbide Project that is being set-up by the Company at Hattar
Special Economic Zone from GCIL to GCWL.

- To merge the left over assets of GPL with and into GCIL against one fo one swap ratio.

- To issue 500 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each of GCWL against 1,000 ordinary shares of
GCIL of Rs.10 each.

- To issue and allot 70 million additional ordinary shares of GCIL to GCWL.
- To list GCWL at Pakistan Stock Exchange after submission of requisite documents.

1.2 The Scheme of Compromises, Arrangements and Reconstruction for Amalgamation

Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd. (GCIL), Ghani ChemWorld Ltd. (GCWL) and Ghani
Products (Pvi.) Lid. (GPL) [ the Petitioners | have filed a joint petition under sections 279 to
283 and 285 of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and all other enabling provisions of law
before the Lahore High Court (LHC) for sanction of the Scheme of Compromises,
Ammangements and Reconstruction (the Scheme) for amalgamation between the
Petitioners and their members.
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The LHC, vide its order dated February 20, 2025, in terms of section 282 (3) (4) and (5) of
the Act has ordered as follows:

- In terms of the Scheme, the whole of the business and underiaking of Calcium Carbide
Project (CACP) of GCIL be transferred and vest in GCWL without any further act or deed
including all assets, liabilities, properties, rights, privileges, benefits of contracts, sanctions,
authorizations, licenses and obligations of each of GCIL.

- In terms of the Scheme, designated assefs of GPL be transferred and vest intp GCIL
together with all assets, liabilities, properties, rights, privileges, benefits of contracts,
sanciions, authorizations, licenses and obligations of each of GPL.

- In terms of the Scheme, shares of GCIL held by GPL be transferred to shareholders of
GPL. Thereafter, GPL shall be dissolved without winding up in terms of the Scheme.

GCIL is principally engaged in the manufacturing, selling and trading of medical &
industrial gases and chemicals. To cater the growing demand for products in the medical
sector, industries and development projects in K.P.K. and Northem areas, GCIL has been
engaged for the set-up of its 5th Air Separation Unit Plant for medical & industrial gases
and Calcium Carbide manufacturing plant at Hattar Special Economic Zone, District
Haripur.

GCWL has been incorporated on July 31, 2024 under the Act as wholly owned Subsidiary
of GCIL. GCWL will run / operate calcium carbide and related producis project. Main
purpose of the formation of GCWL is to transfer CACP from GCIL to GCWL.

The salient features of the Scheme are as follows:
a) CACP has been carved out / separated from GCIL and transferred to GCWL.

b) All licenses, incentives, zone enterprise status, concessions, approvals including
approvals from Department of Explosives, Department of Environment, electricity
connection from PESCO related to CACP, tax holidays under clause 126 E of Part 1 of the
Second Schedule under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 available to GCIL for the project
being set-up at Hattar Special Economic Zone announced by the Government of K.PK.
and Govemment of Pakistan are available to GCWL under the Scheme.

c) Shares of GCWL have been issued (as an additional capital) to the shareholders of
GCIL under the SWARP ratio i.e. 500 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each of GCWL against 1,000
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each of GCIL. GCWL has allotted 250,093,950 shares for
consideration otherwise than in cash to the shareholders of GCIL.

d) GCIL is engaged in operating / running the medical / industrial gases plants.

e) Additional shares of GCIL have also been issued to GCWL under the Scheme to help
GCWL to access the revenue siream of established projects.

f) Part of assets and liabilities of GPL have been fransferred to GCIL and part of assets
(net) have been distributed to the shareholders of GPL.

g) Shares of GCIL {as an additional capital) have been issued to the shareholders of GPL
under the SWAP rafio i.e. 8.80 shares of GCIL for every share of GPL.

h) Shares of GCIL held by GPL have been distributed to the shareholders of GPL.

i) Upon the completion of merger / amalgamation through the Scheme, GPL has been
dissolved by the order of the LHC without winding up and the issuance of shares of GCIL
to the registered shareholders of GPL.

i) Retained eamnings, revenue reserves, capital reserves and merger reserves of GCIL and
GCWL have been re-characterised / reconstructed under the Scheme.
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1.3 Financial Effects of the Scheme:

a) M/s llyas Saeed & Co., Chartered Accountants (extermnal Auditors of GCWL) have
carried out an agreed upon procedures exercise io exiract the assets, reserves and
liabilities pertaining to CACP from the un-audited unconsolidated interim statement of
financial position of GCIL as at February 20, 2025. M/s llyas Saeed & Co., vide their report
bearing Ref. No. Af00187/25 dated March 14, 2025, have determined the following values
for assets, reserves and liabilities pertaining to CACP as at February 20, 2025 :

Rupees in
thousand
Property, plant and equipment
- pperating fixed assets 298,838
- capital work-in-progress 1,915,010
- stores held for capital expenditure 56,423
2270271
Stores, spares and loose tools 188,322
Stock-in-trade 309,620
Loans and advances 357,719
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 200,711
Short term investments 100,000
1,156,372
3,426,643
Redeemable capital- Sukuk (800,000)
Trade and other payables (204,787)
Accrued profit (12,691)
Adjustment (243)
{1.017,721)
Met assets fransferred by GCIL to GCWL 2,408,922

GCIL has incorporated the aforementioned net assets of Rs.2.409 billion in its books of
account as follows:

- Issued 70,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each to GCWL (700,000)

- Utilised following reserves appearing in its books of account:

- Share premium 164,011
- Revaluation surplus on freehold and leasehold land 735,087
- Merger reserve 1,342,746
- Unappropriated profit 867,078

2,408,922
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b) The following net assets of GPL, as per the Scheme, have been transferred to GCIL by

GPL:
Rupees in
thousand
Advance income tax 790
Cash and bank balances 2,522
Trade and other payables (366)
Taxation (63)
Adjustment (243)
MNet assets transferred by GPL to GCIL. 2,640
263,960 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued to shareholders
of GPL by GCIL 2,640

1.4 Disclosure in financial statements

The aforementioned adjustments and entries have been duly reflected in the relevant
notes to these unconsolidated financial statements.

1.5 Employees and Contracts

Employees of GCIL engaged in CACP, on the effective date, have become employees of
GCWL on the basis that their services have not been interrupted by the transfer and
vesting of the underiaking and business of GCIL into GCWL on the same remuneration
and benefits.

1.6 Accounting policy

As per the Scheme, the accounting entries in the books of account of GCWL have been
recorded at the respective values appearing in the books of account of GCIL on the date
preceding the effective date. For profit and loss items in the books of account, only effect
has been shown in the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity.

As per the Scheme, the accounting enfries in the books of account of GCIL have been
recorded at the respective values appearing in the books of account of GPL on the date
preceding the effective date. For profit and loss items in the books of account, only effect
has been shown in the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

21 Statement of compliance

These unconsclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and
reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017,

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.
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22 Accounting convention

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except where otherwise specifically stated.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the curmency
of primary economic environment in which the Company operates. These unconsolidated
financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information has been rounded-off to the nearest thousand of Rupees
unless otherwise stated.

2.4 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In preparing these unconsolidated financial statements, management has made
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Company's
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
estimates are recognised prospectively.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's
unconsolidated financial statements or where judgement was exercised in application of
accounting policies are as follows:

- Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment.

- Provision for impairment of inventories.

- Allowance for expected credit loss.

- Impairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventories.

- Estimation of provisions.

- Estimation of contingent liabilities.

- Provisions for current taxation, minimum tax and final tax levies and recognition of
deferred tax asset (for camied forward tax losses).

The revisions o accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in the year in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision and
future year if the revision affects both current and future years.

3. INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO
EXISTING STANDARDS

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable
to the Company's unconsolidated financial statements cowvering annual periods, beginning
on or after the following dates:

31 Standards, amendments and interpretations to accounting standards that are
effective in current year

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) are effective for accounting period beginning on July 01, 2024 but are
considered not fo be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's
operations (although they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events)
and are, therefore, not detailed in these unconsolidated financial statements, except for the
following:
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Amendment to International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 - Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current

Under existing IAS 1 reguirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do
not have an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the end of the reporting period. As part of this amendment, the requirement for a right
to be unconditional has been removed and instead, the amendment requires that a right to
defer settlement must have substance and exist at the end of the reporting period. This
right may be subject to a Company complying with conditions (covenanis) specified in a
loan arrangement. The I|ASB, after reconsidering ceriain aspects of the amendment,
reconfirmed that only covenants with which a Company must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. Covenants
with which the Company must comply after the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not
affect a liability's classification at that date. However, when non-current liabilities are
subject to future covenants, companies will now need to disclose information to help users
understand the risk that those liabilities could become repayable within 12 months after the
reporting date.

The above amendment did not result in any significant changes to these unconsolidated
financial statements.

3.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

There are certain standards, amendments to the accounting standards and interpretations
that are mandatory for the Company's accounting periods beginning on or after July 01,
2025 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the
Company's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these unconsolidated financial
statements, except for the following:

(a) IFRS 51 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability - Related Financial
Information and IFRS 52 Climate - Related Disclosures (effective for annual period
beginning on July 01, 2025)

These standards include the core framework for the disclosure of material information
about sustainability - related risks, opporiunities across an entity's value chain and set out
the reguirements for enfities to disclose information about climate - related risks and
opportunities.

IFRS 51 requires entities to disclose information about its sustainability - related risks and
opportunities that is useful to primary users of general purpose financial reporting in
making decisions relating to providing resources to the entity. The standards provide
guidance on identifying sustainability - related risks and opportunities, and the relevant
disclosures to be made in respect of those sustainability - related risks and opportunities.

IFRS 52 is a thematic standard that builds on the requirements of IFRS 51 and is focused
on climate-related disclosures. IFRS 52 requires an entity to identify and disclose climate-
related risks and opportunities that could affect the entity’s prospecis over the short,
medium and long term. In addition, IFRS S2 requires entities to consider other industry-
based metrics and seven cross-industry metrics when disclosing qualitative and
guantitative components on how the entity uses metrics and targets to measure, monitor
and manage the identified material climate-related risks and opportunities. The cross-
industry metrics include disclosures on greenhouse gas ('GHG") emissions, transition risks,
physical risks, climate-related opportunities, capital deployment, internal carbon prices and
remuneration.
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(b) Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 - Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments (effective for annual period beginning on January 01, 2026)

The amendments:

- clarify the requirements for the timing of recognition and derecognition of some financial
assets and liabilities, with a new exception for some financial liabilities settled through an
electronic cash transfer system;

- clarify and add further guidance for assessing whether a financial asset meets the solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) criterion;

- add new disclosures for certain insiruments with coniractual terms that can change cash
flows (such as some instruments with features linked to the achievement of environment,
social and governance (ESG) targets); and

- make updates to the disclosures for equity instruments designated at Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

An important clarification brought about in these amendments is that a payment instruction
{e.g. a cheque) that is prepared for a fulure payment will generally not meet the
requirements for the financial liability to be discharged and hence derecognised. The
previous practice of financial liabilities being derecognised upon issuance of cheques
would need fo be reconsidered.

(c) Annual improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards — Volume 11
(effective for annual period beginning on January 01, 2026)

Annual improvements are limited to changes that either clanfy the wording in an
Accounting Standard or comect relatively minor unintended consegquences, oversights or
conflicts between the requirements in the Accounting Standards. The 2024 amendments
are to the following standards:

- IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards;

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and its accompanying Guidance on
implementing IFRS 7;

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments;
- IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements; and
- |1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

(d) IFRS 18 - Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (effective for
annual period beginning on January 01, 2027)

This is the new standard on presentation and disclosure in financial statements, with a
focus on updates to the statement of profit or loss. The key new concepts introduced in
IFRS 18 relate to:

- the structure of the statement of profit or loss;

- required disclosures in the financial statements for certain profit or loss performance
measures that are reported outside an entity's financial statements (that is, management-
defined performance measures); and
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- enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary
financial statements and notes in general.

The Company is yet to assess the impact of this standard on its unconsolidated financial
statements.

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated
financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the
unconsolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024.

4.1 IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes (the
Guidance) issued by ICAP (Adoption of Approach 2)

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has issued the aforementioned
Guidance through Circular No. 07 / 2024 dated May 15, 2024. The Circular has suggested
two approaches for determination of taxes as per IAS 12 and levy as per IFRIC 21.

Upto June 30, 2024, the Company has applied Approach 1 and minimum and final taxes
were presented as ‘minimum and final tax levies'. The Company, during the current year,
has adopted Approach 2 and the portion of tax computed on taxable income at the
enacted tax rate has been recognised as income tax expense and the balance expense
has been recognised as levy.

The aforesaid Guidance has been applied retrospectively by the Company, and
comparative information has been restated, which has not affected cumrent year's or prior
years' net sales, profit after taxes and levies, equity or cash flows. The impact as of July
01, 2023 is not material to these unconsolidated financial statements. In accordance with
the requirements of IAS 1 (Presentation of financial statements), balances as at June 30,
2024 have been restated and third statement of financial position as of July 01, 2023 has
not been presented due to immaterial impact.

In the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended June 30, 2024,
'minimum and final tax levies’ aggregating Rs.210.782 million under Approach 1 have
been reclassified to Rs.0.654 million under Approach 2 whereas current taxation expense
for the preceding year amounting Rs.103.596 million has been increased to Rs.313.731
million under Approach 2.

In the unconsclidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, 'provision for tax
levies' amounting Rs.212.217 million previously reported under Approach 1 has been
reciassified and stated at Rs.0.654 million under Approach 2 whereas ‘taxation' amounting
Rs.103.421 million previously reported under Approach 1 has been reclassified and stated
at Rs.314.984 million under Approach 2 .

The aforesaid accounting treatments have not affected current and prior year's net sales,
profit after taxes and levies, equity or cash flows.

4.2 Property, plant and equipment
a) Owned
Measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment other than freehold and leasehold land are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold and
leasehold land are stated at revalued amounts.
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Residual value and the useful life of assets are reviewed at each financial year end and if
expectations differ from previous estimates the change is accounted for as change in
accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8 - Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's cammying amount or recognised as a separate
assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
MNormal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and
when incurred.

Revaluation

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of freehold and leasehold land
are recognised, in statement of other comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves
in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously
recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in statement of
profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first
recognised in statement of other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining
surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or
loss.

Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using the reducing balance method.
Depreciation on additions to property, plant and eguipment is charged from the date on

which the asset is acquired or capitalised, while no depreciation is charged from the date
on which the asset is disposed-off.

De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or

retirement of an asset is represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised as an income or expense.

Judgement and estimates

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each year-end. The effect of any change in estimates is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

b) Right of use assets and related liabilities

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease based on whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of ime in exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The extension
and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise these opfions.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and comresponding liabilities at the date at
which the leased assets are available for use by the Company.

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental bormowing
rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental bommowing rate as the discount rate. At
initial recognition, habiliies have been discounted using the Company's incremental
bormowing rate. Lease payment includes fixed payments with annual increments. The
lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate.
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Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities
adjusted for any lease paymenis made at or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line
method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of fulure economic benefits. The carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced by impaimrment losses, if any.

c) Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure on item of property, plant and equipment,
which are in the course of construction, erection or installation.

Capital work-in-progress and stores held for capital expenditure are stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss. All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during
installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. Transfers
are made to respective property, plant and equipment category as and when assets are
available for use.

4.3 Intangible assets - Software

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment
loss. An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and that the cost of such asset can
also be measured reliably.

Software is amortised using straight line method at the rate given in note 7.1 to these
unconsolidated financial statements. Amortisation is charged fo statement of profit or loss
from the date on which the asset is available for use. Amortisation on additions is charged
on pro-rata basis from the date on which asset is put to use, while for disposals,
amortisation is charged upto the date of disposal.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All expenditure
are charged to income as and when incurred. Gain or loss arising on disposal and
retirement of intangible asset is determined as a difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised as income or expense in
statement of profit or loss immediately.

4.4 Investments - Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiares are measured at cost. As per the requirements of |IAS 27
(Separate financial statementis) in separate financial siatements at subsequent reporting
dates, the recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impaimment loss,
if any, and camying amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses
are recognised as an expense in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Where
impairment losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the investments are
increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of
investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the unconsolidated statement

of profit or loss.

Profit or loss of the subsidiaries is camed forward in respective financial statements and
not dealt within the unconsolidated financial statements except to the extent of dividend
declared by the subsidiary, which is recognised in other income. Gain and loss on disposal
of such investment is included in other income. When the disposal of investment in
subsidiary resuited in loss of control such that it becomes an associate, the retained
investment is camied at cost.
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4.5 Stores, spares and loose tools

These are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by using the
weighted average method. tems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value,
plus other charges paid thereon. Provision is also made for slow moving and obsolete
items.

4.6 Stock-in-trade
These are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is determined as

follows:

Particulars Mode of valuation

- Raw and packing materials At weighted average cost.

- Work-in-process At weighted average manufacturing cost.
- Finished goods At weighted average manufacturing cost.
- ltems in transit Cost comprise invoice values plus other

charges incurred thereon.

Met realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

4.7 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Allowance is made on the basis of lifetime expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts and other
receivables. Bad debis are written-off when considered irecoverable.

4.8 Loans, advances, prepayments and trade deposits

These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given. The
Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets
excluding inventory may be impaired. If such indication exisis, the camying amounis of
such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their
recoverable amount. Where camying value exceeds recoverable amount, assets are
written down to the recoverable amount and the difference is charged to statement of
profit or loss.

4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the
purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand,
banking instrument (call deposit receipt) and cash at banks, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

410 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the
Company.

411 Bormrowings and borrowing costs

Bommowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of fransaction cosis incurred and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incumed
except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a gqualifying asset Such borrowing costs, if any, are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
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412 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial
position when the Company becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All the financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Company loses
control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are
derecognised at the time when they are exiinguished that is, when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gains or losses on de-recognition
of the financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

a) Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
i} amortised cost where the effective interest rate method is applied,

ii) fair value through profit or loss; and

i) fair value through other comprehensive income.

The classification depends on the Company's business mode! for managing the financial
assets and the confractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in statement of
profit or loss or other comprehensive income (OCI).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the
date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset Further, financial
asseis are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), fransaction costs

that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets camied at FVTPL are expensed in statement of profit or loss.

Definition of default

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for intemal credit
risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

- information developed intemnally or obfained from extemal sources indicate that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Company).

Iimpairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a historical as well as forward-looking basis, the expected
credit loss (ECL) as associated with its trade debts. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
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Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:
- Trade debts

- Bank balances

Simplified approach for trade debts

The Company recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes;

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Recognition of loss allowance

The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their camying amount through
a loss allowance account.

Write-off

The Company writes-off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. The assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is based on
unavailability of debtor's sources of income or assets to generate sufficient future cash
flows to repay the amount.

The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off result in impairment gains.

b) Financial Liabilities
Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:
i} fair value through profit or loss; and
ii) other financial liabilities.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of other financial
liabilities also include directly attributable transaction costs. The subsequent measurement
of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

i) Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon inifial recognition as being at fair value
through profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability upon
recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

iii) Other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are

recognised in statement of profit or loss for the year, when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through effective interest rate amortisation process.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when and only when the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amount
and there is an intenfion to setile on a net basis, or realise the asset and setfle the liability
simultaneously.

413 Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

The assets that are subject to depreciation are assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication that the assets are impaired. If there is an
indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and
compared with its cammying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. The impaiment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset camrying amount does not
exceed the cammying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. The Company recognises the reversal immediately
in the statement of profit or loss.

414 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

- Revenue from sale of goods or rendering of services is recognised when performance
obligations are safisfied by transferring control (i.e. at the time when deliveries are
made or services are rendered) of a promised good or service to a customer, and
confrol either fransfers over time or at a point in time. Revenue from sale of goods and
rendering of services is measured net of sales tax, retums and trade discounts.

- Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right io receive dividend is
established, i.e. on the date of books closure of the investee company declaring the
dividend.

- Gains and losses arising on disposal of investments are included in income in the year
in which these are disposed-off.

- Return on bank deposits is recognised on time proportion basis using the effective rate
of return.

Contract assets
Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by
transferring goods and services to a customer before the customer pays its consideration
or before payment is due.
Conftract liabilities
Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods and services to a
customer for which the Company has received consideration from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods and services, a contract

liability is recognised when the payment is made. Confract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.
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4.15 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Pak Rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated in Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date.
Exchange gains and losses are taken to statement of profit or loss.

416 Taxation
Taxation comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if
any, in which case the tax amounts are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
or equity.

(a) Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation
after taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any. The charge for current
year also includes adjusiments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from
assessments framed [ finalised during the year.

(b)  Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the statement of financial position liability method on all
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amountis appearing in the financial statements. Deferred tax liability is recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that temporary differences will
reverse in the future and taxable income will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of profit or
loss.

Defemred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

417 Levies
Minimum taxes, that exceed the normal tax liability as well as tax deducted at source
{other than from dividends received from subsidiaries and associates) under the provisions
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), are not within the scope of IAS 12

{Income taxes) instead these taxes fall under the provisions of IFRIC 21 (Levies) and IAS
37 (Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets).

Consequently, a liability for these levies is recognised in accordance with IFRIC 21 when
the event specified in the Ordinance that triggers the obligation occurs. Therefore, excess
minimum taxes and final taxes are recognised as liabilities when they become due,
ensuring compliance with the recognition and measurement principles outlined in IAS 37.

418 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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419 Related party transactions

Transactions and contracts with related parties are based on the policy that all fransactions
between the Company and related parties are camied-out at an arm's length.

420 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation, legal or
constructive, as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third parly, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be
measured reliably.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in
laws, regulations, public expectations, prices and conditions, and can take place many
years in future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustiment to the amount of previously
recognised provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision
was originally recognised as part of cost of an asset

4.21 Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company
- has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be confirmed

only by the occurrence or non-occummence, of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company; or

- has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seitle the obligation, or the amount of obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

4.22 Employees’ benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a funded employees' provident fund scheme for its permanent
eligible employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 8.33% of gross pay are
made both by the Company and employees to the fund.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences are accounted for employees of the Company on un-availed
balance of leave in the period in which the absences are eamed.

4.23 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intermal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.
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Segment assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment assets consist primarily of
property, plant & equipment, stores, spares & loose tools and stock-in-frade. Segment
liabilities comprise of long term finances, lease liabilities, short term borrowings and trade
& other payables.

On the basis of its intermmal reporting structure, the Company has two reportable segments
i.e. Industrial & Medical Gases and Industrial Chemicals.

4.24 Deferred income - government grant

Govermmment grant is initially measured at fair value; after initial recognition, it is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

4.25 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are
recognised in the period in which these are approved.

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Note 2025 2024

Rupees in thousand
Operating fixed assets 5.1 9,215,763 6,792,002
Capital work-in-progress 5.8 48,290 3,158,662
Stores held for capital expenditure 511 175,365 618,222
9,439 418 10,568,886
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3.1

Operating fixed assets - tangible
Fumiture  Office
Frechold Leasehold Buiiding Plant and ad  equpmen Compulers Vehicks  Totl
tand kand 5 machinery
fictures t
******************************** Rupees in thousand- - - - -« ==« = seccecsnsannaacanaas
As al June 30, 2023
Cost/ revaluation 1230400 375000 464441 5012706 49461 12490 15399 278957 7388854
Accumulated depreciation ] 0 217624 813,518 12632 415 130T T34 1147181
Book value 1230400 375000 246817 4,193,188 26,829 B34 3492 151613 6241673
Year ended June 30, 2024
Additions 0 (AL 516 399,257 3gm 3235 2365 34735 721,161
Revaluation adjustments
(note 5.2} 123040 51862 0 o ] ] ] 0 174702
Disposals:
-cost/ revaluation ] 0 0 53573 ] 544 0 147463 201580
- accumulated depreciation 0 0 0 (2,062) (283) 0 (30133  (32478)
0 o 0 51,511 0 261 0 17330 169,102
Depreciation charge
for the year ] 0 2474 97,912 2885 1,048 1336 48527 176432
Book value 1353440 433840 222609 4,449,022 27819 10260 4521 290491 6,792,002
Year ended June 30, 2025
Additions ] 0 926 2672875 70 15508 4074 240854 2941237
Transferred to GCWL as per the
Scheme as detailed in note 12
-cost | revaluation 0 293480 0 3958 157 364 2,966 300325
-accumulated depreciation 0 0 0 (662) {8) (165) (1,252 (2.087)]
0 293480 0 o 329 143 199 1714 298838
Disposals:
-cost 0 0 0 45 0 0 18043 18,088
-accumulated depreciation 0 0 0 (&) 0 0 0 [4334) (4,340))
-cost 0 L] 0 u 0 0 0 13708 13,748
Depreciation charge
for the year ] 0 222% 105,757 3093 1345 1838 70561 204,890
Book value 1353440 140360 201238 7,016,101 28430 24274 6558 445361 9215763
As at June 30, 2024
Cost/ revaluation 1353440 433840 464957 5,358,390 53336 15181 17764 386229 BOB3I13T
Accumulated depreciation 0 0 242348 909,368 5517 481 13,243 95738 1291135
Book value 1353440 433340 222800 4440022 27819 10260 4521 290491 6,792,002
As at June 30, 2025
Cost/ revaluation 1353440 140360 465883 8031220 56378 30512 21474 606074 10,705,361
Accumulated depreciation 0 0 264644 1015119 27948 6258 14916 160713 1,489,508
Book value 1353440 140360 201238 7,016,101 /A0 I 6558 445361 9215763
240,000
Depreciation rate (% - per annum) 50-100 years 10% Machine hours  10% 10% 30% 20%
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5.2

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The Company, during May, 2024, has camied-out revaluations of its freehold and
leasehold land situated at :
- 52 - Km, Phool Magar, District Kasur
- Mouza Pama, Phool Nagar, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur
- Plot Nos. 7 and 8, 9to 12, B2, 13-24, B3, B4, Zone - B, Hattar.
Plot Nos. 13-24 and B3, B4 have been transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme as
detailed in note 1.2
The revaluation exercises have been camied-out by independent Valuers | Unicom
International Surveyors, 74-B , Gulberg i, Lahore.]. Freehold land has been revalued on
the basis of present market values whereas leasehold land has been revalued on the
basis of estimated prevailing lease rate. These revaluations have resulted in revaluation
surplus aggregating Rs.174.702 million as worked-out below:
Rupees in
thousand
Cost / revalued amount of freehold land as at May 07, 2024 1,230,400
Revalued amount as at May 07, 2024 1,353,440
Revaluation surplus arisen upon revaluation 123,040
Cost / revalued amount of leasehold land as at May 07, 2024 382,178
Revalued amount as at May 07, 2024 433,840
Revaluation surplus arisen upon revaluation 51,662
Had there been no revaluations, book value of freehold and leasehold land would have
been Rs.76.463 milion (2024: Rs.76.463 milion) and Rs.65.027 million
(2024: Rs.200.991 million) respectively as at June 30, 2025.
Based on the revaluation report of Unicom Intemational Surveyors dated May 07, 2024,
the forced sale values of the revalued freehold and leasehold land (inclusive of land
transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme as detailed in note 1.2} have been assessed at
Rs.1,429.824 million.
Particulars of operating fixed assets disposed-off during the year:
i Accumulated Book :
Descripfion Cost —— valda Sale proceeds || Gain Parficulars of Purchaser
------------------- Rupees in thousand ===« srasssssasaras | Soid through negotistion to:
tiems with indvidual net book
value exceeding Rs. 500,000 each
Vehicles
Toyota Fortuner 15,261 30 130M 14850 1,619 | Mr. Arzhad Baig {a third party)
Toyota Corola 2782 {2,104} 678 4,550 3872 | Mir. Rashid Awan (2 third party)
18,043 4334 13700 13,200 5491
Aggregate value of iems
having individual book vakie
not exceeding Rs. 500,000 each
Plant and machinery 45 {B} k] &l LTF
Toal 075 18,088 4340 13748 18,814 6,063
Total 2024 201,580 (32478) 163102 243,287 74,185
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5.4 Particulars of immovable property in the name of the Company are as follows:

[ Location |l.haue of immavahle propery | Total Area |Ewt=.redkﬂ ]
Insq. 1,

- 52 - Km, Phoal Nagar, District Kagur Monufscturing facility (gases) 113 Kanals 8 marias and 20 feet a7,031

= Mowza Parma, Phool Nagar, Tehail Pattoki. District Kagar  Industrial land B3 Kanals and 9 Marlas

« Plot Mos 7 and 8, 3 to 12, B2, 13-24, B3.B4, Zonw - B, Indusirial land 51,04 Hanals (6,38 Beres)

Plol Mos. 13-24 snd B3, B4 have bean franserred Lo
GCWL as par the Schema as detailed in vole 1.2,

55 As at June 30, 2025, plant and machinery Include vacuum insulated evaporator tanks
installed at various customers® sites for supply of gas products. These assels are secured
against deposits as disclosed in note 25. Cost and book value of these vacuum insulated
evaporator tanks were as follows:

2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousand
Cost 192,450 207,724
Book value 144,194 159,853
5.6 Depreciation charge on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 35 127,357 120,959
Distribution costs 36 2,845 0
Administrative expenses 37 74,688 55473
204,890 176,432

5.7 Leasehold land rights located at Hattar under KPEZDMC is still under provisional
allotment; therefore, at the reporting date, this has been carried as leasehold land.

5.8 Capital work in progress (plant and machinery) - at cost

Opening balance 3,158,662 209,889
Additions during the year 59 1,447 727 2,962 909
Capitalised during the year (2,643,089) (14,136)
Transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme

detailed in note 1.2 (1,915,010} 0
Closing balance 48,290 3,158,662

59 These include expenditure aggregating Rs.1,022.317 million (2024: Rs.1,516.179 million)
refating to installation of new plant (Liguid Air Separation Unit) and expenditure
aggregating Rs.414.365 million {2024: Rs.1,438.404 million) relating to Calcium Carbide
Plant (CACP) at Hattar, KPK,

510 During the year, borrowing cost at the rates ranging from 12.03% to 23.16%
(2024: 21.67% to 2553%) per annum amounting Rs.275.210 million
(2024: Rs.363.580 million) has been included in the cost of plant and machinery.

5.11 Stores held for capital expenditure

Total inventory of stores held for capital expenditure 231,788 618,222
Transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme

detailed in note 1.2 (56,423) 0
Carrying value at year-end 175,365 618,222
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6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

74

2025 2024

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS Note Rupees in thousand
Opening balance 550,000 500,000
Revalualion increment 6.1 0 83,107
Revaluation adjustment - cost 0 (13,107}
550,000 550,000
Depreciation
Opening balance 2,351 1,126
Revaluation adjustment - accumulated depreciation 0 (13,107)
Depreciation charge for the year 6.4 15,891 14,332
18,242 2,351
Closing balance 531,758 547 849

The Company, during May, 2024, has carried-aut revaluation of leasehold land situated at
Plot No. A-53, Chemical Area, Easl Industrial Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi with an area of 40
Kanals having covered area of 17,045 sq. fi. The revaluation exercise has been carried out
by independent Valuers [ Unicom International Surveyors, 74-B, Guiberg Il, Lahore |.
Leasehold land has been revalued on the basis of present market rats of project land and
it has resultad in revaluation surplus of Rs.63.107 million as worked-out balow:

Rupees in

thousand
Carrying value of leasehold land as at May 07, 2024 486,893
Revalued amount of leasehold land as at May 07, 2024 550,000
Rewvaluation surplus arisen upon revaluation 83,107

Had there heen no revaluation, book walue of leasehold land would have been
Rs.24.038 million { 2024: Rs.24.724 million).

Based on the revaluation report of Unicorn International Surveyors dated May 07, 2024,
the forced sale value of the revalued leasehold land has been assessed at Rs 440
millicn.

Depreciation charge for the year on right of use assets has been calculated by using
straight line method over the lease terms i.e. ranging from 40 fo 50 years and grouped
under administrative expenses.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

Balance at year-end 14,808 14,808
Amortisation

Charged upto the year-end 13,329 13,329
Carrying value at year-end 1,479 1,479

No amortisation has been charged for the current and preceding years as carrying value
represents 10% residual value.
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B.1

8.2
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LONG TERM INVESTMENTS - At cost 2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousand

Subsidiary Companies
Ghani Gases (Pvt.) Ltd. (GGPL) - Un-quoted

999,997 ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each 81 10,075 10,075
Shareholding held: 99.9% (2024: 99.9%)

- Value of investmants based on net assats

shown in the audited financial statements

for the year ended June 30, 2025

Rs.4.434 million (2024; Rs. 9.013 million)

Ghani Power (Pvt.) Ltd. (GPPL) - Un-guoted
989,997 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 8.2 10,000 10,000
Shareholding held: 99.9%, (2024: 99.9%)

- Value of investments based on net assets
shown in the audited financial statemeants
for the year ended June 30, 2025
Rs.10.430 million (2024: Rs. 9.650 million)

Associated Company

Ghani ChemWorld Ltd. (GCWL) - Quoted

50,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Shareholding held: 0.02%
= Market value Rs. 0.486 million 8.3 500 0

20,575 20,075

GGPL was incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) az a
private limited company on May 18, 2020. The principal business of GGPL is to carry on
the business of manufacturers, buyers, sellers, importers, exporters, dealers and traders of
all types of gases including LPG and LNG for use in industries, hospitals, houses, factories
and all types of chemicals including petro-chemicals and their derivatives and importers,
exporiers and manufacturers of and dealers in heavy chemicals, alkalis, acids, drugs,
tannins, essences, pharmaceutical, surgical and scienfific apparatus and materials,

Provision for diminution in value of investment In GGPL has not been recognised at the
reporting date as the management considers this fall a tempaorary phenomenon.

GPPL was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on March 15, 2024 under
the Companies Acl, 2017, The principal line of business of GPPL is to carry on all or any of
the businesses of generating, purchasing, importing, transforming, converting,
manifacturing, distributing, supplying, exporting and dealing In power, electricity, oil, gas,
hydrocarbons, petrochemicals, petroleum solar, hydel power plants and petroleum
products, asphalt, bituminous subsiances or services associated therewith and all other
forms of energy and energy related products ( services including all kinds of efficient use of
energy and to perform all other acts which are necessary or incidental to the above
businesses and related products. GPPL has not commenced its commercial operations il
the reporting date.




8.3

9.1

10.

10.1

1.
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GOCWL was incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017 as a limited company
on July 31, 2024. The principal line of business of GCWL is to manufacture, produce,
refine, process, formulate, acquire, convert, sell, distribute, buy, import, export or ctherwise
deal in all types of chemicals, basic drugs, all types of acids, etc. The registered office and
head office of GCWL are situated at 10-N, Model Town Extension, Lahore whereas
production facility is situated at plot No. 13 to 24 B3 & B4 Zone Hattar Special Economic
Zone, Dhaorian Chowk MNear Tanaoll Filling Station Hattar, Haripur. GCWL has not
commenced its commercial operations till the reporting date.

GCWL was a whelly owned Subsidiary of the Company; however, afler the issuance of
shares by GCWL as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2, GCWL has become an
Associated Company at the reporting date.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS - Considered good 2025 2024
Rupees in thousand

Security deposits against: Note

- utility bills 9.1 64,873 64,873

- rented premises 1,743 1,743

66,616 66,616

These deposits are being held for an indefinite period with no fixed maturity date;
therefore, have been carried at cost, as amortised cost is impractical to determine.

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 116,130 56,413
Spare parts 311,196 305,268
Loose tools 518 453

427,844 362,135

The Company, during the year, has transferred stores, spares and loose tools inventory
valuing Rs.188.322 million to GCWL as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2.

STOCK IN TRADE

Finished goods

- industrial gases 48,568 79,595

- industrial chemicals 46,271 80,992

Raw materials 309,620 0
Transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme

detailed in note 1.2 (309,620) 0

0 0

94 839 160,587




12, TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured

Considered good
Considered doubtful

Allowance for expected credit loss

121  Allowance for expected credit loss
Opening balance
Charge for the year
Balances written-off during the year

Closing balance

Note
12.4

121

2025 2024

Rupees in thousand
2,081,861 2,142 223
38,882 24,856
2,120,743 2,167,079
(38,882) (24,856)
2,081,861 2,142 223
24,856 19,856
38,193 5,000
(24,167) 0]
38,882 24 856

12.2  Trade debts aggregating Fs.1,111.511 million (2024: Rs.659.861 million) were either past
due or overdue but not impaired as allowance for expected credit loss. These balances
relate to various customers, primarily Government organisations, with whom there was no

recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows:

Up to 1 month
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Above 385 days

134,200 90,348
52,522 75,868
78,972 58,007

436,453 173,570

267,853 114,077

141,511 147,991

1,111,511 659,861

12.32 Receivables from the governmentl institutions aggregate Rs.1,075.810 milion as at

June 30, 2025 ( 2024; Rs.659.861 million).

12.4 The balance includes receivable from Ghani Global Glass Lid. (& related party) amounting
Rs.78.350 million as at June 30, 2025 (2024: Rs.68.182 million).

13. LOAN AND ADVANCES
Advances to employees against expenses
Advances to suppliers and contractors

Transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme
detailed in note 1.2

Letters of credit

Transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme
detailed in note 1.2

Due from related parties

Allowance for impairment
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3,435 4,109
315,790 149,515
(153,264) 0
162,526 149,515
210,916 61,831
(204,455) 0
6,461 61,831
1,479,466 1,122,278
1,651,888 1,337,733
(1,485) {1,485)
1,650,403 1,336,248
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2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousand
13.1  Due from related parties

Ghani Global Glass Ltd. (GGGL)
{net of accrued mark-up and common allocation of
expensss aggregating Rs.36.682 million
{2024 balance included Rs, 172.805 million
on account of accrued mark-up and
common allocation of expenses)) 13.2 1,182,273 1,019,397

Ghani Global Holdings Ltd. (GGHL)

{the Holding Company)

(including accrued mark-up amounting

Fs. Nil {2024:Rs.5.581 million) 13.3 17,992 102,881
Ghani ChemWorld Ltd. (GCWL)

{including accrued mark-up amounting

Fs.5.252 million. 13.4 279,201 1]

1,479,466 1,122,278

13.2
{a) The Company's shareholders, vide special resolution dated Oclober 26, 2024 pursuant to
the requirements of section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, have authorised the
Company to make investment upto Rs.1,300 million in GGGL by way of advances and
loans, as and when required by GGGL. These advances carry mark-up al the rale of 3
maonths KIBOR + 1.10%; the effective mark-up rates charged by the Company during the
year ranged from 13,19% to 21.72% (2024: 22 .96% to 24 40%) per annum.

(b)Y Maximum amount due from GGGL, including markup, at the end of any month during the
year was Rs. 1,257,118 million (2024: Rs.1,087.578 million).

13.3

{(a) The Company's shareholders, vide special resolution dated October 26, 2024 pursuant to
the reguirements of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2017, have authorised the
Company to make investment upto Rs. 200 million in the Holding Company by way of
advances and loans, as and when required by the Holding Company. These advances
carry mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 1.10%; the effective mark-up rates charged
by the Company during the year ranged from 13.19% to 21.07% (2024: 22.31% to 23.75%)
pEr annum.

(b) Maximum amount due from the Holding Company, including markup, at the end of any
month during the year was Rs. 95.481 million (2024: Rs.102.881 million).

(¢} Payabie to the Holding Company on account of mark-up and commission aggregating
Rs. 3.508 million has been adjusted against this receivable balance.

13.4
(a) The Cempany's shareholders, vide special resolution dated April 12, 2025 pursuant to the
requirements of section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, have authorised the Company
te make Investmeant upto Rs.1,500 millien In GCWL by way of advances and loans, as and
when required by GCWL. These advances carry mark-up at the rate of 2 months KIBOR +
1.10%; the effective mark-up rates charged by the Company during the year ranged from
13.26% to 13.28% per annum.

(b) Maximum amount due from GCWL, including mark-up, at the end of any month during the
year was Rs. 278.201 million.
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14. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 2025 2024

OTHER RECEIVABLES Note Rupees in thousand
Trade deposits 254 370 197,038
Prepayments 16,273 10,442
Bank profit receivable 396 811
Letters of credit margins 3,315 4,136
Advances to suppliers 24 275 8,216
Advances to construction contractor 14.1 260,379 178,379
Other receivable 14.2 0 190,338

559,008 590,358
Balances transferred to GCWL as per the
Scheme detailed in note 1.2 (200,711) 0
358,297 580,358
141 This represents advance made to Baig Construction Company against civil works for
Hattar project.

14.2  This represents advance made to Digital Custodian Company Ltd. against sale of shares.

The Company, during the year, has fully received back the opening receivable balance.
15. TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Sales tax refundable - nat 59.219 93 841
16, ADVANCE INCOME TAX

Opening balance 421,970 440,031

Paid during the year 564,129 289.712

Refunds received during the year 0 (67.556)

Balance transferred from GPL as per the

Scheme detailed in note 1.2 787 0
086,886 662,187

Adjusted against income tax payable (309,112) {240,217)
677,774 421,870

17. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Term deposil receipis 171&17.2 100,000 100,000

171 As per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2, these short term investments along with related
liabilities (bills payable amounting Rs.87.400 million) were initially transferred fo GGWWL.
However, due to problem in transfer of related letter of credit to GCWL, these investments
and related liabilities have been transferred back to the Company before the reporting
date.

17.2  Also refer contents of note 28.1
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18.

18.1

18.2

19.
19.1

19.2

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Note

Cash-in-hand
Banking instrument (call deposit receipt)
Cash at banks on:

- current accounts

- deposit accounts 18.1

2025 2024

Rupees in thousand
560 899
90,000 &}
208,651 209,190
436,585 257,966
645,236 467,155
735,796 468,054

These carry profit at the rates ranging from 6.00% to 18.30% (2024: 12.76% to 19.50%)

per annum,

As per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2, balance of Rs.2.522 million was transfarred by

GPL to the Company.
SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital

600,000,000 (2024: 800,000,000
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each)

MNil shares (2024: 50,000,000 class B shares
of Rs.10 each)

19.3
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

53,525,000 ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each fully paid in cash

100,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10
each issued for consideration other
than cash j.e. Scheme of Arrangement

10,000,000 ordinary shares issued as
right shares of Rs.10 sach
fully paid in cash

239,701,633 ordinary shares of Rs.10
each issued as fully paid bonus shares 19.4

74,961,338 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
issued upan merger of G3 Technologies Ltd.
with and into the Company

22,000,000 Class B shares converted
into ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 19.5

70,263,980 ordinary shares of Rs.10
each allotled for cansideration
otherwise than in cash 19.6
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6,000,000 8,000,000
0 500,000
6,000,000 8,500,000
535,250 535,250
1,000,000 1,000,000
100,000 100,000
2,397,016 2,397,016
749,613 749,613
220,000 220,000
702,640 0
5,704,519 5,001,879
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19.3  The authorised share capilal of the Company, during the financial year ended June 30,
2023, was increased from Rs.5.500 billion divided inlo 550,000,000 ardinary shares of
Rs.10 each to Rs.8.500 billion divided into 800,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each and
50,000,000 Class B shares of Rs.10 each.

The authorised share capital of the Company, as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2, has
been reduced to Rs. six billion during the current year. The Company has filed the
necessary application for data rectification of Memorandum of Association of the Company
with SECP on March 14, 2025, After rectification, the authorised share capital of the
Company is Rs. six billion divided into 600,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each,

19.4 The balance includes 43,471,634 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as lully paid bonus
shares in the proportion of 10 ordinary shares for every 100 ordinary shares held during
the financial year ended June 30, 2023,

19.5 The Company, during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, had issued 22,000,000
class B shares at the rate of Rs.10 per share. This right issue was made at the rale of
8.8045 class B shares for every 100 existing ordinary shares. These class B shares were
converted into ordinary shares during the preceding financial year as per the conversion
ratio of 1:1.

19.6  The Company, in compliance with the Scheme detailed in note 1.2, during the year has
credited 70,000,000 and 263,960 ordinary shares of the Company to Ghani ChemWorld
Ltd. and shareholders of merged entity i.e. Ghani Products (Pvt) Ltd. respectively. After
these credits, revised paid-up share capital of the Company is 570,451,931 ordinary
shares of Rs.10 each,

19.7 Shares held by related parties MNote 2025 2024
{Number of Shares)
Ghani Glabal Holdings Lid. 279,905,986 279,905,983
Ghani Products (Pvl.) Lid, 19.8 0 91,911,490
Ghani ChemWaorld Lid. 70,000,000 0

349,005,986 371,817 473

19.8 The Scheme, as delailed in note 1.2, also envisages transfer of designated assets of
Ghani Products (Pvt.) Lid. (GPL) with and into the Company and distribution of shares of
the Company held by GPL to the shareholders of GPL. GPL held 81,911,490 shares of the
Company, which have been transferred to the shareholders of GPL during the year in
propartion to their respective shareholdings,

20. SHARE PREMIUM 2025 2024
Rupees in thousand
Opening balance 164,011 164,011
Less: premium utilised during the year
as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2 (164,011) 0
Balance as at June 30, 0 164,011
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21. REVALUATION SURPLUS ON FREEHOLD 2025 2024
AND LEASEHOLD LAND Note Rupees in thousand
Opening balance 735,087 497,278
Surplus on revaluations of freehold and leasehold
land carried-out during the preceding year 0 174,702
Surplus on revaluations of leasehold land
carried-out during the preceding year 0 63,107
Less: surplus utilised during the yesar
as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2 {735,087) 0
Balance as at June 30, 0 735,087
22. MERGER RESERVE
Opening balance 221 1,342,746 1,342 746
Less: reserve utilised during the year
as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2 (1,342,746) 0
Balance as al June 30, 0 1,342,746
221  Merger reserve represents gain arisen upon merger of G3 Technologies Ltd. with and into
the Company during the financial year ended June 30, 2022.
23. LONG TERM FINANCES
From banking companies - secured
Diminishing Musharakah 23.2 750 750
Diminishing Musharakah 233 27,263 136,348
Diminishing Musharakah and
Islamic Refinance Facility 234 0 2,286
Diminishing Musharakah 23.5 500,000 500,000
Diminishing Musharakah (ITERF) 23.6 263,257 330,159
Long Term Islamic Finance Facility 23.7 293,831 384 612
Diminishing Musharakah 23.8 388,884 498,003
From Islamic Financial Institution - secured
Diminishing Musharakah 23,9 240,478 192,281
Others
From sponsoring directors - unsecured 23.10
- mark-up bearing 0 52,000
1,714,463 2,098,429
Current portion grouped under current liabilities {500,071) (457 .803)
1,214,392 1,640,536
231 Balance at beginning of the year 2,098,429 1,493,831
Availed during the year 144,800 835,262
Balance of mark-up bearing loans
of directors transferred to
equity during the year (40,000} 0
Repayments made during the year (488,766) (230,764)
Balance at the end of the year 1,714,463 2,008,429
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23.2  This represenits Diminishing Musharakah facilities having credit limit of Rs.5.987 million
and Rs.37.711 million availed from a banking company to finance machinery & equipment.
The facilities were available upto July, 2022 and May, 2023 respectively. The facilities
carried profit al the rale of 1 year KIBOR + 0.80% and & months KIBOR + 0.80%
respectively. These facilities are secured against first pari passu charge of Rs.110 million
over fixed assets, first specific charge of Rs.17.500 million over imported assets and
equitable mortgage over land and buildings. These facilities have been maltured during the
financial year ended June 30, 2023 and the management is negotiating with the bank for
final settlemeant.

23.3  This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility having credit limit of Rs.450 million
availed from a banking company to finance machinery and equipment; the Tacility tenor is
5 years including 1 year grace period. The balance is repayable in 16 equal quarterly
instalments and carries profit at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 1%. The facility is secured
against pari passu charge with 25% margin aggregating Rs.600 million over all plant and
machinery of the Company. The banking company has allowed moratorium of one year
under SEP BPRD circular no. 13/2020; accordingly, repayment has commenced from
October, 2021,

23.4 Diminishing Musharakah and
Islamic refinance facility 2025 2024
Rupees in thousand

Cpening balance 2,286 11,429
Payment made during the year (2,286) (8,143)
0 2,286

This represents Diminishing Musharakah and Islamic refinance facility having credit limit of
Rs.110 million under Islamic Refinance Scheme for payment of salaries and wages to
workers and employees of the Company to dampen the effect of Covid-19 for a period of
2.5 years including six months grace period. The outstanding balance of salary finance
was fully repaid during the financial year ended June 30, 2023. The repayment of salary
loan was made in 8 equal quarterly instalments after a grace period and commenced from
January, 2021. It carried profit at the rate of 3%. The facility was secured against first pari
passu charge of Rs.896 million over plant & machinery and personal guarantees of three
sponsoring Directors of the Company. The Company, during the current financial year, has
fullv repaid the outstandina balance of this finance facility.

23.5 This represents long term Diminishing Musharakah finance facilities having credit limit of
Rs.500 million avalled from a banking company during November, 2023, for retirement of
letters of credit established through other banks for import of Air Separation Plant (275
lons) or its components | equipment or to finance CAPEX related o Industrial & Medical
Plant at Hattar Economic Zone. The finance facility carries profit at 3 months KIBOR + 1%
and its tenor is six years inclusive of two years grace period. The finance facility is secured
against charge of Rs.667 million over fixed assets (land, buildings, plant and machinery) of
the Company, cross corporate guarantee of the Holding Company (Ghani Global Holdings
Ltd.) and personal guarantees of three spoansoring directors of the Company.
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23.6

(a) This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility having credit limit of Rs.439 million under
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) ITERF Scheme to finance capital expenditure requirements
related to procuring Gaseous Air Separation Unit (ASU); draw down has been allowed in
multiple tranches. The facility tenor is 8 years including 2 years grace period; repayment
will be made in 24 quarerly instalments and commenced from May, 2023, It carries profit
at SBP rate + 4% per annum. The facility is secured against exclusive charge over
operating fixed assets (excluding land and buildings) of the new unit for Rs.625 million,
first pari passu charge of Rs.625 million over all present and future fixed assets of the
Company, personal guarantees of sponsoring directors of the Company and assignment of
receivables.

(b) Asg the above finance is below market rate of mark-up, this has been initially measured at
its fair value Le. the present value of the future cash flows discounted at prevailing market
mark-up rate . The difference between the fair value of the finance on initial recognition
and the amount received has been accounted for as Government grant,

{c) The Company, during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, has recorded
Rs.33.679 millien as Government grant on finances obtained at below market rate of mark-
up as per the requirements of IAS 20 (Accounting for government grants and disclosure of
government assistance),

(d) The Company has adhered to the terms of the grant; hence, this is being amortised at
average borrowing cost rate of the Company. An amount of Rs. §.262 million (2024,
Rs.7.486 million) has been recognised in the current's year statement of profit or loss in
this regard and this amount has been adjusted against finance cost for the year,

23.7 This Long Term lslamic Finance Facility (LTIFF) has been obtained during the financial
year ended June 30, 2023 from a banking company. The facility has a credit limit of
Rs.500 million and has been obtained to meet CAPEX requirements of the Company, the
facility tenor is 6 years including ong year grace period. The balance is repayable in 20
equal guarterly instalments ending December, 2028. It carries profit at the rate of 3 months
KIBOR + 1.50%. The facility is secured against first pari passu hypothecation charge of
Rs.667 million over all present and future fixed assets of the Company inclusive of 25%
margin.

23.8 This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility obtained during the financial year ended
June 30, 2023 having credit limit of Rs.500 million. The facility has been availed from a
banking company to finance project at Hattar for setting up an additional manufacturing
plant of medical and industrial gases; the facility tenor is six years including 1.5 years
grace period. The balance is repayable in 18 equal guartery instalments ending
December, 2028. It carries profit at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 0.90%. The facility |s
secured against first pari passu / joint parl passu charge over all existing and future fixed
assels of the Company with 25% margin and personal guarantees of three sponsaring
directors of the Companv.

239 These Islamic finance facilities carry profit at the rates ranging from 3 to & months KIBOR
+ 1%. These Islamic finance facilities having credit Imit of Rs.415 million
{2024 Rs.260 million) are secured against ownership of Musharakah assets in favour of a
financial institution. These finance facilities are repayable in monthly instalments ending
March, 2028. These finance facilities are secured against ownership of vehicles in the
name of financial institution and post dated cheques of all instalments,
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23.10 LOANS FROM DIRECTORS

These loans were provided by sponsoring Directors to meet capital expenditure
requirements of the Company and were repayable after 5 years al the discretion of the
lenders. Profit rates on these loans ranged from 1 month KIBOR and profit was payable on
monthly basis. The Company, during the currenl year, has paid loan balance aggregating
Rs.12 millian and the balance of Rs.40 million has been transferred to mark-up free loan.
The loan balance of Rs.40 million is repayabie by the Company at its discretion as and
when funds are available.

In line with Technical Release - 32 (TR 32 - Accounting Directors' Loan) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, these loans are shown as part of the equity
as these loans are repayable at the discretion of the Company,

2025 2024
24, REDEEMABLE CAPITAL - Sukuk Note Rupees in thousand
Opening balance 800,000 162,500
Sukuk certificates redeemed during the
preceding year 241 0 {162,500)
Sukuk cerlificates issued during the
preceding year 24.2 L 800,000
Sukuk balance transferred to GCWL as
per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2 (800,000) 0
Closing balance 0 800,000

241 The Company had issued rated, privately placed and secured long term Islamic
Certificates (Sukuk) as instrument of redeemable capital under section 120 of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) amounting Rs.1,300 million
divided into 13,000 certificates of Rs.100,000 each for a period of 6 years under an
agreament dated November 15, 2016 for swapping of financing facilities and to meet
business requirements. These certificates were redeemable in 24 consecutive guarterly
instalments commenced from February 03, 2017 and ended on February 03, 2024.
Rentals were payable on quarterly basis along with redemption of certificates. These
carried profit rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 1%. These certificates were secured against
first pari passu charge over present and future fixed assets of the Company to the extent
of Rs.1.625 milion. The banking company had allowed moratorium of one year;
consequently, repayment of instalments for the months of May, 2020 to February, 2021
were deferred for one year. The balance of these Sukuk Cerificates was fully redeemed
during the preceding financial year.

24,2  The Company, during the preceding financial year, has issued rated, privately placed and
secured long term Islamic Certificates (Sukuk) as instrument of redeemable capital under
section 66 of the Companies Act, 2017 (lssue of securities and redeemable capital not
hased on interest) upto Rs.800 million for a period of 6 years under an agreement dated
December 13, 2022 to finance capital expenditure requirements at Hattar Industrial
Estate, Hafttar, which includes plants, machinery, spares and auxiliary equipment, etc.
Principal will be repaid in 16 consecutive guarterly instalments after expiry of 24 months
from the date of last disbursement L.e. January 18, 2024. These carry profit at the rate of 3
months KIBOR plus 1.25% with no floor and no cap. These cerdificates are secured
against first pari passu charge over present and future fixed assets of the Company
inclusive of 25% margin. The balance of these Sukuk certificates has been transferred to
GCWL as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2
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26,

26.1

26.2

27,
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LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS

These security deposits have been utilised for the purpose of the business in accordance
with written agreements. These represent amounts received from the customers on
installation of certain equipment and may be used in ardinary course of the Company's
business under the provisions of section 217 of the Companies Act, 2017. The Company,
during the vyear, has received deposits aggregating Rs. 9805 million
(2024: Rs.23.370 million) and repaid / adjusted deposits aggregating Rs. 0.675 million
(2024:Rs.2.325 million).

2025 2024
LEASE LIABILITIES Note Rupees in thousand
Lease liabilities 6,254 6,180
Less: current portion grouped under current liabilities 348 332
5,906 5858
Movement of lease liabilities
Balance at beginning of the year 6,190 8,121
Profit charge for the year 550 532
Paymenl made during the year (486) (463)
Balance at end of the year 6,254 6.180
Maturity analysis of undiscounted
lease payments

Payable upto one year 348 332
Payable between one to five years 2,021 1,924
Payable afler five years 27,255 27670

29,624 29,926

Depreciation for the year on right of use assets has besn calculated by straight line
method over the lease terms ie. ranging from 40 to 50 years and grouped under
administrative expenses. Right of use assets represent leasehold land, which is located at
53 - A, Industrial Zong, Bin Qasim, Karachi with an area of 40 kanals having covered area
of 217,800 sq. ft,

DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Gas infrastructure development cess 271 0 0
Deferred income - Government grant 27.2 6,142 11,107
Deferred taxation 27.4 1,010,951 821,747

1,017,093 B32,854




2741

27.2

27.3
(@)

(b)
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Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) 2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousand
Balance al year-end 22,383 21,684
Interest against provision for GIDC 255 G99
Closing liability based on presenl value 22,638 22 383
Current portion grouped under current liabilities (22,638) (22,383)
0 0

The Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP), during the financial year ended June 30, 2021, had
decided the appeal against consumers upholding the wires of Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 2015 through its judgment dated August 13, 2020. The
raview petition was Med against the judgment, wherein the SCP provided some reliel by
increasing the time penod for recovery of GIDC from 24 instalments o 48 instalments. The
review application, however, was dismissed.

The Company has filed a constitutional petition before the Lahore High Court (LHC)
challenging the imposition of GIDC amount of Rs.22.638 million. The order of the writ
petition was not in favour of the Company, which was challenged in |CA before the LHC.

The Company had recorded provision for GIDC, which was grouped under trade and other
payables during the financial year ended June 30, 2020, This amount was classified as
non-current liability at its value, by discounting future estimated cash flows using risk free
rate of return i.e. B.60%. This resulted in income of Rs.3.540 million, which was grouped in
other income during the financial year ended June 30, 2021.

Deferred income - Government grant

Balance at beginning of the year 27.3 17,369 24,855

Amortised during the year {6,262) (7 486)
11,107 17,369

Current portion grouped under current liabilities {4,965) {6,262)
6,142 11,107

In response to COVID-19, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through Circular No. 6 of
2020, has introduced a Refinance Scheme for payment of wages and salaries to the
workers and employees of business concerns. The Refinance Scheme has been managed
through Participating Financial Institutions (PFis) and funded by SBP. Borrowers obtained
loans from PFls to ease their cash flow constraints and thereby avoid layoffs. The benefit
of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest has been treated as a government
grant. The loan has been measured in accordance with IFRS 9 (Financial instruments).
The benefit of the below market rale of intarest has bean measured as the difference
between the initial carrying value of loan determined in accordance with IFRS 8 and the
proceeds received. The benefit has been accounted for and presented as deferred grant in
accordance with [AS 20. The deferred grant has been amortised at average borrowing cost
rate of the Company. an amount of Rs.5.262 million (2024: Rs.7.486 million) has been
recognised in the current year statement of profit or loss in this regard.

Also refer contents of nole 23.6




27.4 Deferred taxation
Note

This is composed of the following:

Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of
accelerated tax depreciation allowances

Deductible temporary differences arising
in respect of;

- allowance for expected credit loss

- alternate corporate tax [ minimum tax recoverable
against normal tax charge in future years

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors

Balance transferred fo GCWL as per the
Scheme detailed in note 1.2

Balance transferred from GPL as per the
Scheme detailed in note 1.2

Bills payable 28.1
Accrued liabilities
Warkers' (profit) participation fund 28.2
Workers' welfare fund 28.3
Withholding taxes

2025

2024

Rupees in thousand

28.1 These are secured against term deposit receipts as disclosed in note 17.

28.2 Workers' (profit) participation fund
Opening balance
Paid during the yvear
Allocation for the year
Clesing balance
28.3 Workers' welfare fund
Opening balance
Written-back [ adjusted during the year 391
Charge for the year

Closing balance

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 90

1,022,657 955,952
(11,706) (7.639)
0 (126,568)
(11,706) (134,205)
1,010,951 821,747
512,769 50,888
(204,787) 0
366 0
308,348 50,888
89,207 87,400
89,932 83,882
60,859 10,047
52,718 65,078
6,617 7,443
607,681 313,738
10,047 18,328
(89,837) (77,265)
140,649 68,084
60,859 10,047
65,078 46,764
(45,984) (7,900)
33,624 26,214
52,718 65,078
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30.

301

31.

A

31.2

32.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Company, during the year, has recognised revenue aggregaling Rs.281.437 million
{2024: Rs. 30.439 million) out of the contract liabilities balance outstanding at beginning of
the year.

ACCRUED PROFIT 2025 2024
MNote Rupees in thousand
Profit accrued on :
- long term finances 80,020 245,323
- redesmahble capital - Sukuk 301 0 38,072
- short term borrowings 68,820 52,725
148,840 336,120

The Company, during the current year, has transferred payable balance of
Rs.12.691 million to GCWL as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2,

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companias - secured A 2,898,747 1,570,488
Temporary book overdraft - unsecured 31.2 9.994 9994
2,908,741 1,580,482

These finances have been obtained under profit arrangements and are secured against
charge of Rs.600 million over all present and future plant and machinery of the Company,
charge on present and future current assets, personal guarantees of sponsoring directors
of the Company, corporate guarantees of the Holding Company and lien over import
documents. These form part of total credit funded facilities of Rs.3.213 million
(2024: Rs.1,650 million). The rates of profit range from 12.07% to 22.89%
(2024: 18.65% to 24.43%) per annum, These facilities are expiring on various dates by
June 2028,

This temporary book overdraft has arisen due to issuance of cheques for amounts in
excess of balance in a bank account,

CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT

LIABILITIES
Long term finances 23 500,071 457 893
Lease liabilities 26 348 332
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 274 22,638 22,383
Defarred income 27.2 4,965 6,262

528,022 486,870
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33. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

33.1  The Company has filed two separate constitutional petitions on February 15, 2009 before
the Lahore High Court {the LHC), Lahore on the ground that the Company was not
required o pay any advance tax on electricity bills due to huge carried forward tax losses
and available refunds. The LHC has granted stay orders upon furnishing of bank
guaraniees in favour of LESCO amounting Rs.3.140 million. The outcome of the cases is
pending and the management is hopeful that matter shall be decided In favour of the
Company.

33.2 A constitutional petition has been filed before the Lahore High Court (LHC) subsequent to
the reporting date challenging the vires of section 4C (Super tax on high earning persons)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The issue has been decided by a Division Bench of
the LHC; however, since the appeals / CPLAs filed by the taxpayers are pending before
the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP), which has issued a direction vide order dated
March 12, 2025 for transmission of all such matters to SCP. The LHC, vide its order dated
Seplember 22, 2025, has ordered for appropriate action in the Company's case as well,

33.3 The Tax Department has filed references before the Lahore High Court against the orders
passed by the Appellate Tribunal in favour of the Company for the Tax Years 2011 and
2014.The references are pending adjudication,

33.4 Punjab Revenue Authority vide show cause notice dated March 28, 2024 has raised
demands aggregating Rs.101.944 million under section 49 of the Punjab Sales Tax on
Services Act, 2012 and the Rules made there under, The Company has filed a writ petition
before the Lahore High Court; the petition Is pending adjudication.

33.5 The Company has filed a petition before the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) against
imposition of the Fuel Price Adjustment & Quarterly Tariff Adjustment. Based on the
Company's legal advisors certificate, total amount related to the Company is Rs.225.019
million on the basis of actual consumption of electricity. The Company has prayed to SCP
to suspend the judgment of the Islamabad High Court dated June 26, 2024. The patition
filed before the SCP is pending adjudication.

33.6 The Company has filed a writ petition against imposition of FC-Surcharge amounting
Rs.14.178 million before the Lahore High Court (LHC). The petition filed before LHC is
pending adjudicatian.

33.7 The un-availed funded and unfunded credit faciliies from banks (other than loans from
directors) as of reporting date were for Rs.1,130.162 million (2024: Rs.567.880 million).
These limits include credil lines thal are interchangeable and may be utilised for either
funded facilities or unfunded facilities.

33,8 Bank guarantees aggregating Rs.316.727 million (2024: Rs.186.858 million) have been
provided to various customers / institutions against supplies of products.

Commitments

33.9 Commitments in respect of letters of credit amounted o Rs.270.261 million as at June 30,
2025 (2024: Rs.147.783 million).

33.10 Commitments for construction of buildings as at June 30, 2025 amounted to Rs.100 million
(2024:Rs.150 million),
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34.

35.

351

SALES

Local

Gross sales
Supplies

Services

Sales ( service lax

Export

Services

Supplies

COST OF SALES
Salaries, wages and other benefits

Fuel and power

Ulilities

Consumable stores and spares
Rent, rates and taxes

Repair and maintenance
Communication

Travelling and vehicles' running
Insurance

Depreciation

Note

351

5.6

inadmissible sales tax (input), freight and others

Cost of goods manufactured

Changes in finished goods
Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock

11

2025

2024

Rupees in thousand

8,447,820 6,269,968
90,165 59,510
8,537,985 6,329,478
(1,303,769) (957.472)
7,234,216 5,372,006
181,067 65,381
20,137 0
201,204 65,381
7,435,420 5437387
137,288 136,302
2,609,960 2,772,920
8,686 7.091
80,052 97,988
104 1.125

8,669 6,144

940 495
6,745 6,894
12,015 9,533
127,357 120,959
20,348 21,120
3,012,164 3,180,571
160,587 70,375
945,478 725517
(94,839) (160,587)
1,011,226 644,305
4,023,390 3,824,876

These include Rs.7.831 million (2024. Rs.7.204 million) in respect of retirement benefils.
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Annual Report 2025




36.

36.1
37.

371

DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Note

Salaries, wages and other benefits 36.1
Transporiation

Traveling, boarding, lodging and conveyance
Communication

Vehicles' running and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes

Loading and unloading

Fostage and courier

Repair and maintenance

Office expenses

Insurance

Depraciation 5.6
Sales promotion

Others

2025 2024
Rupees in thousand

66,596 62 767
68,243 48,335
2,063 1,581
296 482
8,053 11,251
1.288 2,057
892 693
227 233
201 163
813 1,333
31 0
2,845 0
23,499 0
30,436 15,730
205,483 144 685

These include Rs.5.074 million {2024: Rs.4.356 million) in respect of retirement benefits.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 37.1
Communication

Electricity and other utilities

Rent, rates and taxes

Repair and maintenance

Traveling and conveyance

Vehicles' running and maintenance

Printing and stationery

Donations and charity

Faes and subscription

Insurance

Depreciation 5.6
Depreciation on right of use assets i}
Others

90,263 80,570
2,062 2,364
8,370 11,037
4,615 6,900

49 74
3,568 366
9,688 9,502
3,349 4,092
1,836 1,765

18,986 12,968
8,721 7420

74,688 55473

15,891 14,332

40,026 252086

282,112 242,068

These include Rs.5.917 million (2024: Rs.5.559 million) in respect of retirement benefits.
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3B. OTHER EXPENSES 2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousand
Legal and professional (other than Auditors) 1,310 052
Allowance for expected credit loss 121 38,193 5,000
Auditors' remuneration:
- statutory audit 1,025 842
- half yearly review 257 231
- other cerifications 689 569
1,971 1,742
Workers' {profit) participation fund 28.2 140,649 65,984
Workers' welfare fund 28.3 33,624 26,214
Exchange fluctuation loss 1,806 0
Receivable balances written-off 7,480 0
Others 0 123
225,033 103,015
39. OTHER INCOME
Profit on bank deposits 23,154 129 B24
Return on advances fo Associated
Companies 185,562 209,311
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 53 6,063 74185
Compensation charges recovered from a customer
due to short liting of chemical supplies 129,362 110,958
Commission related to services work at an hospital 0 20,903
Excess provision for workers' welfare fund
(WWF) written-back 394 45,984 i)
Unclaimed payable balances written-back 191 o
Miscellaneous 2,006 5,927
392,322 551,108
391  The Company, during the year based on its tax Advisors' opinion, has written-back excess
WWF provision beyond 2% of its taxable income. The management believes that this
action is supported by both legal definitions and judicial interpretations regarding the
nature of WWF payments.
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2025

2024

40, FINANCE COST Note Rupees in thousand
Finance cost on:
- long term finances 102,968 05,989
- redeemable capital - Sukuk 0 12,941
- short term borrowings 328,279 205,914
- lease liabilities 550 532
431,797 375,376
Interest against provision for Gas
Infrastructure Development Cess 255 G99
Bank charges and commission 20,969 13,292
453,021 389,367
2025 2024
Restated
41. MINIMUM AND FINAL TAX LEVIES Rupees in thousand
For the year 1,811 654
42, TAXATION
For the year 435919 313,167
Prior years (4,426) 564
431,493 313,731
Deferred 27.4 189,204 184,291
620,697 498,022
421 Returns filed by the Company upto the tax year 2024 have been assessed under the self
assassmant scheme envisaged in saction 120 of the Income Tax Ordinanca, 2001.
422  Also refer contents of note 33.2.
42.3 Tax charge reconciliation 2025 2024
Numerical reconciliation between the Rupees in thousand
tax expense as per accounting profit
with taxable income
Profit before taxation, minimum and final tax levies 2,638.703 1,284,483
Tax expense as per accounting profit at the rate
of 29% 765,224 372,500
Impact of super tax at the rate of 10% 0 103,647
Impact of minimum tax and final tax levies {52,509) (16,883)
Effect of prior year tax (4,426) 564
Adjustment of alternate corporate tax (126,566) 72,039
Impact of admissible / inadmissible expenses 11,151 (52,788)
Adjustment of unused tax losses 1] 19,989
Effect of permanent differences 46,422 0
Effect of exempt income (12,299) 0
Others (4,489) (392)
Total taxation, minimum and final tax levies expense 622,508 498,676
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EARNINGS PER SHARE 2025 2024
Rupees in thousand
There is no dilutive effect on earnings per share

of the Company, which Is based on:

Prefit after taxation attributable to
ordinary shareholders 2,016,195 785,807

{Number of shares)
\Waeighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year 514,625,772 497,122,398
------- Rupees -————-
Earnings per share - basic 3.92 1.58

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial stalements for remuneration, allowances
including all benefits to the chief executive, directors and executives of the Company were
as follows:

2025 2024
Ch'ef Director Executives CI1|ef Director  Executives
o Executive Executive
Description
Rupees in thousand

Managenal remuneration 17408 17,408 38,696 17408 17408 39,243
Medical 696 696 1,548 696 606 1,306
Provident fund contribution 1,450 1,450 3,223 1,450 1,450 3.269

19554 19,554 43 467 19,554 19,554 43818
No. of persons 1 1 14 1 1 13

The chief executive and directors of the Company have been provided with free use of the
Company maintained cars in accordance with their entittement. Some of the executives
have also been provided with the Company maintained cars as per their terms of
amployment,

Meeting fees aggregating Rs.1,250 thousand (2024:Rs. 1,225 thousand) were paid to 5
(2024:5) directors for attending Board meetings during the year.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of Holding, Subsidiary and Associated Companies, directors of
the Company, key management personnel and staff retirement benefit fund. The Company
in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties.
Details of related parties with whom the Company has transacted along with relationship
and transactions, other than those which have been disclosed in these unconsaolidated
financial statements, were as follows:




Name of related party

- Ghani Global Holdings Ltd.

- Ghani Gases (Pvt.) Lid.

- Ghani Power (PvL.) Lid,

- Ghani Global Glass Ltd,

- Kilowatt Labs Technologias Ltd.
- Air Ghani (Pwvt.) Lid.

- Ghani ChemWaorld Lid.

- Ghani Glebal Foods (Pyvt.) Ltd.
- Ghani Engineering (Pwt.) Ltd.
- A-One Prefabs (Pwt) Ltd.

- A-One Batteries (Pvl.) Lid,

- Ghani Industrial Complex (Pvt.) Ltd.

- Kaya Projects (Pvt.) Ltd,

- Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan
- Mr. Atique Ahmad Khan

- Hafiz Faroog Ahmad

- Provident Fund Trust

45.1(a) Transactions with related parties

Relationship with related
party

Relationship
Parent Company
Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Company

Associated Company - comman directorship

Associated Company - comman directorship
-do-

~do-

-do-

=do=

Director/ shareholder

-do-

-do-

Employees' retirement fund

2025 2024
Rupees in thousand

Mature of transaction

Commission against
corporate guarantees

Holding Company

Return on advances given

Purchases
Dividend paid
Subsidiary Companies  Investments made
Associated Companies
= Ghani Global
Glass Ltd. Sales

Sale of fixed assets
Retum on advances given

Expenses shared

- Ghani ChemWorld

Ltd. (GCWL) Investment made
Return on advances given
Ghani Chemical Industries Limited o8

10,476
11,228
3,557
167,944

91,054
0
169,081
465,790

500
5,252

9,037
10,179
0

0

19,975

60,767
82,600
199,131
182,208

Annual Report 2025




{b) Transfer of assets and liabilities to GCWL as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2

Assets :

Liabilities :

(c) Key management
personnel {directors)

(d) Employees’ provident
fund trust

Mature of transaction

Property, plant and
equipment

Stores, spares and
loose tools

Stock-in-trade
Loans and advances

Deposits, prepayments
and other receivables

Short term Investments

Redeemable capital -
Sukuk

Trade and other
payables
Accrued profit

Purchase of shares

Contribution paid

2025

2024

Rupees in thousand

46, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Financial instruments by category
Financial assets - at amortised cost

Long term deposits
Trade debts

Trade deposits and bank profit

Bank balances

Financial liabilities - at amortised cost

Long term finances

Redeemable capital - Sukuk

Long lerm security deposits

Lease liabilities

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess

Trade and other payables

Accrued profit

Short term borrowings
Unclaimed dividend
Unpaid dividend

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited

2,270,271 0
188,322
309,620
357,719
200,711
100,000
800,000 0
204,787
12,691
0 100
37,632 34,238
66,616 66,616
2,120,743 2,167,079
254,766 197,847
735,236 467,155
3,177,361 2,898 697
1,714,463 2,008,429
0 BOD,000
79,366 70,136
6,254 6,190
22,638 22,383
487 487 231,170
148,840 336,120
2,908,741 1,580,482
491 491
2,415 0
5,370,695 5,145,401
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46.1 Financial Risk Factors

The Company's activities expose It to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
interest rate risk and currency risk}, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried-out by the Company's finance department under policies
approved by the board of directors. The Company's finance department evaluates financial
risks based on principles Tor overall risk management as well as policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of
excess liquidity, provided by the board of directors.

46.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of
risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

(a) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to
transactions entered into in foreign currencies. The Company is exposed lo currency risk
on import of plant & machinery, stores & spares and stock-in-trade. The Company
exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Rupees EUR € CRY &3 u.ss
e [ W S T-TTEF 1,1 e
2025
Funded
Bills payable 89 207 1] L ] 314
Unfunded
Dutstanding letters of eredit 270,261 a o a51
Total exposure 359,468 L] L] 1,265
2024
Funded
Bills payable 87,400 1] o 314
Unfunded
Outstanding letters of credit 147,783 i7 35 508
Total exposure 235,183 17 35 822

The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Average rate Reporting date rate

2025 2024 2025 2024
EUR € to Rupee - 299 26 - 297.92
CNY ¥ to Rupee - 38.26 - 38.38
U.S. 5 to Rupee 283.97 277.07 284.10 278.59

Sensitivity analysis

As at June 30, 2025, if Rupee had strengthened / devalued by 10% against U.5.5 with all
other variables held constant, profit before taxation for the current vear would have been
higher / lower by Rs.8.921 million (2024: Rs.8.740 million) mainly as a result of net
foreign exchange gain / loss on translation of foreign currency financial liabilities.
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(b)

(c)

46.3
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Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market profit rates. At the reporting date, the profit rate
profile of the Company's profit bearing financial instruments is as follows:

2025 2024 2025 2024
Effective rates per annum Carrying amount
Fixed rate instruments Rupees in thousand
Cash at banks on
deposit accounts 6.00% to 18.30% 12.76% to 19.50% 436,585 257,965

Variable rate instruments
SBP rate +4% & SBP rate +4% &

Long term finances 3 to 6 months 3 to 6 months
KIBOR+1%to KIBOR+1%to
1.5% 1.5% 1,714,463 2,098,429
Redeemable capital - Sukuk i 3 months KIBOR
+1.25% a 800,000
Lease liabilities B.50% 8.50% 6,254 6,190

Short term borrowings 12.07% to 22.89% 18.65% to 24.43% 2,808,747 1,570,488

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rale financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in profit rate at the reporting date would
not affect profit or loss of the Company.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

At June 30, 2025, if profit rate on vanable rate financial liabilities had been 1% higher /
lower with all other variables held constant, profil before faxation for the yvear would have
been lower / higher by Rs.46.194 million (2024: Rs 44.751 million) mainly as a result of
higher profit rates.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuale as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate
risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to any significant price risk.

Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit
risk by manitaring credil exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and
continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.




Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business aclivities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities 1o
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or
other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the
Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts and balances with banks. To manage
exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews
taking into account the customer's financial position, past experience and other relevant
factors. \Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain
parties. The managament has set 8 maximum credit period of 30 days to reduce the credit
risk. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with
reasonably high credit ratings.

In respect of other counter parties, due to the Company's long standing business
refationship with them, managament does nol expect non-performance by these counter
parties on their obligations to the Company.

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credil risk as al June 30, 2025 along with comparalive |s
tabulated below:

2025 2024

Rupees in thousand
Long term deposils 66,616 66,616
Trade debts 2,120,743 2,167,079
Trade deposits and bank profit 254,766 197 847
Bank balances 735,236 467,155
3,177,361 2 B98 697

Qut of the total financial assets credit risk Is concentrated in trade debts and balances with
banks as they constitute 90% (2024: 21%) of the total financial assets. The Company's
exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debis other than Government parties is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The Company
establishes an allowance for expected credit loss that represenis jis estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade debts except for Government parties.

Trade debts are mainly due from local customers against sale of medical & industrial
gases and chemicals, Sales to the Company's customers are made on specific terms and
conditions. Customers' credit risk Is managed by each business unit subject to the
Company's established policy, procedures and controls relating to customers' credit risk
management. Credit limits have been established for all customers based on internal
rating criteria. Credit quality of the customers is also assessed based on an extensive
credit rating. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

Trade debis of the Company are nol exposed to significant credit risk as the Campany
trades with credit worthy customers. Trade debis except for Govemment parties
aggregating Rs.1,009.232 millon (2024: Rs.1,507.218 million) are past due of which
Rs.38.882 million (2024: Rs.24.856 million) have been impaired. Required allowance as
determined by management as per IFRS 9 (Financial instruments) has been made in
these unconsolidated financial statements.

Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with reasonably
high credit ratings.
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Bank balances

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external
credit ratings assigned to them as follows ;

Rating Rating 2025 2024
Shortterm Longterm agency Rupees in thousand
Bank Alfalah Ltd. Al+ AAA - PACRA 34775 05,015
The Bank of Punjab Al+ AAt PACRA 63,830 14,764
Allied Bank Ltd. Al+ ABA PACRA 186 4,165
Askari Bank Ltd. Al+ Abt PACRA 59,146 194
Bank Islami Pakistan Ltd. Al Al PACRA 31,469 2072
Dubai lslamic Bank
(Pakistan) Ltd. A+ AR VIS 21,120 46,180

Faysal Bank Ltd. Al+ AR PACRA 19,160 2231
JS Bank Ltd. Al+ AA PACRA 57 262
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA 30,080 36,013
Habib Metropolitan Bank Lid. ~ Al+ Ad+ PACRA 9,520 54,893
MCE Bank Ltd. Al+ AAA PACRA 13 12
Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Ltd. A Abe WIS 295,793 18,433
Habib Bank Lid. Al+ AAA VIS 793 20219
Meezan Bank Ltd. Al+ ARA VIS 144,720 69,890
Saoneri Bank Lid. A+ AA- PACRA 6,050 251
Bank Al Habib Ltd. A+ ALA PACRA 6,739 116
The Bank of Khyber Al AA- VIS 483 100,135
United Bank Ltd. Al+ AAA VIS 1,154 50
Pak- Qatar Takaful Ltd. NIA A VIS 10,138 0

735,236 467,155

Ligquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will nol be able 1o meet its financial cbligations
as they fall due. The Company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have
sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent liguidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of
adequate credit facililies. The Company's treasury depariment aims al maintaining
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
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Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:

Barticilire Carrying | Contractual Less than E::W"ZE; More than 5
amount cash flows 1 year years
years
Rupees in thousand
Year ended June 30, 2025
Long term finances 1,754,463 2,314,456 781,134 1,563,322 0
Redeamable capital - Sukuk 0 ] 0 0 0
Long term security deposits 79,366 79,366 0 79,366 0
Lease liabilities 6,254 20,624 348 2,021 27,255
Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess 22,638 22,638 22,638 1] 0
Trade and other payables 487 487 487,487 487 487 1] 0
Accrued profit 148 840 148,840 148,840 0 0
Short term borrowings 2,908,741 3,415,442 1415442 0 0
Unclaimed dividend M 4N 491 0 0
Unpaid dividend 2415 2,415 2415 0 0
5410 685 6,500,758 4. 828,795 1,644,709 1,255
Year ended June 30, 2024
Long term finances 2,098,429 2,683,886 630,059 2,058,827 0
Redeemable capital - Sukuk 400,000 1,428,089 136,399 1,125,626 166,064
Long term security deposits 70,136 70,136 0 70,136 0
Laase liabilities 6,130 20,926 332 1,924 27670
Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess 22 383 22,638 22638 ] 0
Trade and other payables 231,170 23,170 21,170 0 0
Accrued profit 336,120 336,120 336,120 i 0
Short tarm borrowings 1,580,482 1,918,765 1,918,765 0 0
Unclaimed dividend 491 49 491 1] 0
5,145,401 6,726,221 3,275,974 3,256,513 193,734

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined
on the basis of profit rates effective at the respective reporting dates. The rates of profit

have been disclosed in the respective notes to these unconsolidated financial statements.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safequard its ahility o
conlinue as a going concern so that [t can continue to provide relurns for sharsholders,
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the
sustained development of its business.

The Company manages fts capital structure by monitaring return on net assets and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Company also monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt comprising of profit bearing long term & short term finances and
lease liabilities less cash & bank balances. Capital signifies equity as shown In the
statement of financial position plus net debt. The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2025 and
June 30, 2024 is as follows:




2025 2024
Rupees in thousand

Total debt 4,629,458 4.485101
Cash and bank balances (735,796) {468,054)
Net debt 3,893,662 4,017,047
Share capital 5,704,519 5,001,879
Share premium a 164,011
Revaluation surplus on freehold

land and leasehold land 0 735,087
Merger reserve 0 1,342,748
Loans fraom direclars 40,000 0
Unappropriated profit 3,458,855 2,609,851
Equity 9,203,374 9,853,574
Capital 13,097,036 13,870,621
Gearing ratio (Net debt / (Net debt + Equity)) 29.73% 28.96%

48. SEGMENT REPORTING

481 The Company has following two strategic divisions which are its reportable segments.
Following summary describes the operations of each reportable segments:

a) Industrial Chemicals
This segment covers businass of trading of chemicals,

b) Industrial and Medical Gases
This segment covers business with large-scale industrial consumers, typically in the oil,
chemical, food and beverage, metal, glass sectors and medical customers in healthcare
sectors. Gases and services are supplied as part of customer specific solutions and range
from supply by road tankers in liquefied form. Gases for cutting and welding, hospital,

labaralary applications and a variely of medical purposes are also distribuled under
pressure in cylinders,
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48.2 Segment results were as follows:

Year ended June 30, 2025 Year ended June 30, 2024
Industrial , Industrial ,
and Medical é’;:fg; Tolal  andMedical é:iﬂ::;‘:; Total
Gasas Gases
Rupees in thousand

Metsales 6,573,754 B61,666 7435420 4722622 T14.765 5437387
Cost of sales (3.198,612)  (824.778)  (4,023,390) (3158,648) (666.228) (3,824,876)
Gross profit 31,375,142 36,688 32030 1563974 48,537 1,612,511
Distribution cost (199,319) {6,164) (205.483)(|  (140,344) (4,341) (144,685)
Administrative expenses (268,008)||  (14.106) (282112){|  (229.966)|| (12,103} (242,068

(467325) (20,270 (467.595)  [(370310)  (16.444) (386,754)
Segmant profit 2,007 817 16,618 2324435 1,193,664 32003 1225757
Unallocated corporate expenses
Other expenses (225,033) (103,015)
Other income 302322 551,108

3091724 1,673,850
Finance cost {453.021) (389,367)
Prafit before taxation, minimum and final tax levies 2,638,703 1,284,483
Minimim and final tax levies (1811) (654}
Profit befora taxation 2,636,692 1,283,829
Taxation (620,697 (498,023)
Profit after taxation 2,016,195 785,807
The segment assets and liabilities at the reporting date for the year-end were as follows:
As at June 30, 2025 As at June 30, 2024
Industrial Ireduistrial
and Madical lnl:l’uu:!ria! Total and Medical Indus.hlat Tetal
Chemicals Chemicals
Gagaes Gasas
Rupees in thousand

Segment agsets 12,085,356 62,305 12147661 11089252 2131880 13,191,142
Unaltocated assels 4,100,295 3,669,435
Total assets 16,247 956 16,680,637
Segment lizbilities 4,31 476 31z 42040648 2408456 03,450 3,101,915
Unaliocated liabilities 1519934 3925148
Total liabilities 7,044 582 7,027,063

48.3

All the non-current assets of the Company at the reporting date were located within

Pakistan. Depreciation expense mainly relates to industrial and medical gases segmenl.

48.4
transfers during the year,

48.5

Transfers belween business segmants are recorded at cost. There were no inter segment

One (2024: One) of the Company's customers having sales aggregating Rs.1.621 billion

(2024: Rs.1.380 billicn) contributed towards 18.55% (2024; 21.73%) of the Company's

gross sales.
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49,

491

50.

a1.

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

The following narmal production capacily has baen worked-oul on the basis of daily triple
shift basis:

2025 2024
m=mmmmemem CUbiC Meter ---e-eem
Industrial and medical gases
Production at normal capacity - gross 115,217,214 98,846,964
Preduction at normal capacity - net of normal losses 105,989,837 90,838 207
Actual praduction - net of normal losses 60,860,924 55,460,935
Efficiency achieved 57% 61%

Under-utilisation

Under-utilisation of available capacity is due to unavoidable / abnormal shutdowns and
repair and maintenance of plant & machinery.
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL SHARES ISLAMIC INDEX

Following information has been disclosed gz required under Paragraph 10 of item Viand item Vil of Part | of
the 4th Schedule 1o the Companes Act, 2017 relating to “Al Shares lslame index”

2025 2024
Carried under Carred under
Mon - Sharla Sharla amrang- Non - Sharia Shana arang
arrangement  ements arangements aments
Nots Rupees in thousand--— - —

Lang term financing 238 24 1] 1,714,463 0 2 898 429
Lease labilities 26 0 6,254 0 £190
Shorl term borrowings g V] 2,898,747 Q 1,570,488
Ancrued prafil 30 o 148,840 o 336,120
Shaort term Investments and loans 131 817 o 1,541,040 o 1,043,892
Bank balances - current and deposi 18 o 645,236 Lt 467 155
Profit earmed on bank deposits s 0 23,154 4] 120,824
Profit eamed on short lemn loans 39 1] 185,562 o 20831
Revanue sarned 34 0 8,739,189 0 5394859
Profit on slamic mode of financing 40 0 431,797 0 75,376

The Company has banking relationship with Islamic windows of conventional banking system as well as
Shariah compliant banks anly.

2025 2024
{(Number)
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Total number of employees at the year-end 34 357
Average number of employees during the year 343 332
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52. DISCLOSURES RELATING TO PROVIDENT FUND

52.1 The Company operates Tunded contributory provident fund scheme for all its permanent
and eligible employees. The following information is based on the audited financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024,

2025 2024
Rupees in thousand
Size of the Fund - total assets 52.2 41,097 82,257

52.2 The summarised movement in the members' fund account during the year based on the
audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2025 was as follows:

Rupees in
thousand
Balance as at June 30, 2024 82,257
Contribution received during the year from
employees and employer 37.632
Allocation of the Fund's income to members 3,044
Withdrawals by members fram the Fund (81,836)
41,097

53. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for
the purposes of comparison; significant re-classifications / re-statements made In these
unconsolidated financial statements have been delailed in note 4.1.

54, DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on 04-10-2025
by the board of directors of the Company.

Y 4 w ‘\J<

Hafiz Faroog Ahmad Asim Mahmod Atigue Ahmad Khan
(Chiafl Executive Officar) [Chief Financial Officer) {Directar)
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QW saisran SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinicn

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of GHANI CHEMICAL
INDUSTRIES LIMITED and itz Subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, cansolidated stalament of changes in equity, consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a frue and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at June 30, 2025, and of its consclidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
respongibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit mafters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matlers were

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

S.No. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. [The Scheme of Compromises,| Our audit procedures, amongst others,
Arrangements and Reconstruction for| included Lhe following:

Amalgamation (the Scheme - notes 1.2
to 1.61

GCIL's shareholders, ir the|- understood and analysed the accounting
extraordinary general meeting held on| treatment of the Scheme in the light of the
November 23, 2024, have unanimously| Court's order,

approved this Scheme.

Principal Offlce:

HM Houss

T-Bank Squara, Lahore

Tel: -82 52 37235082-37 Other Offices: &
mwlm‘.pi..mm I— ¢ .
L Email Ihr@hcopk com Karachi. tslamabad & Mutan ot Camiyst for success
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Key audit matters

SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Main fealures of Scheme are as under:

- To carve out Calcium Carbide Project
(CACP) hat is being sel-up by GCIL al
Hattar Special Economic Zone from GCIL
to Ghani ChemWorld Ltd. (GCWL).

- To merge the left over assets of Ghani
Products (Pvt.) Lid. (GPL) with and into
GCIL.

- To issue ordinary shares to GCWL.

= Carving out of CACP from GCIL and its
transfer to GCWL and merger of GPL
with and into GCIL are considered a key
audit matter due to the one-off nature of
transaction, complexity of ils setllement
and accounting  lreatment  in the
consolidated financial statements.

Financing obligations and compliance
with related covenant requirements
(note 24)

At the reporting date, the Group has
outstanding long term financing facilities
aggregating Rs.1,714 millien including
Rs.144 800 million obtained during the
currant year, which conslitute
approximately 24% of total liabilities of
the Group.

The Group's key operating / performance
indicators including liquidity, gearing and
finance cost are directly influenced by the
additions to the portfolio of financing.
Further, new financing arrangements
entail additional financial and non-
financial covenants for the Group to

- circularised direct

- assessed

camply with.

- evaluated the internal controls in place for
identifying, measuring and recording the
Scheme and ensuring their accuracy;

- reviewed the relevant documentation relating
to the Scheme,

- reviewad GCIL's shareholders’ meetings
minutes and resalutions related to the Schame
to ensure that the shareholders had approved
the transaction and that it was carried oul in
accordance with their direclives;

- ensured that the Court's Order was duly
complied with; and

- assessed the adequacy of the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements made by
the Group with regard to the Scheme as per

the applicable accounting and reporting
standards,
Our audit procedures, amongst others,

included the fallowing:

- reviewed terms and conditions of financing

agreements entered into by the Group with
various banks and financial institutions;

balance confirmations to
banks and financial institutions and verified
receipts and payments from relevant
statements;

- reviewed maturity analysis of financing to

ascertain the classification of financing as per
their remaining maturities;

the status of compliance with
financing covenants and also inquired from the
management with regard to their ability to
ensure fulure compliance with the covenants;
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

S.No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The significance of new financing
obtained during the year along with the
sensitivity of compliance with underlying
financing covenants are considered a key
area of focus during the audit and
therefore, we have identified this as a key
audit matter.

. |Contingencies (note 34)

The Group is subject to material
litigations  involving  different  Courts
pertaining to taxation and other matters,
which require management to make
assessments and judgements  with
respect to likelihood and impact of such
litigations on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

The  management has  engaged
independent legal counsels on these
matters.

The assessment of provisioning against
such litigations is a complex exercise and
reguires  significant  judgements lo
determine the level of cerlainty on these
matters.

The details of contingencies along with
management's assessments are
disclosed in  note 34 to  these
consolidated financial statements.

checked on test basis the calculations of
finance cosl recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss; and

assessed the adequacy of disclosures made in
respect of the long term financing obligations

in the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures,
included the following:

amongst  others,

discussed legal cases with the internal legal
department of the Group to understand the
management's view peint, obtained and
reviewed the litigation documents o assess
the facts and circumstances;

obtained opinions from legal counsels dealing
with such cases in the form of confirmations;

evaluated the possible outcome of these legal
cases in line with the requirements of 1AS 37
{Provisions,  contingent liabilities  and
contingent assets); and

disclosures of legal exposures and provisions
were assessed for completeness and
accuracy.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report
Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon,

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion therson.
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QW saisran SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information iz materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements In accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017} and for such internal contral as management determines iz
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management is responsible for assassing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of
Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughoul the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material missiatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intermal contral,

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audil
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinian on the effectiveness of the Group's internal conlrol.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

E J\-ﬁﬁ‘:g
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materal uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
ta continue as a going concern. If we conciude that & material uncertainty exisls, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
consolidatad financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our
auditors' report. Howewver, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
conlinue as a going concarn,

» Evaluate the owverall presentation, structure and conient of the consclidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and evenls In a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. \We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicabls,
related safeqguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the cansclidated financial statemants of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determing thal a matter should not be communicaled In our reporl because the adverse
consequences of doing 50 would reasanably be expected o outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is

MNafees ud din.
& ‘I o -
Shrin S g :)MMH'L
LAHORE; October 06, 2025 SHIMNEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.,
UDIN: AR2025101952vjG5tT6q CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Restated
Assets Note Rupees in thousand
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment -] 9,439,418 10,568, 886
Right of use assets T 531,758 547 649
Intangible assets 8 1,652 1,652
Long term investments 9 515 0
Long term deposits 10 66,616 66,616
10,039,959 11,184,803
Curmrent assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 11 427 844 362,135
Stock-in-trade 12 94,839 160,587
Trade debis 13 2,081,861 2,142 223
Loans and advances 14 1,650,403 1,336 248
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 15 358,360 590 358
Tax refunds due from Govemment 16 59,219 93,841
Prepaid tax levies 2077 516
Advance income tax 17 678,207 421,995
Short term investments 18 100,000 100,000
Cash and bank balances 19 750,420 486,760
6,203,230 5,694 663
Total assets 16,243,189 16,879,466
Equity and liabilities
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 20 5,704,519 5,001,879
Share premium 21 0 164,011
Revaluation surplus on freehold and leasehoid land 22 0 736,087
Merger reserve 23 0 1,342,746
Loans from directors 24.10 40,000 0
Unapproprated profit 3,453,834 2 608 613
Total equity 9,198,353 9,852 336
Non-current liabilities
Long term finances 24 1,214,392 1,640,536
Redeemable capital - Sukuk 25 o 800,000
Long term security deposils 26 79,366 70,136
Lease labiiities 27 5,906 5,858
Deferred liabilities 28 1,017,093 832 854
2.316,757 3,349 384
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 29 607,759 313,805
Contracl liabilities 30 92,026 644 340
Accrued profit 3 148,840 336,120
Short term borrowings 32 2,908,741 1,580 482
Current portion of non-current liabilities i3 528,022 486 870
Provision for tax levies 1,811 G54
Taxation 437,974 314,984
Unclaimed dividend 491 491
Unpaid dividend 2,415 0
4,728,079 3,677,746
Total liabilities 7,044 B36 7,027 130
Contingencies and commitments 34
Total equity and liabilities 16,243,189 16,879,466
The annexed notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial 51.3?1
sl >t BN
Hafiz Farooq Ahmad —  AsimMahmud Afique Ahmad Khan
[Chief Execufive Officer) (Chief Financial Officer) {Director)
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Sales

Less: sales tax
Sales - net
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution cost
Administrative expenses

Other expenses
Other income

Profit from operations
Finance cost

Share of profit from an Associated
Company
Profit before taxation, minimum and final tax levies
Minimum and final tax levies
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income
Surplus arisen upon revaluation of:
- freehold land
= leasehold land

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share

Note
35
35

36

37
38
39

41

42

6.2
52861

44

2025 2024
Restated
Rupees in thousand
8,739,189 6,394,859
(1,303,769) (957,472)
7,435,420 5,437,387
(4,023,390) (3,824,876)
3,412,030 1,612,511
(205,483) (144,685)
(287,541) (243,355)
(225,100) (103,079)
394,196 551,221
(323,928} 60,102
3,088,102 1,672,613
(453,021) (389,368)
2,635,081 1,283,245
15 0
2,635,096 1,283,245
(1,811) (654)
2,633,285 1,282,591
(620,873) (498,022)
2,012,412 784,560
0 123,040
0 114,769
0 237,809
2,012,412 1,022,378

ER

1.58

The annexed notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Hafiz Faroog Ahmad Asim Mahmud
(Chief Executive Officer) (Chief Financial Officer)
Ghani Chemical Indusiries Limibed 115

Atique Ahmad Khan
(Director)
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Sales

Less: sales tax
Sales - net
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution cost
Administrative expenses

Other expenses
Other income

Profit from operations
Finance cost

Share of profit from an Associated
Company
Profit before taxation, minimum and final tax levies
Minimum and final tax levies
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income
Surplus arisen upon revaluation of:
- freehold land
= leasehold land

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share

Note
35
35

36

37
38
39

41

42

6.2
52861

44

2025 2024
Restated
Rupees in thousand
8,739,189 6,394,859
(1,303,769) (957,472)
7,435,420 5,437,387
(4,023,390) (3,824,876)
3,412,030 1,612,511
(205,483) (144,685)
(287,541) (243,355)
(225,100) (103,079)
394,196 551,221
(323,928} 60,102
3,088,102 1,672,613
(453,021) (389,368)
2,635,081 1,283,245
15 0
2,635,096 1,283,245
(1,811) (654)
2,633,285 1,282,591
(620,873) (498,022)
2,012,412 784,560
0 123,040
0 114,769
0 237,809
2,012,412 1,022,378
e RUpees -———
3.91 1.58

The annexed notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
i T %
A4 o
Hafiz Farooq Ahmad Asim Mahmud Atique Ahmad Khan
(Chief Executive Officer) (Chief Financial Officer) (Director)
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GHAMNI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Balance as at June 30, 2023

Total comprehensive income for the
year ended June 30, 2024

Balance as at June 30, 2024
Transactions with owners- distribution
Cash dividend paid for the period of six
months ended December 31, 2024

at the rate of Re. 0.60 per share

Adjustments incorporated as per the
Scheme as detailed in note 1.2

Balance transferred from mark-up
bearing loans of directors

Total comprehensive income for the
year ended June 30, 2025

Balance as at June 30, 2025

Capital reserves
Revenue
Sh Fanlsbian Loans TESETVE
i_" Share fml b ::d Merger from unappr- Total
! premium leasehold reserve | Directors | opriated
land
Rupees in thousand

5,001,879 164,011 497 2TE 1342746 0 1524044 8,820,558
1] ] 237 809 ] o TEA 560  1,022378
5,001,878 164,011 Ta5 0T 1342746 0 2608613 5852336
a ] ] ] o (300,113) (300,113)
TaZe40  (164,011) (T35,087) (1.342,746) 0 (867.07T8) (2.406,282)
o o o 1] 40,000 L] 40,000
a ] ] o 0 202412 2002412
5,704,519 1] o 1] 40,000 3453834 5,198,353

The annexed notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year - before laxation, minimum and final lax levies
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Finance cosl 41
Gain on disposal of operaling fixed assels 6.3
Depreciation 6.6
Depreciation on right-of-use assels [
Allowance for expected credit loss 131
Goodwill 9.1
Adjustmenls incorporated as per the

Scheme as delailed in nole 1.2
Profit before working capital changes
Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debls
Loans and advances
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Short lerm investments
Tax refunds due from Governmenl
(Decrease) |/ increase in trade and
other payables and contract liabilities

Note

Cash generated from operations

Income lax, minimum and final tax levies paid

MNet cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capilal expenditure - nel of transfers o GCWL

Proceeds from sale of operaling fixed assels 6.3
Long term investmenls made 9
Long term deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term finances (repaid) / oblained - net

Redeemable capilal - Sukuk:

- issued 25
- transferred / redeemed 25
Long term securily deposilts - net

Shorl term borrowings

Lease liabilities 27
Finance cost paid

Dividends paid

Net cash generated from financing activities

MNet increase [ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - al beginning ol the year 19
Bank balance acquired on merger of GPL into GCIL 1.3

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 19

2025 2024

(Rupees in thousand)
2,635,096 1,283,245
453,021 389,368
(6,063) (74,185)
204,890 176,432
15,891 14,332
38,193 5,000
0 (173)
(938,533) 0
2,402,495 1,794,019
(65,709)| (48,290)
65,748 (81,212)
22,169 | | (1,038,998)
(314,155) 158,211
231,998 (146,788)
0 811,000
34,622 (59,611)
(258,360) 548 305
(283,687) 142 617
2,118,808 1,936,636
(567,106) (222 BAT)
1,551,702 1,713,939
(1,359,441)| | (3,529 549)
19,811 243 287
(515) 0
0 577
(1,340,145)  (3,285,685)
(350,228) 597,012
0 800,000
0 (162,500)
9,230 21,045
1,328,259 453,043
64 69
(640,046) (175,336)
(297,698) 0
49,581 1,533,333
261,138 (38,413)
486,760 525173
2,522 0
750,420 486,760

The annexed noles 1 lo 55 form an integral part of these consolidated financial slatemenls.
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GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1 Ghani Chemical Industries Lid. { GCIL ) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited
company on November 23, 2015 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now
the Companies Act, 2017) and was converted into a public limited company on April 20,
2017. GCIL is principally engaged in manufacturing, sale and frading of medical &
industrial gases and chemicals. The registered office and head office of GCIL are situated
at 10-N, Model Town Extension, Lahore whereas production facilities are situated at Phool
MNagar, District Kasur and Indusirial Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi. GCIL's liaison office is
situated in Sangjani, District Rawalpindi.

Ghani Global Holdings Lid.'s { GGHL - the Holding Company) direct and indirect holding in
GCIL is 55.93% as at June 30, 2025; therefore, GCIL has been freated a Subsidiary of
GGHL

GGHL holds 279,905,986 (2024; 279,905,983) ordinary shares of GCIL representing
49.07% ( 2024: 55.96%) of its paid-up capital as at June 30, 2025.

As per the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction {the Scheme), as
sanctioned by the Lahore High Court, Lahore on February 06, 2019, the Holding Company
had transferred its manufacturing undertaking to GCIL on July 08, 2019 after the effective
date.

GCIl's shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting held on Movember 23,
2024, have unanimously approved the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and
Reconstruction for Demerger / Merger of Ghani Chemical Industries Ltd. (GCIL) and Ghani
ChemWorld Ltd. (GCWL) and Ghani Products (Pvt) Ltd. (GPL) by passing the special
resolutions under the provisions of sections 279 to 283 of the Companies Act, 2017 and
other applicable provisions. Main features of the Scheme are as under:

- To carve out Calcium Carbide Project that is being set-up by GCIL at Hattar Special
Economic Zone from GCIL to GCWL.

- To merge the left over assets of GPL with and into GCIL against one fo one swap ratio.

- To issue 500 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each of GCWL against 1,000 ordinary shares of
GCIL of Rs.10 each.

- To issue and allot 70 million additional ordinary shares of GCIL to GCWL.

- To list GCWL at Pakistan Stock Exchange after submission of requisite documents.

1.2 The Scheme of Compromises, Arrangements and Reconstruction for Amalgamation

Ghani Chemical Industries Litd. (GCIL), Ghani ChemWorld Ltd. (GCWL) and Ghani
Products (Pvt.) Ltd. (GPL) [ the Petitioners | have filed a joint petition under sections 279 to
283 and 285 of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and all other enabling provisions of law
before the Lahore High Court (LHC) for sanction of the Scheme of Compromises,
Armrangements and Reconstruction (the Scheme) for amalgamation between the
Petitioners and their members.
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The LHC, vide its order dated February 20, 2025, in terms of section 282 (3) (4) and (5) of
the Act has ordered as follows:

- In terms of the Scheme, the whole of the business and undertaking of Calcium Carbide
Project (CACP) of GCIL be transferred and vest in GCWL without any further act or deed
including all assets, liabilities, properties, rights, privileges, benefits of contracts, sanctions,
authorizations, licenses and obligations of each of GCIL.

- In terms of the Scheme, designated assets of GPL be transferred and vest into GCIL
together with all assets, liabilities, properties, rights, privileges, benefits of coniracts,
sanciions, authorizations, licenses and obligations of each of GPL.

- In terms of the Scheme, shares of GCIL held by GPL be transferred to shareholders of
GPL. Thereafter, GPL shall be dissolved without winding up in terms of the Scheme.

GCIL is principally engaged in the manufacturing, selling and trading of medical &
industrial gases and chemicals. To cater the growing demand for products in the medical
sector, industries and development projects in K.PK. and Northem areas, GCIL has been
engaged for the set-up of its 5th Air Separation Unit Plant for medical & industrial gases
and Calcium Carbide manufacturing plant at Hattar Special Economic Zone, District
Haripur.

GCWL has been incorporated on July 31, 2024 under the Act as wholly owned Subsidiary
of GCIL. GCWL will run / operate calcium carbide and related producis project. Main
purpose of the formation of GCWL is to transfer CACP from GCIL to GCWL.

The salient features of the Scheme are as follows:
a) CACP has been carved out / separated from GCIL and transferred to GCWL.

b) All licenses, incentives, zone enterprise status, concessions, approvals including
approvals from Depariment of Explosives, Depariment of Environment, electricity
connection from PESCO related to CACP, tax holidays under clause 126 E of Part 1 of the
Second Schedule under the Income T ax Ordinance, 2001 available to GCIL for the project
being set-up at Hattar Special Economic Zone announced by the Government of K.PK.
and Government of Pakistan are available to GCWL under the Scheme.

c) Shares of GCWL have been issued (as an additional capital) to the shareholders of
GCIL under the SWAP ratio i.e. 500 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each of GCWL against 1,000
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each of GCIL. GCWL has allotted 250,093,950 shares for
consideration otherwise than in cash to the shareholders of GCIL.

d) GCIL is engaged in operating / running the medical / indusinal gases plants.

e) Additional shares of GCIL have also been issued to GCWL under the Scheme to help
GCWL to access the revenue stream of established projects.

f) Part of assets and liabilities of GPL have been transferred to GCIL and part of assets
{net) have been distributed to the shareholders of GPL.

g) Shares of GCIL (as an additional capital) have been issued to the shareholders of GPL
under the SWAP ratio i.e. 880 shares of GCIL for every share of GPL.

h) Shares of GCIL held by GPL have been distributed to the shareholders of GPL.

i) Upon the completion of merger / amalgamation through the Scheme, GPL has been
dissolved by the order of the LHC without winding up and the issuance of shares of GCIL
to the registered shareholders of GPL.

j) Retained eamings, revenue reserves, capital reserves and merger reserves of GCIL and
GCWL have been re-characterised / reconstructed under the Scheme.
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13 Financial Effects of the Scheme:

a) Mis liyas Saeed & Co., Chartered Accountants (external Auditors of GCWL) have
camied out an agreed upon procedures exercise to extract the assets, reserves and
liabilities pertaining to CACP from the un-audited unconsolidated interim statement of
financial position of GCIL as at February 20, 2025. M/s llyas Saeed & Co., vide their report
bearing Ref. No. A/00187/25 dated March 14, 2025, have determined the following values
for assets, reserves and liabilities pertaining to CACP as at February 20, 2025 :

Rupees in
thousand
Property, plant and equipment
- operating fixed assets 298,838
- capital work-in-progress 1,915,010
- stores held for capital expenditure 56,423
2,270,271
Stores, spares and loose tools 188,322
Stock-in-trade 309,620
Loans and advances 357,719
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 200,711
Short term investments 100,000
1,156,372
3,426,643
Redeemable capital- Sukuk (800,000)
Trade and other payables (204,787)
Accrued profit (12,691)
Adjustment (243)

(1,017,721)

Met assets fransferred by GCIL to GCWL 2,408,922

GCIL has incorporated the aforementioned net assets of Rs.2.409 billion in its books of
account as follows:

- Issued 70,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each io GCWL (700,000)

- Utilised following reserves appearing in its books of account:

- Share premium 164,011
- Revaluation surplus on freehold and leasehold land 735,087
- Merger reserve 1,342,746
- Unappropriated profit 867,078

2,408,922
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b) The following net assets of GPL, as per the Scheme, have been transferred to GCIL by

GPL:
Rupees in
thousand
Advance income tax 780
Cash and bank balances 2,522
Trade and other payables (366)
Taxation (63)
Adjustment (243)
Met assets transferred by GPL to GCIL. 2,640
263960 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued to shareholders
of GPL by GCIL 2,640

1.4 Disclosure in financial statements

The aforementioned adjustments and entries have been duly reflected in the relevant
notes to these consolidated financial statements.

1.5 Employees and Contracts

Employees of GCIL engaged in CACF, on the effective date, have become employees of
GCWL on the basis that their services have not been interrupted by the transfer and
vesting of the undertaking and business of GCIL into GCWL on the same remuneration
and benefits.

1.6 Accounting policy

As per the Scheme, the accounting entries in the books of account of GCWL have been
recorded at the respective values appearing in the books of account of GCIL on the date
preceding the effective date. For profit and loss items in the books of account, only effect
has been shown in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As per the Scheme, the accounting entries in the books of account of GCIL have been
recorded at the respective values appearing in the books of account of GPL on the date
preceding the effective date. For profit and loss items in the books of account, only effect
has been shown in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

1.7 Subsidiary Companies
(a) Ghani Gases (Pvt.) Ltd. (GGPL)

GGPL was incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) as a
private limited company on May 18, 2020. The principal business of GGFPL is fo camy on
the business of manufacturers, buyers, sellers, importers, exporters, dealers and traders of
all types of gases including LPG and LNG for use in industries, hospitals, houses, factories
and all types of chemicals including pefro-chemicals and their derivatives and imporiers,
exporters and manufacturers of and dealers in heavy chemicals, alkalis, acids, drugs,
tannins, essences, pharmaceutical, surgical and scientific apparatus and materials.

GGPL is a wholly owned Subsidiary of GCIL, which holds 999,997 (2024: 999,997)
ordinary shares representing 99.99% ( 2024: 99.99%) of its paid-up capital as at June 30,
2025.

GGPL has not commenced its commercial operations till the reporting date.
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(b) Ghani Power (Pvt.) Ltd. (GPPL)

GPPL was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on March 15, 2024 under
the Companies Act, 2017. The principal line of business of GPPL shall be to camy on all or
any of the businesses of generating, purchasing, importing, transforming, converting,
manufacturing, distributing, supplying, exporting and dealing in power, eleciricity, oil, gas,
hydrocarbons, petrochemicals, pefroleum solar, hydel power plants and pefroleum
products, asphalt, bituminous substances or services associated therewith and all other
forms of energy and energy related products / services including all kinds of efficient use of
energy and to perform all other acits which are necessary or incidental to the above
businesses and related products. GPPL has not commenced its commercial operations fill
the reporting date.

GPPL is a wholly owned Subsidiary of GCIL, which holds 999,997 (2024: 999,997)

ordinary shares representing 99.99% (2024: 99.99%) of its paid-up capital as at June 30,
2025.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
21 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and
reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.

2.2 Accounting convention

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except where otherwise specifically stated.

23 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consoclidated financial statements are measured using the currency of
primary economic environment in which the Company operates. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group's functional
currency. All financial information has been rounded-off to the nearest thousand of Rupees
unless otherwise stated.

2.4 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements,
eslimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group's accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
estimates are recognised prospectively.

The areas where various assumplions and estimates are significant to the Group's
consolidated financial statements or where judgement was exercised in application of
accounting policies are as follows:
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- Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and eguipment.

- Provision for impairment of inventories.

- Allowance for expected credit loss.

- Impairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventories.

- Estimation of provisions.

- Estimation of contingent liabilities.

- Provisions for current taxation, minimum tax and final tax levies and recognition of
deferred tax asset (for carried forward tax losses).

The revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in the year in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision and
future year if the revision affects both current and future years.

3. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except where otherwise specifically stated.

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of GCIL, GGPL
and GPPL as at and for the year ended June 30, 2025. GCIl's direct interesis in
Subsidiary Companies as at June 30, 2025 were as follows:

2025 2024

%o Yo
- GGPL 99.99 99.99
- GPPL 99.99 99.99

MNon-controlling interests are not calculated as both the Subsidiary Companies are virtually
wholly owned.

Subsidiary is an entity over which GCIL has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or converiible are considered when assessing whether GCIL controls another
entity. GCIL also assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50% of
the voting power but is able to govemn the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-
facto conirol. De-facto control may arnise in circumstances where the size of GCIL's voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders give GCIL the
power o govem the financial and operating policies, etc.

Subsidiary is fully consclidated from the date on which control is transferred fo the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that confrol ceases.

All significant inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on fransactions
between group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-company
transactions that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
Subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

4. INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO
EXISTING STANDARDS

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable

to the Group's consolidated financial statements covering annual pericds, beginning on or
after the following dates:
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4.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to accounting standards that are
effective in current year

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) are effective for accounting period beginning on July 01, 2024 but are
considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Group’s operations
{(although they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events) and are,
therefore, not detailed in these consolidated financial statements, except for the following:

Amendment to International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 - Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current

Under existing IAS 1 reguirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do
not have an unconditional right to defer setiement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the end of the reporting period. As part of this amendment, the requirement for a right
to be unconditional has been removed and instead, the amendment requires that a right to
defer settlement must have substance and exist at the end of the reporting period. This
right may be subject to a Company complying with conditions (covenanis) specified in a
loan arrangement. The IASB, after reconsidering certain aspecis of the amendment,
reconfirmed that only covenants with which a Company must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. Covenants
with which the Company must comply after the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not
affect a liability's classification at that date. However, when non-current liabilities are
subject to future covenants, companies will now need to disclose information to help users
understand the risk that those liabilities could become repayable within 12 months after the
reporting date.

The above amendment did not result in any significant changes to these consolidated
financial statements.

4.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group

There are certain standards, amendments to the accounting standards and interpretations
that are mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2025
but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Group's
operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these consolidated financial statements,
except for the following:

(a) IFRS 51 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability - Related Financial
Information and IFRS 52 Climate - Related Disclosures (effective for annual period
beginning on July 01, 2025)

These standards include the core framework for the disclosure of materal information
about sustainability - related risks, opportunities across an entity's value chain and set out
the requirements for entities to disclose information about climate - related risks and

opportunities.

IFRS 51 requires entities to disclose information about its sustainability - related risks and
opportunities that is useful to primary users of general purpose financial reporting in
making decisions relating to providing resources to the entity. The standards provide
guidance on identifying sustainability - related risks and opportunities, and the relevant
disclosures to be made in respect of those sustainability - related risks and opporfunities.
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IFRS 52 is a thematic standard that builds on the requirements of IFRS 51 and is focused
on climate-related disclosures. IFRS S2 requires an entity to identify and disclose climate-
related risks and opportunities that could affect the entity's prospects over the short,
medium and long term. In addition, IFRS 52 requires entities to consider other industry-
based meirics and seven cross-industry mefrics when disclosing gualitative and
quantitative components on how the entity uses metrics and targets to measure, monitor
and manage the identified material climate-related risks and opporiunities. The cross-
industry metrics include disclosures on greenhouse gas ('GHG'") emissions, transition risks,
physical risks, climate-related opportunities, capital deployment, intemal carbon prices and
remuneration.

{b) Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 - Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments (effective for annual period beginning on January 01, 2026)

The amendments:

- clarify the requirements for the fiming of recognition and derecognition of some financial
assets and liabilities, with a new exception for some financial liabilities settled through an
electronic cash transfer system;

- clanfy and add further guidance for assessing whether a financial asset meets the solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) criterion;

- add new disclosures for certain instruments with confractual terms that can change cash
flows (such as some instruments with features linked to the achievement of environment,
social and governance (ESG) targets); and

- make updates fo the disclosures for equity instruments designated at Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

An important clarification brought about in these amendments is that a payment instruction
(e.g. a cheque) that is prepared for a future payment will generally not meet the
requirements for the financial liability to be discharged and hence derecognised. The
previous practice of financial liabilities being derecognised upon issuance of cheques
would need fo be reconsidered.

(c) Annual improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards — Volume 11
(effective for annual period beginning on January 01, 2026)

Annual improvements are limited to changes that either clanfy the wording in an
Accounting Standard or comrect relatively minor unintended consequences, oversights or
conflicts between the requirements in the Accounting Standards. The 2024 amendments
are to the following standards:

- IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporiing Standards;

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and its accompanying Guidance on
implementing IFRS 7;

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments:;
-IFRS5 10 Consolidated Financial Statements; and

- 1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.
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{(d) IFRS 18 - Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (effective for
annual period beginning on January 01, 2027)

This is the new standard on presentation and disclosure in financial statements, with a
focus on updates to the statement of profit or loss. The key new concepts introduced in
IFRS 18 relate to:

- the structure of the statement of profit or loss;

- required disclosures in the financial statements for certain profit or loss performance
measures that are reported outside an entity's financial statements (that is, management-
defined performance measures); and

- enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary
financial statements and notes in general.

The Group is yet to assess the impact of this standard on its consolidated financial
statements.

5. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consclidated financial
statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended June 30, 2024.

51 IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes (the
Guidance) issued by ICAP (Adoption of Approach 2)

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has issued the aforementioned
Guidance through Circular No. 07 / 2024 dated May 15, 2024. The Circular has suggested
two approaches for determination of taxes as per IAS 12 and levy as per IFRIC 21.

Upto June 30, 2024, GCIL has applied Approach 1 and minimum and final taxes were
presented as 'minimum and final tax levies'. GCIL, during the current year, has adopted
Approach 2 and the portion of tax computed on taxable income at the enacted tax rate has
been recognised as income tax expense and the balance expense has been recognised
as levy.

The aforesaid Guidance has been applied retrospectively by GCIL, and comparative
information has been resiated, which has not affected current year's or prior years' net
sales, profit after taxes and levies, equity or cash flows. The impact as of July 01, 2023 is
not material io these consolidated financial statements. In accordance with the
requirements of IAS 1 (Presentation of financial statements), balances as at June 30, 2024
have been restated and third statement of financial position as of July 01, 2023 has not
been presented due to immaterial impact

In the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended June 30, 2024, 'minimum
and final tax levies' aggregating Rs.210.789 million under Approach 1 have been
reclassified to Rs.0.654 million under Approach 2 whereas current taxation expense for the
preceding year amounting Rs.103.586 million has been increased to Rs.313.731 miilion
under Approach 2.

In the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, 'provision for tax
levies' amounting Rs.212.217 million previously reported under Approach 1 has been
reclassified and stated at Rs.0.654 million under Approach 2 whereas 'taxation' amounting
Rs.103.421 million previously reported under Approach 1 has been reclassified and stated
at Rs.314.984 million under Approach 2 .
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The aforesaid accounting treatments have not affected current and prior year's net sales,
profit after taxes and levies, equity or cash flows.

5.2 Property, plant and equipment
a) Owned
Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment other than freehold and leasehold land are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold and
leasehold land are stated at revalued amounts.

Residual value and the useful life of assets are reviewed at each financial year end and if
expectations differ from previous esfimates the change is accounted for as change in
accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8 - Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
MNormal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and
when incummed.

Revaluation

Increases in the camying amounts arising on revaluation of freehold and leasehold land
are recognised, in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a
decrease previously recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss, the increase is
first recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous
increases of the same asset are first recognised in consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all
other decreases are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss using the reducing
balance method. Depreciation on additions to property, plant and eguipment is charged
from the date on which the asset is acquired or capitalised, while no depreciation is
charged from the date on which the asset is disposed-off.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or
retirement of an asset is represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised as an income or expense.

Judgement and estimates

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each year-end. The effect of any change in estimates is accounted for on a

prospective basis.
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b) Right of use assets and related liabilities

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease based on whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of fime in exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The extension
and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and comresponding liabilities at the date at
which the leased assets are available for use by the Group.

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate.
Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. At initial
recognition, liabilities have been discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payment includes fixed payments with annual increments. The lease liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incumred. The righi-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line
method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected patiern of
consumption of future economic benefits. The camying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced by impaimment losses, if any.

c) Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure on item of property, plant and equipment,
which are in the course of construction, erection or installation.

Capital work-in-progress and stores held for capital expenditure are stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss. All expenditure connected with specific assets incurmed during
installation and construction period are carmmied under capital work-in-progress. Transfers
are made to respective property, plant and eguipment category as and when assets are
available for use.

5.3 intangible assets - Software

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment
loss. An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits that
are atiributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and that the cost of such asset can
also be measured reliably.

Software is amortised using straight line method at the rate given in note 8.2 to these
consolidated financial statements. Amortisation is charged to statement of profit or loss
from the date on which the asset is available for use. Amortisation on additions is charged
on pro-rata basis from the date on which asset is put to use, while for disposals,
amortisation is charged upto the date of disposal.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All expenditure
are charged to income as and when incurred. Gain or loss arising on disposal and
retirement of intangible asset is determined as a difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised as income or expense in
statement of profit or loss immediately.
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5.4 Stores, spares and loose tools

These are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by using the
weighted average method. Hems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value,
plus other charges paid thereon. Provision is also made for slow moving and obsolete
items.

5.5 Stock-in-trade
These are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is determined as

follows:

Particulars Mode of valuation

- Raw and packing materials At weighted average cost.

- Work-in-process At weighted average manufacturing cost.
- Finished goods At weighted average manufacturing cost.
- ltems in transit Cost comprise invoice values plus other

charges incumed thereon.

Met realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

5.6 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Allowance is made on the basis of lifeime expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts and other
receivables. Bad debis are written-off when considered irrecoverable.

5.7 Loans, advances, prepayments and trade deposits

These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given. The
Group assesses al each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets
excluding inventory may be impaired. if such indication exists, the carrying amounts of
such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their
recoverable amount. Where camying value exceeds recoverable amount, asseis are
written down to the recoverable amount and the difference is charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

58 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are camied in the statement of financial position at cost. For the
purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand,
banking instrument (call deposit receipt) and cash at banks, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

5.9 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the
Group.

510 Bomowings and borrowing costs

Bomowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of fransaction costs incurred and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred
except to the extent of borrowing costs that are direcly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset Such borrowing costs, if any, are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
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511 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a parly to the confractual provisions of the
instrument. All the financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Group loses
control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are
derecognised at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gains or losses on de-recognition
of the financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

a) Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
i) amortised cost where the effective interest rate method is applied;

i) fair value through profit or loss; and

iii} fair value through other comprehensive income.

The classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financial
assets and the confractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in consolidated
statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive income (OCI).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Further, financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transfemred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At inifial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that
are directly atiributable to the acguisition of the financial asset Transaction costs of
financial assets camied at FVTPL are expensed in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for intermal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

- information developed intemally or obtained from external sources indicate that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Impairment of financial asseis

The Group assesses on a historical as well as forward-looking basis, the expected credit
loss (ECL) as associated with its trade debts. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
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Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:
- Trade debts

- Bank balances

Simplified approach for trade debts

The Group recognises life time ECL on frade debts, using the simplified approach. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes;

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Recognition of loss allowance

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss for all
financial instruments with a comesponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.

Write-off

The Group writes-off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. The assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is based on
unavailability of debtor's sources of income or assets to generate sufficient future cash
flows to repay the amount.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off result in impairment gains.

b) Financial Liabilities
Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:
i} fair value through profit or loss; and
ii) other financial liabilities.

The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of other financial
liabilities also include directly attributable transaction costs. The subsequent measurement
of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

i) Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value
through profit or loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability upon recognition
as being at fair value through profit or loss.

iii) Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year, when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through effective interest rate amortisation process.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and only when the Group's obligations
are discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and setile the liability simultaneously.

5.12 Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

The assets that are subject to depreciation are assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication that the assets are impaired. If there is an
indication of possible impaimment, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and
compared with its camying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carmrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. The impaimment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss:

An impairment loss is reversed only fo the extent that the asset carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. The Group recognises the reversal immediately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

513 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

- Revenue from sale of goods or rendering of services is recognised when performance
obligations are satisfied by transferring control (i.e. at the time when deliveries are
made or services are rendered) of a promised good or service to a customer, and
control either transfers over time or at a point in time. Revenue from sale of goods and
rendering of services is measured net of sales tax, returns and trade discounts.

- Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive dividend is
established, i.e. on the date of books closure of the investee company declaring the
dividend.

- Gains and losses arising on disposal of investments are included in income in the year
in which these are disposed-off.

- Return on bank deposits is recognised on time proportion basis using the effective rate
of return.

Contract assets

Confract assefs arise when the Group performs its performance obligations by transferring
goods and services to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or before
payment is due.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Group to fransfer goods and services o a customer
for which the Group has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Group transfers goods and services, a confract liability is
recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs its performmance obligations under the contract.
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5.14 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Pak Rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated in Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date.
Exchange gains and losses are taken to statement of profit or loss.

5.15 Taxation
Taxation comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Income tax expense is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, if any, in which case the tax amounts are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income or equity.

(a) Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation
after taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any. The charge for current
year also includes adjusiments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from
assessments framed [ finalised during the year.

(b)  Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the statement of financial position liability method on all
temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts appearing in the financial statements. Deferred tax liability is recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that temporary differences will
reverse in the future and taxable income will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Defemred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

5.16 Levies

Minimum taxes, that exceed the normal tax liability as well as tax deducted at source
{other than from dividends received from subsidiaries and associates) under the provisions
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), are not within the scope of IAS 12
(Income taxes) instead these taxes fall under the provisions of IFRIC 21 (Levies) and IAS
37 (Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets).

Consequently, a liability for these levies is recognised in accordance with IFRIC 21 when
the event specified in the Ordinance that triggers the obligation occurs. Therefore, excess
minimum taxes and final taxes are recognised as liabilities when they become due,
ensuring compliance with the recognition and measurement principles outlined in 1AS 37.

5.17 Eamnings per share

The Group presents basic eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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5.18 Related party transactions

Transactions and contracts with related parties are based on the policy that all iransactions
between the Group and related parties are carried-out at an arm's length.

5.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation, legal or construciive,
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to setile the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of reporting period, taking into account the risks and
unceriainties sumounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be
measured reliably.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in
laws, regulations, public expectations, prices and conditions, and can take place many
years in future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustment to the amount of previously
recognised provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss unless
the provision was originally recognised as part of cost of an asset.

520 Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when the Group

- has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group; or

- has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seitle the obligation, or the amount of obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability .

5.21 Employees' benefits
Defined contribution plan
GCIL operates a funded employees’ provident fund scheme for its permanent eligible
employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 8.33% of gross pay are made both
by GCIL and employees to the fund.
Compensated absences

Compensated absences are accounted for employees of GCIL on un-availed balance of
leave in the period in which the absences are eamed.
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522 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reporied in 8 manner consistent with the intemal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of GCIL that makes strategic
decisions.

Segment assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment assets consist primarily of
property, plant & equipment, stores, spares & loose tools and stock-in-trade. Segment
liabilities comprise of long term finances, lease liabilities, short term borrowings and trade
& other payables.

On the basis of its intemal reporting structure, GCIL has two reportable segments i.e.
Industrial & Medical Gases and Industrial Chemicals.

523 Deferred income - government grant

Government grant is initially measured at fair value; after initial recognition, it is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

524 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend distribution to the GCIL's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are
recognised in the period in which these are approved.

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Note 2025 2024

Rupees in thousand
Operating fixed assets 6.1 9,215,763 6,792,002
Capital work-in-progress 6.8 48,290 3,158 662
Stores held for capital expenditure 6.11 175,365 618222
9,439,418 10,568,886
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6.1 Operating fixed assets - tangible

. Fumiture  Office
Fre:'::i:l Le:e::ﬂ Bﬁ:ng Fh“r. o and  equipmen Computers Vehicles  Total
fictures t
................................ Rupees in thouSand- -« -« -~ === vnsnemsnmersnmamnnss
at June 30, 2023
Cost I revaluation 1230400 375,000 464441 5012706 49461 12490 15399 2289 TIBEAEM
depreciation ] 0 HTEM B13 518 2812 4,156 11907 7734 1347981
Book value 1230400 375000 246817 4,199,188 26829 8334 3482 1ME13 6246
Yearended June 30, 2024
Additions ] TAT8 516 390,257 3875 105 2365 MTIS  TH 161
{Revaluation adjustments
{mote 5.2) 123040 51662 0 [ ] 0 a 0 17402
|Disposals:
-cost | revaluation ] ] L] 515M ] 544 0 147463 201580
- accumulated ] ] 0 {2,062) ] (283) 0 (30433  (3247H)
] ] 0 51511 ] %1 0 17330 {89,002
|Depreciation charge
for the year ] 0 MM a7 812 2585 1048 1336 48507 176432
[Book value 1359M0 4NM0 mEN  4MIIZ 21F19 1020 4521 204N 679200
Year ended June 30, 2025
Additions ] ] 926 2ET2ETS 7000 15508 4074 240854 2941237
Transfemred to GCWL as per the
Scheme 2 detailed in note 1.2
- cost | revaluation 0 23480 0 ] 3958 157 364 1966 300,925
mmwetwl 0 N O ey (8 (165 (125)  (2087)
0 293480 0 [ 129 149 193 1714 2883538
|Disposals:
-cost ] ] 0 45 ] 0 0 18043 18,088
mm&dkpmhﬂml ] ] (] (&) ] ] ] {4.334) [4,340))
_ cost ] ] L] kL ] ] o 1378 13,748
|Depreciation charge
for the year 0 0 229 105,757 e 1345 1838  TOS61 204890
{Book value 1353440 140360 201,239 7016101 8B40 M4 6,558 445361 915763
As at June 30, 2024
{Cost I revaluation 1353440 433840 464957 5,358,390 5333 15181 17,764 386229 8083137
Accumulated depreciation ] 0 242348 909 368 25517 451 13243 95738 12,135
{Book value 1353440 433840 222508 4449022 1818 10260 451 290491 6,792,002
s at June 30, 2025
Cost ! revaluation 1353440 140,360 465383 8,031,220 56378 30532 21474  G0G0T4 10,705,361
umulated depreciation ] 0 264644 1015419 27948 6,258 14516 160,713 1489598
Book value 1353440 140360 201,239 7016101 2430 M274 6558 445361 9215763
240
Depreciation rate {% - per annum) 50-100 years  10°% h:hh'eln:‘un 10% 10% 0% 20%

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited

137

Anmuesl Repart 2025




6.2

GCIL, during May, 2024, has carmmed-out revaluations of its freehold and leasehold land
situated at :

- 52 - Km, Phool Nagar, District Kasur

- Mouza Pama, Phool Nagar, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur

- Plot Mos. 7 and 8, 910 12, B2, 13-24, B3, B4, Zone - B, Hattar.

Plot Mos. 13-24 and B3, B4 have been fransfemmed to GCWL as per the Scheme as
detailed in note 1.2.

The revaluation exercises have been camied-out by independent Valuers [ Unicom
International Surveyors, 74-B , Gulberg |l, Lahore.]. Freehold land has been revalued on
the basis of present market values whereas leasehold land has been revalued on the
basis of estimated prevailing lease rate. These revaluations have resulted in revaluation
surplus aggregating Rs.174.702 million as worked-out below:

Rupees in
thousand

(a) Cost/revalued amount of freehold land as at May 07, 2024 1,230,400
Revalued amount as at May 07, 2024 1,353,440
Revaluation surplus arisen upon revaluation 123,040

(b} Cost/revalued amount of leasehold land as at May 07, 2024 382,178
Revalued amount as at May 07, 2024 433,840
Revaluation surplus arisen upon revaluation 51,662

{c) Had there been no revaluations, book value of freehold and leasehold land would have
been Rs.76.463 million (2024: Rs.76.463 million) and Rs.65.027 million
(2024: Rs.200.991 million) respectively as at June 30, 2025.

(d) Based on the revaluation report of Unicom International Surveyors dated May 07, 2024,
the forced sale values of the revalued freehold and leasehold land (inclusive of land
transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme as detailed in note 1.2) have been assessed at
Rs.1,429.824 million.

6.3 Particulars of operating fixed assets disposed-off during the year:
; Accumulated Book ;
Deseriplion Cost {eoreciaki I !slhplm Gain Pariiculars of Punchaser
------------------- Rupees in fhousand -~ -~ =--==-=---=-- | Soki through negofiation to:
Iteres with individual net book
value exceeding Rs. 500,000 each
Vehicles
Toyota Fortuner 15,261 2,230 13,031 14,650 1,619 | Mr. Arshad Baig [a third party)
Toyola Corolla 2782 (2,104) 678 4550 3872 | Mr. Rashid Awan {a third party)
18043 (4,334) 13,709 19,200 5481
Aggregale value of tems
having individual book value
nol exceeding Rs. 500,000 each
Plart and machinery 45 (8 k) & 52
Total 2025 18,088 (4340 13,748 19,811 6,083
Total 2024 201,580 (32478 163,102 243287 714,185
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6.4 Particulars of immovable property in the name of GCIL are as follows;

| Lecation | Usagu of immaovable proparty | Total Area | Covarad Area |
In sq. i

<52 « Km, Phoal Magar, District Kasur Manufacturing facility (gases) 113 Kanals § marias and 90 foet 67,04

-Mouza Pama, Phoo! Nagar, Tehsll Patlokl, District Kasur  Industrial land 83 Kanals and 8 Marlas

- Plat Moa. T and &, 8 to 12, BE 13.24, B384, Zone - B, Indusirial land £1.04 Kanals {6.38 Acres)

Plal Mog, 13-4 and B, BA have been transfered to
GCWL as per the Scheme as detailed in note 1.2,

6.5 As at June 30, 2025, plant and machinery include vacuum insulated evaporator tanks
installed at various customers’ sites for supply of gas products. These assets are secured
against deposits as disclosed in note 26. Cost and book value of these vacuum insulated
evaporator tanks were as follows:

2025 2024
Mote Rupees in thousand
Cost 192,450 207,724
Book value 144,194 159,953

6.6 Depreciation charge on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 36 127,357 120,859
Distribution costs 37 2,845 0
Administrative expenses 38 74,688 55473

204,890 176,432

6.7 Leasehold land rights located at Hattar under KPEZDMC Is still under provisional
allotment; therefore, at the reporting date, this has been carried as leasehold land.

6.8 Capital work in progress (plant and machinery) - at cost

Opening balance 3,158,662 209,889
Additions during the year 6.9 1,447,727 2,962 909
Capitalised during the year (2,643,089) (14,136)
Transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme

detailed in note 1.2 (1,915,010) 0
Closing balance 48,290 3,158 662

6.9 These include expenditure aggregating Rs.1,022.317 million {2024: Rs.1,516.179 million)
relating to installation of new plant (Liquid Air Separation Unit) and expenditure
aggregating Rs.414.365 million (2024: Rs.1,439.404 million) relating to Calcium Carbide
Plant (CACP) at Hattar, KPK.

6.10 During the year, borrowing cost at the rales ranging from 12.03% to 23.16%
(2024: 2167% to 2553%) per annum  amounting Rs.275210 millon
(2024: Rs.363.580 million) has been included in the cost of plant and machinery.

6.11  Stores held for capital expenditure

Total inventory of stores held for capital expenditure 231,788 618,222
Transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme

detailed in note 1.2 (56,423) 0
Carrying value at year-end 175,365 618,222
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8.1
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2025 2024

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS Note Rupees in thousand
Opening balance 550,000 500,000
Revaluation increment 74 0 63,107
Revaluation adjustment - cost 0 (13,107)
550,000 550,000
Depreciation
Opening balance 2,351 1,126
Revaluation adjustment - accumulated depreciation 0 (13,107)
Depreciation charge for the year 7.4 15,891 14,332
18,242 2,351
Closing balance 531,758 547,649

GCIL, during May, 2024, has carried-oul revalualion of leasehold land siluated at Plot No.
A-53, Chemical Area, East Industrial Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi with an area of 40 Kanals
having covered area of 17,045 sq. fL The revaluation exercise has been camried out by
independent Valuers | Unicom Intemational Surveyors, 74-B, Gulberg I, Lahore ].
Leasehold land has been revalued on the basis of present market rale of project land and
it has resulted in revaluation surplus of Rs.63.107 million as worked-out below:

Rupees in

thousand
Carrying value of leasehold land as at May 07, 2024 486,893
Revalued amount of leasehold land as al May 07, 2024 550,000
Revaluation surplus arisen upon revaluation 63,107

Had there been no revaluation, book value of leasehold land would have been
Rs.24.038 million { 2024: Rs.24.724 million).

Based on the revaluation report of Unicorn International Surveyars dated May 07, 2024,
the forced sale value of lhe revalued leasehold land has been assessed al Rs.440
rmillicn.

Depreciation charge for the year on right of use assets has been calculated by using
straight line method over the lease terms i.e. ranging from 40 to 50 years and grouped
under administrative expenses.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software 81 1,479 1,479

Goodwill originated B3 173 173
1,652 1,652

Software

Cost

Balance at year-end 14,808 14,808

Amortisation

Charged upto the yesar-end B.2 13,329 13,329

Carrying value at year-end 1,479 1,479




8.2

8.3

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

Mo amortisation has been charged for the current and preceding years as carrying value
represents 10% residual valus,

Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of acquisition (falr value of the
consideration paid) and the fair value of nel identifiable assets acquired at the lime of
acquisition of Ghani Gasses (Pvt.) Lid,

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousand

Associated Company
Ghani ChemWorld Ltd. (GCWL) - Quoted

50,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Shareholding held: 0.02%

- Market value Rs. 0.486 million 9.1 500 0
Share of profit for the year 15 0
515 0

GCWL was incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017 as a limited company
on July 31, 2024, The principal line of business of GCWL iz lo manufaclure, produce,
refine, process, formulate, acquire, convert, sell, distribute, buy, import, export or otherwise
deal in all types of chemicals, basic drugs, all types of acids, etc. The registered office and
head office of GCWL are situated at 10-N, Madal Town Extension, Lahore whereas
production facility is situated at plot No. 13 to 24 B3 & B4 Zone Hattar Special Economic
Zone, Dhorian Chowle MNear Tanoli Filling Station Hattar, Haripur. GCWL has not
commenced its commercial operations till the reporting date.

GCWL was a wholly owned Subsidiary of GCIL; however, after the issuance of shares by
GCWL as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2, GCWL has become an Associated
Company at the reporting date.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS - Considerad good

Security deposits against: Note
= utility bills 10.1 64 873 64,873
- rented premises 1,743 1,743

66,616 66,616

These deposits are being held for an indefinite period with no fixed maturity date;
therefore, have been carried al cost, as amortised cosl is impractical to determine.

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 116,130 56,413
Spare parts 311,196 305,269
Loose tools 518 453

427 844 362,135
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111 GCIL, during the year, has transferred stores, spares and loose tools inventory valuing
Rs.188.322 million to GCWL as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2
12. STOCK IN TRADE 2025 2024
Mote Rupees in thousand
Finished goods
- industrial gases 48,568 78,595
- industrial chemicals 46,271 80,992
Raw materials 309,620 0
Transferred lo GCWL as per lhe Scheme
detailed in note 1.2 (309,620) 0
0 0
94,839 160,587
13. TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured
Considered good 12.4 2,081,861 2,142 223
Considered doubtful 3g,882 24,856
2,120,743 2,167,079
Allowance for expected credit loss 13.1 (38,882) {24,856)
2,081,861 2,142,223
131  Allowance for expected credit loss
Opening balance 24 B56 19,856
Charge for the year 38,193 5,000
Balances written-off during the year (24,167) ]
Closing balance 38,882 24,856
12.2  Trade debts aggregating Rs.1,111.511 million (2024: Rs.659.861 million) were either past
due or overdue but not impaired as allowance for expaected credit loss. These balances
relate to various customers, primarily Government organisations, with whom there was no
recent history of defaull. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows;
Up to 1 menth 134,200 90,348
31 to 60 days 52,522 75,868
61 to 90 days 78,972 58,007
91 to 180 days 436,453 173,570
181 to 365 days 267,853 114,077
Above 365 days 141,511 147,991
1,111,511 659,861
123 Receivables from the government institutions aggregate Rs.1,075.810 million as at
June 30, 2025 ( 2024: Rs.659.861 million).
12.4 The balance includes receivable from Ghani Global Glass Ltd. {a related party) amounting
Rs.78.350 million as at June 30, 2025 (2024: Rs.68,182 million).
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2025 2024

14, LOAN AND ADVANCES Mote Rupees in thousand
Advances to employees against expenses 3,435 4108
Advances to suppliers and contractors 315,790 149,515
Transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme
detailed in note 1.2 (153,264) 0

162,526 149,515

Letters of cradit 210,916 61,831
Transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme

detailed in nate 1.2 (204,455) 0

6,461 61,831

Due from related parties 14.1 1,479,466 1,122,278

1,651,888 1,337,733

Allowance for impairmeant (1,485) (1.485)

1,650,403 1,336,248

14.1  Due from related parties

Ghani Global Glass Ltd. (GGGL)
{net of accrued mark-up and common allocation of
expenses aggregating Rs.36.652 million
(2024 balance included Rs. 172.805 million
on account of accrued mark-up and
common allocation of expenses)) 14.2 1,182,273 1,019,397
Ghani Global Holdings Ltd. (GGHL)
(the Holding Company)
{including accrued mark-up amounting
Rs. Nil (2024:Rs.5.581 million) 14.3 17,992 102,881
Ghani ChemWorld Ltd. (GCWL)

(including accrued mark-up amounting
Rs.5.252 million. 14.4 279,201 0

1,479,466 1,122,278

14.2
{a) GCILl's shareholders, vide special resolution dated October 26, 2024 pursuant to the
requirements of section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, have authorised GCIL to make
investment upto Rs.1,300 million in GGGL by way of advances and loans, as and when
required by GGGL. These advances carry mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR +
1.10%; the affective mark-up rates charged by GCIL during the year ranged from 13.19%
to 21.72% (2024; 22 96%, to 24 .40%) per annum,
(b) Maximum amount due from GGGL, including markup, at the end of any month during the
year was Rs. 1,257,119 million {2024: Rs.1,087.578 million).
14.3
(a) GCIL's shareholders, vide special resolution daled Oclober 286, 2024 pursuant to the
requirements of section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, have authorised GCIL to make
investment upto Rs. 200 million in the Holding Company by way of advances and loans, as
and when required by the Holding Company. These advances carry mark-up al the rale of
3 months KIBOR + 1.10%; the effective mark-up rates charged by GCIL during the year
ranged from 13.19% to 21.07% (2024: 22.31% to 23.75%) per annum.
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(b)

(c)

144
(a)

(b)

15.

15.1

15.2

16.

17.

Maximum amount due from the Holding Company, including markup, at the end of any
month during the year was Rs. 95.481 million (2024: Rs.102.881 million).

Payable to the Holding Company on account of mark-up and commission aggregaling
Rs. 3.508 million has been adjusted against this receivable balance.

GCIL's shareholders, vide special resolution dated Aprl 12, 2025 pursuant fo the
requirements of section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, have authorised GCIL to make
investment upto Rs.1,500 million In GCWL by way of advances and loans, as and when
required by GCWL. These advances carry mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR +
1.10%: the effective mark-up rales charged by GCIL during the year ranged from 13.26%
to 13.28% per annum,

Maximum amount due from GCWL, including mark-up, at the end of any manth during the
year was Rs.279.201 million,

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 2025 2024
OTHER RECEIVABLES Note Rupees in thousand
Trade deposits 254,370 197.036
Prepayments 16,273 10,442
Bank profit receivable 396 811
Letters of credit margins 3,315 4,136
Advances to suppliers 24,275 9.216
Advances to construction contractor 15.1 260,379 178,379
Due from Digital Custodian Company Lid. 15.2 0 190,338
Other receivables 63 0
559,071 590,358
Balances transferred to GCWL as per the
Scheme detailed in note 1.2 (200,711) 0
358,360 590,358

This represents advance made to Baig Construction Company against civil works for
Hattar project.

This represents advance made to Digital Custodian Company Ltd. against sale of shares.
GLIL, during the year, has fully received back the opening receivable balance.

TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Sales tax refundable - net 59,219 83.841

ADVANCE INCOME TAX

Opening balance 421,995 440,031

Faid during the year 564,537 289,737

Refunds received during the year 0 (67,556)

Balance transferred from GPL as per the

Scheme detailed in note 1.2 787 0
987,319 662,212

Adjusted against income tax payable (309,112) (240,217)
678,207 421,995

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 144 Anmuesl Report 2025




18.

18.1

18.2
19.

191

18.2

20.
20.1

202

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS 2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousand

Tarm deposit receipts 18.1 & 18.2 100,000 100,000
As per the Scheme delailed in note 1.2, these short term investments along with related
liabilities (bills payable amounting Rs.87 400 million) were initially transferred to GCWL.
However, due to problem in transfer of related letter of credit to GCWL, these investmenis
and related liabilities have been transferred back to GCIL before the reparting date.

Also refer contents of note 29.1

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash-in-hand 560 899

Banking instrument {call deposit receipt) 90,000 0
Cash at banks on:

- current accounts 212,786 218,223

- saving and depaosit accounts 19.1 447,074 267,638

659,860 485,861

750,420 486,760

These carry profit at the rates ranging from 4.00% to 18.30% (2024: 12.76% to 19.50%)
per annum,

As per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2, balance of Rs.2.522 million was transferred by
GPL to GCIL.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital

600,000,000 (2024: 800,000,000

ordinary shares of Rs.10 each) 6,000,000 8,000,000

Nil shares (2024: 50,000,000 class B shares
of Rs.10 each) 1] 500,000
20.3 6,000,000 8,500,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
53,525,000 ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each fully paid in cash 535,250 535,250
100,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10
aach issued for consideration other

than cash i.e. Scheme of Arrangament 1,000,000 1,000,000
10,000,000 ordinary shares issued as

right shares of Rs.10 each fully paid in cash 100,000 100,000
239,701,633 ordinary shares of Rs.10
each issued as fully paid bonus shares 20.4 2,397,016 2,387,016

74,961,338 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
issued upon merger of G3 Technologies Ltd.

with and into the Company 749,613 749,613
22,000,000 Class B shares converted
into ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 205 220,000 220,000

70,263,960 ordinary shares of Rs.10
each allotted for consideration
otherwise than in cash 20.6 702,640 0

5,704,519 5,001,879
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20.3  The authorised share capital of GCIL, during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, was
increased from Rs.5.500 billion divided into 550,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 1o
Rs.8.500 billion divided into 800,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each and 50,000,000
Class B shares of Rs.10 each.

The authorised share capital of GCIL, as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2, has been
reduced to Rs. six billion during the current year. GCIL has filed the necessary application
for data rectification of Memaorandum of Association of the Company with SECP on March
14, 2025. After rectification, the authorised share capital of GCIL is Rs. six billion divided
into 600,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each,

20.4 The balance includes 43,471,634 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as fully paid bonus
shares in the proportion of 10 ordinary shares for every 100 ordinary shares held during
the financial year ended June 30, 2023,

20,5 GCIL, during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, had issued 22,000,000 class B
shares at the rate of Rs.10 per share. This right issue was made at the rate of 8.8045 class
B shares for every 100 existing ordinary shares. These class B shares were converted into
ordinary shares during the preceding financial year as per the conversion ratio of 1:1.

206 GCIL, in compliance with the Scheme detailed in note 1.2, during the year has credited its
70,000,000 and 263,960 ordinary shares to Ghani ChemWorld Lid. and shareholders of
merged entity i.e. Ghani Products (Pvt.) Lid. respectively. After these credits, revised paid-
up share capital of GCIL is 570,451,931 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each.

20.7 Shares held by related parties Mote 2025 2024
{Mumber of Shares)
Ghani Global Holdings Ltd. 279,905,986 279,905,983
Ghani Products (Pvi.) Lid. 20.8 0 91,911,490
Ghani ChemWorld Ltd. 70,000,000 0

349,905,986 371,817 473

20.8 The Scheme, as detailed in nole 1.2, also envisages lransfer of designated assels of
Ghani Products (Pvt.) Ltd. (GPL) with and into GCIL and distribution of shares of GCIL
held by GPL tc the shareholders of GPL. GPL held 91,811,490 shares of GCIL, which
have been transferred to the shareholders of GPL during the year in proportion to their
respeclive shareholdings.

21.  SHARE PREMIUM 2025 2024
Rupees in thousand
Opening balance 164,011 164,011
Less: premium utilised during the year
as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2 (164,011) 0
Balance as at June 30, 1] 164,011
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22, REVALUATION SURPLUS ON FREEHOLD 2025 2024

AND LEASEHOLD LAND Mote Rupees in thousand
Opening balance 735,087 497 278
Surplus on revaluations of freshold and leasehoid

land carried-out during the preceding year 0 174,702
Surplus on revaluations of leasehold land

carried-out during the preceding year 0 63,107
Less: surplus utilised during the year
as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2 (735,087) 0
Balance as at June 30, 0 735,087

23. MERGER RESERVE

Opening balance 2341 1,342,746 1,342,746
Less: reserve utilised during the year

as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2 (1,342,746) 0
Balance as at June 30, 0 1,342,746

231 Merger reserve represants gain arisen upon merger of G3 Technologies Lid, with and inte
GCIL during the financial year ended June 30, 2022,

24. LONG TERM FINANCES (GCIL)
From banking companies - secured

Diminishing Musharakah 24.2 750 730

Diminishing Musharakah 24.3 27,263 136,348

Diminishing Musharakah and

Islamic Refinance Facility 24.4 0 2,286

Diminishing Musharakah 24.5 500,000 500,000

Diminishing Musharakah (ITERF) 246 263,257 330,159

Long Term Islamic Finance Facility 24.7 293,831 384,612

Diminishing Musharakah 24.8 3JB8.884 499093

From Islamic Financial Institution - secured

Diminishing Musharakah 24.9 240,478 192,281

Others

From sponsaring directors - unsecured 24.10

- mark-up bearing 0 52.000
1,714,463 2.098 429

Current portion grouped under current liabilities {500,071) (457,893)
1,214,392 1,640,536

241 Balance at beginning of the year 2,098,429 1,493,931
Availed during the year 144,800 835,262

Balance of mark-up bearing loans
of directors transferred to

equity during the year (40,000) o
Repayments made during the year (488,766) (230.764)
Balance at the end of the year 1,714,463 2,008,429
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24.2  This represents Diminishing Musharakah facilities having credit limit of Rs.5.987 million
and Rs.37.711 million availed from a banking company to finance machinery & equipment.
The facilities were available upto July, 2022 and May, 2023 respectively. The facilities
carried profit at the rate of 1 year KIBOR + 0.80% and 6 months KIBOR + 0.80%
respectively. These facilities are secured against first par passu charge of Rs.110 million
over fixed assets, first specific charge of Rs.17.500 million over imported assets and
equitable mortgage over land and buildings. These facilities have been malured during the
financial year ended June 30, 2023 and the management is negotiating with the bank for
final settlement.

243  This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility having credit limit of Rs.450 million
availed from a banking company to finance machinery and equipment of GCIL; the facility
tenor is 5 years including 1 year grace period. The balance is repayable in 16 equal
quarterly instalments and carries profit at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 1%, The facility is
secured against pari passu charge with 25% margin aggregating Rs.600 million over all
plant and machinery of GCIL. The banking company has allowed meratorium of one year
under SEF BPRD circular no. 13/2020; accordingly, repayment has commenced from
October, 2021,

244 Diminishing Musharakah and

Islamic refinance facility 2025 2024
Rupees in thousand
Opening balance 2,286 11,428
Payment made during the year (2,286) (9,143)
0 2,286

This represents Diminishing Musharakah and Islamic refinance facility having credit limit of
Rs.110 million under Islamic Refinance Scheme Tor payment of salaries and wages 1o
workers and employees of GCIL lo dampen the effect of Covid-19 for a period of 2.5 years
including six months grace period. The outstanding balance of salary finance was fully
repaid during the financial year ended June 30, 2023. The repayment of salary loan was
made in & equal quarterly instalments after a grace period and commenced from January,
2021. It carried profit at the rate of 3%. The facility was secured against first pari passu
charge of Rs.96 milion over plant & machinery and personal guaranteas of lhree
sponsoring Directors of GCIL. GCIL, during the current financial year, has fully repaid the
outstandina balance of this finance facility.

245  This represents long term Diminishing Musharakah finance facilities having credit limit of
Rs.500 million availed from a banking company during November, 2023, for retirement of
letters of credit established through other banks for import of Air Separation Plant (275
tons) or its components [ equipment or to finance CAPEX related to Industrial & Medical
Plant at Hattar Economic Zone, The finance facility carries profit at 3 months KIBOR + 1%
and its tenor is six years inclusive of two years grace period. The finance facility is secured
against charge of Rs.667 million over fixed assets (land, buildings, plant and machinery) of
GCIL, cross corporate guarantee of the Holding Company (Ghani Global Holdings Lid.)
and perscnal guarantees of three sponsoring directors of GCIL.
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246

(a) This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility having credit limit of Rs.439 million under
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) ITERF Scheme to finance capital expenditure requirements
related to procuring Gasecus Air Separation Unit (ASU); draw down has been allowed in
multiple tranches. The facility tenor is 8 years including 2 years grace period;, repayment
will be made in 24 quarterly instalments and commenced from May, 2023. It carries profit
al SBP rate + 4% per annum. The facility is secured against exclusive charge over
operating fixed assets (excluding land and buildings) of the new unit for Rs.625 million,
first pari passu charge of Rs.625 million over all present and future fixed assets of GCIL,
personal guarantees of sponsoring directors of GCIL and assignment of receivables.

(b) As the above finance is below market rate of mark-up, this has been initially measured at
its fair value i.e. the present value of the future cash flows discounted at prevailing market
mark-up rate . The difference between the fair value of the finance on initial recognition
and tha amount recaived has been accounted for as Government grant,

(H] GCIL, during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, has recorded Rs.33.679
millicn as Govermment grant on finances obtained at below market rate of mark-up as per
the requirements of 1AS 20 (Accounting for government grants and disclosure of
government assistance).

(d) GCIL has adhered to the terms of the grant, hence, this is being amortised at average
borrowing cost rate of GCIL. An amount of Rs: 6.262 millicn (2024: Rs.7.486 million)
has been recognised in the current's year consolidated statement of profit or loss in this
regard and this amount has been adjusled against finance cost for the year.

24,7 This Long Term Islamic Finance Facility (LTIFF) has been obtained during the financial
year ended June 30, 2023 from a banking company. The facility has a credit limit of
Rs.500 million and has been obtained to meet CAPEX requirements of GCIL; the facility
tenor is 6 years including one year grace period. The balance is repayable in 20 equal
guarterly instalments ending December, 2028. It carries profit at the rate of 3 months
KIBOR + 1.50%. The facility is secured against first pari passu hypothecation charge of
Rs.667 million over all present and future fixed assets of GCIL inclusive of 25% margin.

248 This represents Diminishing Musharakah facility obtained during the financial yvear ended
June 30, 2023 having credit limit of Rs.500 miliion. The facility has been availed from a
banking company to finance project at Hattar for setting up an additional manufacturing
plant of medical and industrial gases; the facility tenor is six years including 1.5 years
grace period. The balance is repayable in 18 equal quarterly instalments ending
December, 2028. It carries profit at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 0.90%. The facility is
secured against first pari passu / joint pari passu charge over all existing and future fixed
assets of GCIL with 25% margin and personal guarantees of three sponsering directors of
GCIL.

249 These Islamic finance facilities carry profit at the rates ranging from 3 o 8 months KIBOR.
+ 1%. These Islamic finance facilities having credit [imit of Rs.415 million
(2024: Rs. 260 million) are secured against ownership of Musharakah assets in favour of a
financial institution. These finance facilities are repayable in monthly instalments ending
March, 2028, These finance facilities are secured against ownership of vehicles in the
name of financial institution and post dated cheques of all installments.
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2410 LOANS FROM DIRECTORS

These loans were provided by sponsoring Directors to meet capital expenditure
requirements of GCIL and were repayable after 5 years at the discretion of the lenders.
Profit rates on these loans ranged from 1 month KIBOR and profit was payable on monthly
basis. GCIL, during the current year, has paid loan balance aggregating Rs.12 million and
the balance of Rs.40 million has been transferred to mark-up free loan. The loan balance
of Rs.40 million is repayable by GCIL at its discretion as and when funds are available.

In line with Technical Release - 32 (TR 32 - Accounting Directors' Loan) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, these loans are shown as part of the eqguity
as these loans are repayable at the discretion of GCIL,

2025 2024
25, REDEEMABLE CAPITAL - Sukuk Mote Rupees in thousand
Opening balance 800,000 162,500
Sukuk certificates redeemed during the
preceding year 251 0 (162,500)
Sukuk certificates issued during the
praceding year 25.2 [1] 800,000
Sukuk balance transferred to GCWL as
per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2 (800,000) 0
Closing balance 0 800,000

25.1 GCIL had issued rated, privately placed and secured long term Islamic Certificates (Sukuk)
as instrument of redeemable capital under section 120 of the Companies Ordinance, 1284
(now the Companies Act, 2017) amounting Rs.1,300 million divided into 13,000 cerlificates
of Rs.100,000 each for a perod of 6 years under an agreement dated Movember 15,
2016 for swapping of financing facilities and to meet business reguirements. These
certificates were redeemable in 24 consecutive quarterly instalments commenced from
February 03, 20017 and ended on February 03, 2024, Rentals were payable on quarterly
basis along with redemption of certificates. These carried profit rate of 3 months KIBOR
plus 1%. These certificates were secured against first pari passu charge over present and
future fixed assets of GCIL to the extant of Rs.1,625 million. The banking company had
allowed moratorium of one year, conseguently, repayment of instalments for the months of
May, 2020 to February, 2021 were deferred for one year. The balance of these Sukuk
Certificates was fully redeemed during the preceding financial year.

25.2 GCIL, during the preceding financial year, has issued rated, privately placed and secured
long term Islamic Certificates (Sukuk) as instrument of redeemable capital under section
66 of the Companies Act, 2017 (Issue of securities and redeemable capital not based on
interest) upto Rs.800 million for a period of 6 years under an agreement dated December
13, 2022 to finance capital expenditure requirements at Hattar Industrial Estate, Hattar,
which includes plants, machinery, spares and auxiliary equipment, etc. Principal will be
repaid in 16 consecutive quarterly instalments after expiry of 24 months from the date of
last disbursement Le. January 16, 2024, These carry profit at the rate of 3 months KIBOR
plus 1.25% with no floor and no cap. These certificates are secured against first pari passu
charge over present and future fixed assets of GCIL inclusive of 25% margin. The balance
of these Sukuk certificates has been transferred to GCWL as per the Scheme detailed in
note 1.2.
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26. LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS

These security deposits have been utilised for the purpose of the business by GCIL in
accordance with written agreements. These represent amounts received from the
customers on installation of certain equipment and may be used in ordinary coursa of the
GCIL's business under the provisions of section 217 of the Companies Act, 2017, GCIL,
during the year, has received deposits aggregating Rs. 9.905 million (2024: Rs.23.370
million} and repaid / adjusted deposits aggregating Rs. 0.675 million (2024.Rs.2.325

million).
2025 2024
27. LEASE LIABILITIES Note Rupees in thousand
Lease liabilities 6,254 6,190
Less: current portion grouped under current liabilities 348 332
5,906 5,858
271 Movemant of lease liabilities
Balance at beginning of the year 6,190 6,121
Profit charge for the year 550 532
Payment made during the year (486) (463)
Balance at end of the year 6,254 6,100
Maturity analysis of undiscounted
lease payments
Payable upto one year 348 332
Payable between one to five years 2,021 1,924
FPayable after five years 27,255 27 670
29,624 29,926

27.2 Depreciation for the year on right of use assets has been calculated by straight line
method over the lease terms i.e. ranging from 40 to 50 years and grouped under
administrative expenses. Right of use assets represent leasehold land, which is located at
53 - A, Industrial Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi with an area of 40 kanals having covered area
of 217,800 sq. fi.

28. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Gas infrastructure development cess 281 0 0
Deferred income - Government grant 28.2 6,142 11,107
Deferred taxation 28.4 1,010,951 B21,747

1,017,093 832,854
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28.1

28.2

28.3
(a)

(b)
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Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (G|DC) 2025 2024

MNote Rupees in thousand
Balance at year-end 22,383 21,684
Interest against provision for GIDC 255 §99
Closing liability based on present value 22,638 22,383
Current portion grouped under current liabilities (22,638) (22,383)
0 0

The Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP), during the financial year ended June 30, 2021, had
decided the appeal against consumers upholding the vires of Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 2015 through ite judgment dated August 13, 2020, The
review petition was filed against the judgment, wherein the SCP provided some relief by
increasing the time period for recovery of GIDC from 24 instalments to 48 instaiments. The
review application, however, was dismissed.

GCIL has filed a constitutional petition before the Lahore High Court (LHG) challenging the
imposition of GIDC amount of Rs.22.638 million. The order of the wnt petition was not in
favour of GCIL, which was challenged in ICA before the LHC.

GCIL had recorded provision for GIDC, which was grouped under trade and other
payables during the financial year ended June 30, 2020, This amount was classified as
non-current liability at its value, by discounting Tulure estimated cash flows using risk free
rate of return i.e. 8.60%. This resulted in income of Rs.3.540 million, which was grouped in
other income during the financial year ended June 30, 2021,

Deferred income - Government grant

Balance at beginning of the year 28.3 17,369 24 B55
Amortised during the year (6,262) {7 486)
11,107 17,369
Current partion grouped under current liabilities (4,965) (6,262)
6,142 11,107

In response to COVID-19, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through Circular No. & of
2020, has introduced a Refinance Scheme for payment of wages and salaries to the
workers and employees of business concermns, The Refinance Scheme has been managed
through Participating Financial Institutions (PFls) and funded by SBP. Borrowers obtained
loans from PFls to ease their cash flow constraints and thereby avoid layofis. The benefit
of a government loan at a below-market rale of interest has been treated as a government
grant. The loan has been measured in accordance with IFRS 9 (Financial instruments).
The benefit of the below market rate of interest has been measured as the difference
between the initial carrying value of loan determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the
proceeds received, The benefit has been accounted Tor and presented as deferred grant in
accordance with 1AS 20. The deferred grant has been amortised at average borrowing cost
rate of GCIL; an amount of Rs.6.262 millien (2024: Rs.7 486 million) has been recognised
in the current's year consolidated statement of profit or loss in this regard.

Also refer contents of note 24.6




284 Deferred taxation 2025 2024
Note Rupees in thousand

This is composed of the following:

Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of

accelerated tax depreciation allowances 1,022,657 855 952
Deductible temporary differences arising
in respect of:
- allowance for expected credit loss (11,706} {7,639)
- alternate corporate tax / minimum tax recoverable
against normal tax charge in future years 0 {126, 566)
(11,706) {134,205)
1,010,951 821,747
29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 512,769 50,888
Balance transferred to GCWL as per the
Scheme detailed in note 1.2 (204,787) 0
Balance transferred from GPL as per the
Scheme detailed in note 1.2 366 0
308,348 59,888
Bills payable 29.1 89,207 87,400
Accrued liabilities 89,932 83,882
Workers' (profit) participation fund 29.2 60,859 10,047
Waorkers' welfare fund 29.3 52,718 65,078
Withholding taxes 6,617 7,443
Other payables 78 67
607,759 313,805

291  These are secured against term deposit receipts as disclosed in note 18.

29.2 Workers’ (profit) participation fund

Opening balance 10,047 16,328
Paid during the year (89,837) (77,265)
Allocation for the year 140,649 68,954
Closing balance 60,859 10,047
29.3 Workers' welfare fund
Opening balance 65,078 46,764
Written-back / adjusted during the vear 40.1 (45,984) (7,900)
Charge for the year 33,624 26,214
Closing balance 52,718 65,078
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30.

1.

3141

32,

321

322

33.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES
GCIL, during the year, has recognised revenue aggregating Rs.281.437 million (2024: Rs.

30.439 million) out of the conlract liabilities balance outstanding at beginning of the year.

ACCRUED PROFIT 2025 2024

MNote Rupees in thousand
Profit accrued on

- long term finances 80,020 245323
- redaemable capilal - Sukuk 314 0 38,072
- short term borrowings 68,820 52725

148,840 336,120

GCIL, during the current year, has transferred payable balance of Rs.12.681 million
to GCWL as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS (GCIL)

From banking companies - secured 321 2,898,747 1,570,488
Temporary book overdrafl - unsecurad 32.2 9,994 9,994
2,908,741 1,580,482

These finances have been obtained under profit arrangements and are secured against
charge of Rs.600 million over all present and future plant and machinary of GCIL, charge
on present and future current assets, personal guarantees of sponsoring directors of GCIL,
corporale guaraniees of the Holding Company and lien over imporl documents, These
form part of total credil funded facilities of R2.3,213 millien (2024: Rs.1,650
millian). The rates of profit range from 12.07% to 22.89% {2024: 1B.65% to
24.43%) per annum. These facilities are expiring on various dates by June 2026.

This temporary book overdraft has arisen due to issuance of cheques for amounts in
excess of balance in a bank account of GCIL.

CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT

LIABILITIES
Long term finances 24 500,071 457 893
Lease liabilities 27 348 332
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 28.1 22,638 22 383
Deferrad income 28.2 4,965 6,262

528,022 486,870
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34. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

341 GCIL has filed two separate constitutional petitions on February 15, 2009 before the
Lahore High Court (the LHC), Lahore on the ground that it was not required to pay any
advance tax on eleciricity bills due to huge carried forward tax losses and available
refunds. The LHC has granted stay orders upon furnishing of bank guarantees in favour of
LESCO amounting Rs.3.140 million. The outcome of the cases Is pending and the
management is hopeful that matter shall be decided in favour of GCIL.

34.2 A constitutional petition has been filed by GCIL before the Lahore High Court {LHC)
subsequent o the reporting date challenging the vires of section 4C (Super tax on high
garning persons} of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The issue has been decided by a
Division Bench of the LHC; however, since the appeals | CPLAs filed by the laxpayers are
pending before the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP), which has issued a direction vide
order dated March 12, 2025 for tfransmission of all such matters to SCP. The LHC, vide its
order dated September 22, 2025, has ordered for appropriate action in GCIL's case as
well.

34.3 The Tax Department has filed references before the Lahore High Court against the orders
passed by the Appellate Tribunal in favour of GCIL for the Tax Years 2011 and 2014.The
references are pending adjudication,

344 Punjab Revenue Authority vide show cause notice dated March 28, 2024 has raised
demands aggregating Rs.101.944 million under section 49 of the Punjab Sales Tax on
Services Act, 2012 and the Rules made there under. GCIL has filed a writ petition before
the Lahore High Court; the petition is pending adjudication.

34.5 GCIL has filed a petition before the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) against imposition of
the Fuel Price Adjustment & Cuarterly Tariff Adjustment. Based on the GCIL's legal
advisors certificate, total amount related to GCIL is Rs.225.019 million on the basis of
actual consumption of electricity. GCIL has prayed to SCP to suspend the judgment of the
Islamabad High Court dated June 26, 2024. The patition filed before the SCP is pending
adjudication.

346 GCIL has filed a wril petition against imposition of FC-Surcharge amounting Rs.14.178
milllon before the Lahore High Court (LHC). The petition filed before LHC is pending
adjudication.

34.7 The un-availed funded and unfunded credit facilities from banks (other than loans from
directors) as of reporting date were for Rs.1,130,162 million (2024: Rs.567 880 million).
These limits include credit lines that are interchangeable and may be utilised for either
funded facilities or unfunded facilities.

34.8 Bank guarantees aggregating Rs.316.727 million (2024: Rs.186.858 million) have been
provided to various customers [ institutions against supplies of products.

Commitments

349 Commitments in respect of letters of credit amounted to Rs.270.261 millien as at June 30,
2025 (2024: Rs.147.783 million).

33.10 Commitments for construction of buildings as at Juns 30, 2025 amoauntad o Rs.100 millien
(2024.Rs.150 million),
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35.

36.

36.1

SALES

Local

Gross sales
Supplies

Services

Sales [ service lax

Export

Services

Supplies

COST OF SALES
Salaries, wages and other benefits

Fuel and power

Utilities

Consumahle slores and spares
Rent, rates and taxes

Repair and maintenance
Communication

Travelling and vehicles' running
Insurance

Depreciation

Note

36.1

6.6

Inadmissible sales tax (input), freight and others

Cost of goods manufactured

Changes in finished goods
Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock

12

2025

2024

Rupees in thousand

8,447,820 6,269,968
90,165 59,510
8,537,985 6,329,478
(1,303,769) (957 472)
7,234,216 5,372.008
181,067 65,381
20,137 0
201,204 65,381
7,435,420 5,437,387
137,288 136,302
2,609,960 2,772,920
8,686 7,091
80,052 97,988
104 1,125
8,669 6,144
940 495
6,745 6,894
12,015 9,533
127,357 120,959
20,348 21,120
3,012,164 3,180,571
160,587 79,375
945,478 725,517
{94,839) (160,587)
1,011,226 644,305
4,023,390 3,824,876

These include Rs.7.831 million (2024: Rs.7.204 million) in respect of retiremeant benefits,
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37.

371
as.

381

DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Note

Salaries, wages and other benefils arA
Transporiation

Traveling, boarding, lodging and conveyance
Communication

Vehicles' running and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes

Loading and unloading

Postage and courier

Repair and maintenance

Office expenses

Insurance

Depraciation 6.6
Sales promaolion

Others

2025 2024
Rupees in thousand

66,596 82,767
68,243 48,335
2,063 1,581
296 482
8,053 11,251
1,288 2,057
892 523
227 293
201 163
813 1,333
kh | 0
2,845 ]
23,499 i
30,436 15,730
205,483 144 B85

These include R=s.5.074 million (2024; Rs.4.356 million) in respect of retirement benefits.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 38.1
Communication

Electricity and other utilities

Rent, rates and taxes

Rapair and maintenance

Traveling and conveyance

Vehicles' running and maintenance

Printing and stationery

Donations and charity

Fees and subscription

Insurance

Depreciation 6.6
Depreciation on right of use assets 7

Others

90,263 890,570
2,062 2,364
8,370 11,037
4,615 6,800

45 T4
3,568 366
9,688 9,502
3,349 4,092
1,836 1,765

23,777 14,254
BT 7.420

74,688 55473

15,891 14,332

40,664 25,208

287,541 243,356

These include Rs.5.917 million (2024: Rs.5.559 million) in respect of retirement benefits,
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39,

40.

40.1

OTHER EXPENSES
MNote

Legal and professional (other than Auditors)
Allowance for expected credit loss 13.1

Auditors' remuneration:

- statutory audit
- half yearly review

- other certifications

Workers' (profit) participation fund 29.2
Workers' welfare fund 29.3
Exchange fluctuation loss

Receivable balances written-off

Others

OTHER INCOME
Profit on bank depaosits

Return on advances to  Associated
Companies

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 6.3

Compensation charges recovered from a customer
due to short lifting of chemical supplies

Commission related to services work at an hospital

Excess provision for workers' welfare fund
(WWF) written-back 401

Unclaimed payable balances writlen-back

Miscellaneous

2025 2024
Rupees in thousand
1,310 852
38,193 5,000
1,092 1,008
257 231
685 B6Y
2,038 1,806
140,649 68,084
33,624 26,214
1,806 o
7,480 o
0 123
225,100 103,079
25,028 129,937
185,562 208,311
6,063 74,185
129,362 110,958
0 20,903
45,984 o
191 0
2,006 b,9z27
394,196 551.221

GCIL, during the year based on its tax Advisors' apinion, has written-back excess WWF
provision beyond 2% of its laxable income. The management believes thal this action is
supported by both legal definitions and judicial interpretations regarding the nature of

WWF payments.
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2025 2024
41. FINANCE COST Note Rupees in thousand
Finance cost an:
- long term finances 102,968 95,989
- redeemable capital - Sukuk 0 12,941
- shorl term borrowings 328,279 265914
- lease liabilities 550 532
431,797 375,378
Interest against provision far Gas
Infrastructure Development Cess 255 B9Y
Bank charges and commission 20,969 13,293
453,021 389,368
2025 2024
Restated
42, MINIMUM AND FINAL TAX LEVIES Rupees in thousand
For the year 1,811 654
43, TAXATION
For the year 436,095 313,167
Prior years (4,426) 564
431,669 3TN
Deferred 28.4 189,204 184,261
620,873 488,022
431 Returns filed by GCIL upto the tax year 2024 have been assessed under the self
assessment scheme envisaged in section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
43.2  Also refer contents of note 34.2.
43,3 Tax charge reconciliation 2025 2024
Numerical reconciliation between the Rupees in thousand
tax expense as per accounting profit
with taxahle income
Profit before taxation, minimum and final tax levies 2,635,096 1,283,245
Tax expense as per accounting profit at the rate
of 29% 764,178 372,141
Impact of super tax at the rale of 10% 0 103,647
Impact of minimum tax and final tax levies (52,509) {16,883
Effect of prior year tax (4,426) 564
Adjustmenl of allernate corporate lax (126,566) 72,039
Impact of admissible / inadmissible expenses 11,151 (52,788)
Adjustment of unused tax losses 1] 19,989
Effect of permanent differences 46,422 0
Effect of exempt income (12,299) 1]
Others (3,267) 1392)
Total taxation, minimum and final tax levies expense 622,684 488,317
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44, COMBINED EARNINGS PER SHARE 2025 2024
Rupees in thousand

There is no dilutive effect on sarnings per share,
which is based on:

Profit after taxation attributable to egquity
holders 2012412 784 569

(Number of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year 514,625,772 497 122,398
————— Rupees -==-=r=-m-
Combined earnings per share - basic 3.7 1.58

45, REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the consolidated financial statements for remuneration,
allowances including all benefits to the chief executive, directors and executives of GCIL
were as follows:

2025 2024
Chief 2 Chief , .
i

. Executive Director Executives Execifive Director Executives

Description
Rupees in thousand

Managerial remuneration 17408 17,408 38,696 17408 17408 39,243
Medical 696 696 1,548 696 696 1.306

Provident fund contribution 1,450 1,450 3,223 1450 1450 3,269

19,554 19,554 43,467 19,554 19554 43818
No. of persons 1 1 14 1 1 13

451 The chief executive and directors of GCIL have besn provided with free use of GCIL
maintained cars in accordance with their entitternent, Some of the executives havea also
been provided with GCIL maintained cars as per their terms of employment,

452 Meeting fees aggregating Rs.1,250 thousand (2024:Rs.1,225 thousand) were paid (o 5
(2024:5) directors of GCIL for attending Board meetings during the year.

46, TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of Holding and Associated Companies, directors of the Group,
key management personnel and staff retirement benefit fund. The Group in the normal
course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Details of related
parties with whom the Group has transacted along with relationship and transactions, other
than those which have been disclosed in these consolidated financial statements, were as
follows:
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Name of related party
- Ghani Global Holdings Ltd.
- Ghani Global Glass Lid.

Relationship
Parent Company

Associated Company - common directorship

- Kilowatl Labhs Technologies Lid, -do-
- Air Ghani (Pwvt.) Ltd. -do-
- Ghani ChemWorld Lid. -do-
- Ghani Global Foods (Pvt.) Lid. -da-
- Ghani Engineering (Pvt.) Ltd. -do-
- A-One Prefabs (Pwt) Lid. ~ta-
- A-One Batteries (Pvt.) Lid. ~da-
- Ghani Industrial Complex (Pvt.) Lid. ~do-
- Kaya Projects (Put.) Ltd. -do-

- Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan
- Mr. Atique Ahmad Khan ~do-
- Hafiz Farcog Ahmad -do-
- Provident Fund Trust

45,1(a) Transactions with related parties

Relationship with related . = o @ eaction

Director! shareholder

Employees' retirement fund

2025

2024

party Rupees in thousand
Holding Company Commission against
corporate guarantees 10,476 9 037
Return on advances given 11,228 10,179
Purchases 3,557 0
Dividend paid 167,944 0
Associated Companies
- Ghani Global
Glass Ltd. Sales 91,054 60,767
Sale of fixed assels 0 82 600
Return an advances given 169,081 199,131
Expenses shared 465,790 182,208
- Ghani ChemWorld
Ltd. (GCWL) Investment made 500 a
Return on advances given 5,252 0
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(b) Transfer of assets and liabilities to GCWL as per the Scheme detailed in note 1.2

Assets :

Liabilities :

(e} Key management
personnel {directors)

(d} Employees’ provident
fund trust

Mature of transaction

Property, plant and
equipment

Stores, spares and
loose toals

Stock-in-trade
Leoans and advances

Deposits, prepayments
and other receivables

Short term Investments

Redesmable capital -
Sukuk

Trade and other
payables
Accrued profit

Purchase of shares

Contribution paid

2025

2024

Rupees in thousand

47, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets - at amortised cost

Long term deposits
Trade debts

Trade deposits and bank profit

Bank balances

Financial liabilities - at amortised cost

Long term finances

Redsemable capital - Sukuk

Long term security deposits

Lease lighilities

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess

Trade and other payables

Accrued profit

Short term borrowings
Uneclaimed dividend
Unpaid dividend

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited
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2,270,271 ]
188,322
309,620
357,719
200,711
100,000
800,000 0
204,787
12,691
0 100
37,632 34,238
66,616 66,616
2,120,743 2,167,079
254,766 197,847
749,860 485,861
3,191,985 2,917 403
1,714,463 2,098 429
0 800,000
79,366 70,136
6,254 6,190
22,638 22,383
487 487 231170
148,840 336,120
2,908,741 1,580,482
491 497
2,415 0
5,370,695 5,145,401

Annual Report 2025




471 Financial Risk Factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including interest
rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
managemeant focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial perfformance,

Risk managemenl is carried-out by the Group's finance department under policies
approved by the board of directors. The Group's finance department evaluates financial
risks based on principles for overall risk management as well as policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of
excess liguidity, provided by the board of directors,

47.2  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of
risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

(a) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to
transactions entered into in foreign currencies. GCIL is exposed to currency risk on import
of plant & machinery, stores & spares and stock-in-trade. GCIL exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Rupess EUR € ChMY ¥ uss
---------- IiNn thousSand -=-seeeeeeee——-————
2025
Funded
Bills payable BO 207 iy 0 314
Unfunded
Outstanding letters of credit 270,261 a a as1
Total exposura 3159 468 [L) o0 1,265
2024
Funded
Bills payabkle BT 400 L) L) 214
Unfunded
Outstanding letters of credit 147, THE3 17 35 508
Total exposure 235,183 17 as uz2

The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Average rate Reporting date rate

2025 2024 2025 2024
EUR € to Rupee - 289.26 - 29792
CNY ¥ to Rupee - 38.26 - 38.35
U.8. § to Rupee 28397  277.07 284.10 278.59

Sensitivity analysis

As at June 30, 2025, if Rupee had strengthened / devalued by 10% against U.S.§ with all
other variables held constant, profit before taxation for the current yvear would have been
higher / lower by Rs.8.921 million (2024: Rs.8.740 million) mainly as a result of net
foreign exchange gain / loss on translation of foreign currency financial liabilities,
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(b) Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market profit rates. At the reporting date, the profit rate
profile of the Group's profit bearing financial instruments is as follows:

2025 2024 2025 2024
Effective rates per annum Carrying amount
Fixed rate instruments Rupees in thousand
Cash at banks on
deposit accounts 4.00% to 18.30%  0.60% to 19.50% 447,074 267,638

Variable rate instruments
SBP rate +4% & SBP rate +4% &

Long term finances 3 to 6 months 3 to 6 months
KIBOR+1%te KIBOR+1%to
1.5% 1.5% 1,714,463 2,098,429
Redeemable capital - Sukuk - 3 months KIBOR
+1.25% 0 800,000
Lease liabilities 8.50% 8.50% 6,254 6,190

Short term borrowings 12.07% to 22.80% 18.65% to 24.43% 2,898,747 1,570,488

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in profit rate at the reporting date would not
affect profit or loss of the Group.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Al June 30, 2025, if profit rate on variable rate financial liabilities had been 1% higher /
lower with all other variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have
been lower [ higher by Rs.46.124 milllon {2024: Rs.44.751 million} mainly as a resull of
higher profit rates.

(c) Price risk

Price risk is the risk thal the fair value or fulure cash fiows of a financial instrument will
fiuctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate
risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. The Group is not exposed to any significant price risk.

47.3 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group attempts to control credit risk
by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and
continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.
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Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to
meet contraclual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or
other conditions. Canceniration of credit risk indicates the relative sensilivity of the Group's
performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts and balances with banks, To manage
exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews
taking into account the customer's financial position, past experience and other relevant
factors. Where considered necessary, advance paymentis are obfained from ceriain
parties. The managemenl has set a maximum credit period of 30 days to reduce the credit
risk. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with
reasonably high credit ratings.

In respecl of other counter parlies, due o the Group's long standing business relationship
with them, management does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on
their abligations to the Group,

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2025 along with comparative is
tabulated below:

2025 2024

Rupees in thousand
Long term deposits 66,616 66,616
Trade debts 2,120,743 2,167,079
Trade deposils and bank profit 254,766 197 847
Bank balances 749,860 485,861
3,191,985 2,917,403

Ot of the total financial assets credit risk is concentrated in trade debts and balances with
banks as they constitute 90% (2024: 91%) of the total financial assets. GCIL's exposure to
credit risk in respect of trade debts other than Government parties Is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. GCIL establishes an allowance for
expected credit loss thal represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade
debts except for Government parties.

Trade debts are mainly due from local customers against sale of medical & industrial
gasas and chemicals. Sales to the GCIL's customers are made on specific terms and
conditions. Customers' credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the GCIL's
established policy, procedures and controls relating to customers' credit risk management.
Credit limits have been established for all customers based on internal rating criteria.
Credit quality of the customers is also assessed based on an extensive credit rating.
Outstanding cuslomer receivables are regularly monitored,

Trade debts of GCIL are not exposed to significant credit risk as GCIL trades with credit
worthy customers. Trade debis except for Government parties aggregating Rs.1,0089.232
million {2024: Rs.1507.218 million} are past due of which Rs.38.882 million (2024:
Rs.24.856 milion) have been Iimpaired. Required allowance as determined by
management as per IFRS 9 (Financial instruments) has been made in these consolidated
financial statements.

Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with reasonably
high credit ratings.
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Bank balances

The credit quality of Group's bank balances can be assessed with reference to extamal
credit ratings assigned to them as follows :

Bank Alfalah Ltd.

The Bank of Punjab

Allied Bank Ltd.

Askari Bank Ltd,

Bank Islami Pakistan Lid.

Dubai lslamic Bank
(Pakistan) Ltd.

Faysal Bank Ltd.

JS Bank Lid.

National Bank of Pakistan

Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd.

MCE Bank Ltd.

Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Ltd.
Habib Bank Lid.

Meezan Bank Ltd.

Soneri Bank Ltd.

Bank Al Habib Ltd.

The Bank of Khyber

United Bank Lid.

Pak- Qatar Takaful Ltd.

Liquidity risk

Rating

Shortterm Longterm agency

Al+
A+
At+
Al+

Al

Al+
Al+
Al+
A+
Al+
A+
Al
A+
Al+
A+
Al+
Al
Al+
VA

PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA

FEEFE

VIS
PACRA
PACRA

PACRA
PACRA

PACRA
VIS
VIS
VIS

PACRA

PACRA

vis

rEFEFEEFEFERRE

2025 2024
Rupees in thousand

34,775 95,015
63,830 14,764
186 4165
50,145 194
31,469 2072
21,120 46,180
19,160 2,231
57 267
30,090 36,013
9,520 54,893
13 12
310,392 3114
793 20,219
144,720 69,890
6,075 2536
6,739 116
483 100,135
1,154 50
10,138 0
749,860 485 861

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Group's appreach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have
sufficient fliquidity to meel its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of
adequate credit facilities. The Group's treasury department aims at maintaining Nexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
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Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:

Between
Particulars Carrying Contractual Lessthan 1ands Maore than 5
amount cash flows 1 year years
years
Rupees in thousand
Year ended June 30, 2025
Long term finances 1,754,463 2,314,456 791,134 1,563,322 0
Redeemable capital - Sukuk 1] 0 0 ] 0
Long term security deposits 79,366 79,366 0 79,366 0
Lease liabilities 6,254 29,624 348 2,0 255
Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess 22,638 22 638 2638 0 ]
Trade and other payables 487 487 487,487 487 487 0 0
Accrued profit 148,840 148,840 148,840 0 0
Short term borrowings 2,908,741 3,415,442 3,415,442 ] 0
Unclaimed dividend 491 4 491 ] 0
Unpald dividend 2415 2415 2415 0 ]
5,410,695 6,500,759 4,628,795 1,644,709 27,255
Year ended June 30, 2024
Long term finances 2,086,429 Z.686,686 630,059 2058 827 ]
Redeemable capital - Sukuk £00,000 1,428,089 136,399 1,125,626 166,064
Long term security deposits 70,136 70,136 0 70,136 0
Lease llabilities &,190 29,926 332 1,924 1670
Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess 22,383 22 638 12,633 ] ]
Trade and other payables 3,170 31,170 231170 0 0
Accrued profit 336,120 336,120 336,120 ] 0
Short term borrowings 1,580,482 1,918, 765 1,918,765 1] 0
Unclaimed dividend 4% 49 41 0 0
5,145,401 6,726,221 3,275,974 3,256,513 163,734

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined
on the basis of profit rates effective at the respective reporting dates. The rates of profit
have been disclosed in the respective notes to these consclidated financial statements.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue
as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained
development of its business.

The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain of
adjust the capital struclure, the Group may adjusl the amount of dividends paid lo
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group also monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt comprising of profit bearing long term & short term finances and lease
liabilities less cash & bank balances. Capital signifies equity as shown In the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debl. The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2025 and
June 30, 2024 is as follows:
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2025 2024
Rupees in thousand

Total debt 4,629,458 4,485,101
Cash and bank balances (750,420) (486,760)
Met debt 3,879,038 3,998,341
Share capital 5,704,519 5,001,879
Share premium 0 164,011
Rewvaluation surplus on freehold

land and leasehold land 0 735,087
Merger reserve 0 1,342,746
Loans from directors 40,000 C
Unappropriated profit 3,453,834 2,608,613
Equity 9,198,353 9,852,336
Capital 13,077,391 13.850,677
Gearing ratio (Net debt / (Net debt + Equity)) 29.66% 28.87%

48, SEGMENT REPORTING

491 GCIL has following two strategic divisions which are its reportable segments. Following
summary describes the operations of each reportable segments:

a) Industrial Chemicals
This segment covers business of trading of chemicals.

b) Industrial and Medical Gases
This segment covers business with large-scale industrial consumers, typically in the oll,
chemical, food and beverage, metal, glass seclors and medical customers in healthcare
seclors. Gases and services are supplied as part of customer specific solulions and range
from supply by road tankers in liquefied form. Gases for cutting and welding, hospital,

laboratory applications and a variety of medical purposes are also distributed under
pressure in cylinders.
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49.2

48.3

49.4

49.5

Segment results of GCIL were as follows:
Year ended June 30, 2025 Year ended June 30, 2024
Industrial , Industrial ;
and Niedical éﬁﬁﬂ Total and Medical é:ﬁ*::__;’; Total
Gases Gases
Rupees in thousand
Net sales 6,573,754 861,666 TA435420 4,722,622 T14.765 5437 387
Cost of sales (3.198)612) (824778)  (40237390) (3,158,648) (666228)  (3,824,876)
Gross profil 3,375,142 36,888 IH2030 1563974 48537 161251
Distribution cost (199,319) (6,164) (205.483)(|  (140,344) (4.381))| (144,685
Administrative expenses [273164)]|  [1437T) (2B7.541)|| (231187 (12,168)||  (243.355)
(4T2482) (20,542 (493.024) (371532  (16.508)  (388,040)
Segmant profit 2,902,680 16,346 2919006  1.192 442 2oz 12441
Unallocated corporate expenses
Other expenses {225,100} {103,079)
Other Income 304,196 551,221
3,088,102 1672613
Finance cost (453,021 (389,368)
Profit befors taxation, minimum and final tax levies 2,635,081 1,283,245
Minirram and final tax levies (1.811) (654}
Profit before taxation 2,633,285 1,282,591
Taxation (620.873) (498,022)
Profit after taxation 2M2.397 784,560

The segment assets and liabilities at the reporting date for the year€nd were as follows:

ba at June 30, 2025 As at June 30, 2024
Industri_al industrial Industrial industrial
ilnl::3 :::al Chemicals Tolal andﬁ!:;d:cal Chemicals Total
Rupees in thousand
Segment assets 12,080,588 62,305 12142834 11058081 2131880  139889M
Unaliocated assets 4,100,295 3,689,455
Total assets 16,243,189 16,879,466
Segment lizbilities 4,221,554 a17e 4224726 1498523 03,459 3,101,882
Unallocated liabilities 2E2.110 3,825,148
Total liabilities 7,044 836 7,027,130

All the non-current assets of GCIL at the reporling date were localed within Pakistan.
Depreciation expense mainly relales lo industrial and medical gases segment,

Transfers between business segmenls are recorded at cost. There were no inter segment
transfers during the year,

One (2024; One) of the GCIL's customers having sales aggregating Rs.1.621 billion (2024:

Rs.1.380 billion) contributed towards 18.55% (2024: 21.73%) of the GCIL's gross sales.
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50.

50.1

51.

52.
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PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

The following normal production capacity has been worked-out on the basis of daily triple
shift basis of GCIL:

2025 2024
==-—-—=-= Cubic Meter —--—--—-

Industrial and medical gases

Production al normal capacily - gross 115,217,214 08,846,964
Production at normal capacity - net of normal losses 105,999,837 a,239.207
Actual production - net of normal losses 60,860,924 55,462 935
Efficiency achieved 57% 61%

Under-utilisation

Under-utilisation of available capacity is due lo unavoidable [ abnormal shutdowns and
repair and maintenance of plant & machinery.
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL SHARES ISLAMIC INDEX

Following information hae boen disclosed as reguired under Paragraph 10 of item Viand item W of Part | of
the 4th Scheduls to the Companies Act, 2017 relating io “All Shares slamic Indsx”.

0I5 2024
Carried under Carmied under
Mon - Sharia Sharia arrang-  Mon - Shana  Shana arang-
arrangement ements AAngemEants ements
Hote Rupees in thousand

Long ferm financing 24 8 25 0 1,714,463 (1] 2,898,429
Lease liabiiities 27 0 6,254 0 6,190
Short term borrowings 32 0 2,898,747 ] 1.570,488
Accrued profit 3| 0 148,840 0 336,120
Short term investments and loans 141 & 18 ] 1,541,040 a 1,043,802
Bank balances - curment and deposi 19 1] 659,860 0 485,861
Profit earned on bank deposits 40 i ] 25,028 i) 128,937
Profit earned an short term loans 40 1] 185,562 o 20231
Revenue eamed 35 0 8,739,189 0 6,354,855
Profit on slamic mode of financing H 0 431,797 a 375,378

The Company has banking relatiocnship with kslamic windows of conventional banking system ae well as
Shariah compliant banks only,

2025 2024
(Number)
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Total number of employees at the year-end 341 357
Average number of employees during the year 349 332




53. DISCLOSURES RELATING TO PROVIDENT FUND

531 GCIL operates funded contributory provident fund scheme for all its permanent and eligible
employees. The following information is based on the audited financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024,

2025 2024
Rupees in thousand
Size of the Fund - total assets 53.2 41,097 B2.257

53.2 The summarised movement in the members' fund account during the year based an the
audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2025 was as follows:

Rupees in
thousand
Balance as at June 30, 2024 82,257
Contribution received during the wear from
employees and employer 37,632
Allocation of the Fund's income to members 3,044
Withdrawals by members from the Fund {81,836)
41,097

54, CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for
the purposes af comparison; significant re-classifications / re-statements made in these
consolidated financial statements have been detailed in note 5.1.

55. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on  04-10-2025
by the board of directors of GCIL.

gy wemy ST E?ﬁ«“) ‘\J<

Hafiz Farcoq Ahmad Asim Mahmud Atique Ahmad Khan
(Chief Executive Officer) {Chief Financial Officer) [Directaor)
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* GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

9 10"Annual General Meeting
Ghani Global Group FORM OF PROXY
I/We
of

being @ member of GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

hereby appoint

of

failing him
as my/ our Proxy to attend act and voie for me/us on my/our behalf at 10th Annual General Meeting of the members of
the Company to be held at Lahore on Tuesday, October 28, 2025 at 10:30 AM and at any adjournment(s) thereof.

Signed this—day of October 2025.
Sign by the said Member

Signed in the presence of:

1. Signature: 2. Signature:
Name: Name:
Address: Address:
CNIC/Passport No. CNIC/Passport No.

For Proxy For alternate

Information required For Member Proxy (*)

(Shareholder) s o
MNumber of shares held Revenue
Folio No. Stamp
cbc Participant
Account | L.D.
No. Account No.

(*) Upon failing of appointed Proxy.
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EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME, 2025

GHANI CHEMIGAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED (GCIL), was incorporaled in Pakistan as privale limiled Company under the Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now the Companies Act, 217), converled into public imited Company on May 18, 2017 and became listad on Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited on November 14, 2022, hereby introduces a stock oplion seheme to be known as the Ghani Chemical Industries Limiled Employees
Stock Option Scheme, 2025 lor offer of stock oplions Lo its Eligible Employees in pursuant Lo the Section 83A of the GCompanies Acl, 2017 and
Chapter Vi— Employes Stock Option Seheme under the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020.

The purposes of the Scheme are:
(1) To improve Company's performance and thereby increase shareholders value;

(i) To increase productivity and share the rewards of success of the Company;

(iif) To reward the abilities and efforts of all such eligible employees of the Company, as
considered fit by the Compensation Committee;

(iv) To attract and retain key employees; and

(v} To align the interesis of such employees with those of the Company's shareholders.
Definitions and Interpretation

1.1. In this Employees Stock Option Scheme the words and expressions set out below shall have the meanings as
specified against

1.1.1. ‘Act means the Companies Act, 2017;
1.1.2. 'The Company' means Ghani Chemical Indusiries Limited;

1.1.3. The Board' means the Board of Directors, for the time being, of the Company acting at a meeting or through
a commitiee of Board of Direciors;

1.1.4. 'Commission' means the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP);
1.1.5. 'CDC' means Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

1.1.6. ‘Regulations’ means the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020 [specifically Chapter VI
Employee Stock Option Scheme];

1.1.7. The Scheme' means the Ghani Chemical Industries Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2025 approved
by the Commission and introduced under the Chapter VI—Employee Stock Option Scheme underthe Companies
(Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020;

1.1.8. ‘The Compensation Commitiee’ or ‘CC’ means a Human Resource and Remuneration Compensation
Committee appointed by the Board. Subject to regulation 7(1)(ii), the initial CC shall comprise of the following
three non-executive

(a) | Independent Director Chairman
(D) | Executive Director Member

(c) |Non-Executive Director Member
(d) | Non-Executive Director Member

1.1.9. Financial Year means the period starting from 1° July in a calendar year and ending on 30" June in the following
calendaryear;




1.1.10. "Shares' means fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each in the capital of the Company;

1.1.11. 'Allotment of Shares' means Shares that will be allotted in scrip-less form in the Central Depository System
(CDS) of CDC to an Option Holder in accordance with clause 4.6;

1.1.12. "ESOS Account' means the book account opened by the Company in the name of each Eligible Employee to
facilitate Cashless Exercise of Options;

1.1.13. 'Option’ means a right granted to an Eligible Employee to subscribe for Shares at the Option Price, pursuant
io the Scheme;

1.1.14. "Date of Approval' means the date on which the Shareholders of the Company approves the Scheme in
accordance with the requirements of Section 83A of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Regulations;

1.1.15. 'Employment’ means employment by the Company of an Eligible Employee;

1.1.16. 'Eligible Employee' means:
a) A regular employee (including contractual) who is on payroll of the Company working in Pakistan or
outside Pakistan and who is admitted to the Scheme by the Board; or
b) An Executive Director who is on the payroll of the Company; or
C) A Chief Executive Officer who is on the payroll of the Company; or
d) A Company Secretary and a Chief Financial Officer of the Company

1.1.17. “Entitlement Criteria' means criteria that will be determined or laid down from time to time by the
Compensation Commiitee based on, inter alia, the following factors:
a)  Competitive pay levels;
b)  Level of responsibility;
¢)  Performance; and
d) No. of years of Service.

1.1.18. 'Date of Entitlement’ means the 30" of June of each calendar year, or any other date decided by the
Compensation Committee. First entitiement date will be 30" June 2025 or later date as decided by the
Compensation Committee;

1.1.20. 'Date of Grant' means the date on which an Option is granted to an Eligible Employee in accordance with this
scheme;

1.1.20. 'Entitiement Pool' means the total number of Shares available for being made the subject of Options, as
determined by the Board from time to time, which shall not, at any time, exceed fifteen percent (25%) of the paid-
up capital of the Company (as increased from time to time). As on June 30, 2025 paid up capital of the Company
isRs.5,704,519,310/-divided into 570,451,931 shares of Rs.10/- each and accordingly today the Entitlement
Poolis 142,635,483 Shares. However, itis clarified that uniil such point in time that the number of Shares issued
under the Scheme equal twenty percent (25 %) of the paid-up capital of the Company, the balance Entitlement
Pool shall be calculated taking into account any increase(s) in the paid up capital. However, once the number of
Shares issued under this Scheme equal twenty percent (25%) of the paid up capital of the Company, the
Entitlement Pool shall be exhausted and this Scheme shall cease to operate, notwithstanding any subsequent
increase in the paid-up capital; issued underthis Scheme equal twenty percent (25%) of the paid up capital of
the Company, the Entitlernent Pool shall be exhausted and this Scheme shall cease to operate, notwithstanding
any

1.1.21. 'Oplion Holder' means an Eligible Employee or permitted successor/transferee of an Eligible Employee holding
an Option;

1.1.22.'Option Notice’ means the notice given by an Eligible Employee to the Company forthe exercise of Option held;




1.1.23. 'Oplion Price' means the subscription price fora Share comprised in any Option which, unless otherwise
determined by the Compensation Committee, shall be weighted average of the closing market price of the
Share of the Company at the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the last 90 consecutive calendar days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant of the relevant Option. Provided that it shall notin any case be
less than the face value of Rs.10.00 per share Directors of the Company where Chairman is an Independent
Director:

1.1.24. 'Option Cerlificate’ means a certificate issued to an Option Holder in accordance with clause 3.3 of the
Scheme;

1.1.25. '"Noermal Anticipated Retirement Date' means 60 years of age or such other age at which an Eligible
Employee is required to retire by his contract of employment or as per rules and policy of the Company;

1.1.26. 'Retirement' means the ceasing of Employment of an Eligible Employee on attaining the Normal Anticipated
Retirement Date;

1.1.27 'Cashless Exercise' means the mechanism described in clause 4.5 whereby the Company may fund all or
part of the Option Price;

1.1.28."Exercise Period” means a period of one (1) year from the expiry of the Minimum Period;

1.1.29. 'Share Entitiement’ means that number of Shares for which an Option is granted to an Eligible Employee in
accordance with the Scheme, as stated in the Option Certificate relating to such Option; and

1.1.30. "Minimum Period' means, for each Option or portion thereof, the period, as specified in clause 4.2, after
which the Option or portion thereof can be exercised by the Option Holder.

1.1.31. "Stock Exchange' means Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited where Company's Shares are listed;

1.1.32. In the Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires, words denoting the singular number shall include the
plural number and words denoting the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender.

1.1.33. In the Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to a regulation is to a regulation under the
Regulations, and a reference o a clause is to a clause of the Scheme.

1.1.34. A reference to any legislation or legislative provision includes any statutory modification or re-enactment of,
or legislative provision substituted for, and any subordinate legisiation under, that legislative provision.

1.1.35. A reference to any agreement or document is to that agreement or document (and, where applicable, any of
its provisions) as stands amended, novated, restated or replaced at the relevant time.

1.1.36. A reference to any person includes that persons' executors, administrators, successors, permitted
fransferees.

1.1.37. Areference to any person includes that persons' executors, administrators, successors, permitted
transferees.

2. Effectiveness and the Compensation Commitiee
2.1. The 5cheme shall come into force with effect fram the Date of Approval.

2.2. The Compensation Committee shall be constituted in terms of this Scheme and the Rules and shall exercise
such powers as are stated herein and/or in the Rules to be exercised by the Compensation Commitiee.




3. Grant of Options

3.1. On or prior to the Date of Entitlement (and at least once in every Financial Year), the Compensation Committee
(CC) shall determine and recommend to the Board as to which Eligible Employees are entitied to grant of Options
forthe Financial Year preceding the Date of Entitlement, and the proposed terms and conditions and quantum of
each Option. The CC shall, in determining the aforementioned entitiement, take into account the Entitlement
Criteria and undertake performance evaluation based on a system of ratings, competitive pay levels, level of
responsibility, number of years of service and information provided by the heads of department.

3.2. Within 30 days of the Date of Entitlement, the Board, on recommendation of the CC, may in its discretion grant
the recommended Options to the recommended Eligible Employee in respect of the immediately preceding
Financial Year.

3.3. In evidence of the Option granted to an Eligible Employee pursuant to Clause 3.2, the Company shall deliver an
Option Certificate to such Eligible Employee, stating therein the Entitlemnent of the Eligible Employee, the Date
of Grant, the Exercise Period, the Minimum Period and the Option Price. Each Option shall be personal to the
Eligible Employee to whom it is granted and, other than a transfer to the Eligible Employee's legal heirs on his
death, shall not be transferable, assignable or chargeable in any manner whatsoever. Any other purporied
transfer, assignment, charge, disposal or dealing with the rights and interest of the Option Holder under the
scheme or under an Option shall render such Option null void.

3.4. The aggregate number of the Shares for all Options to be granted under this Scheme to all Eligible Employees
shall not, at any time, exceed the Entitterment Pool.

3.5. The aggregate number of the Shares for all Options to be granted under the Scheme to any single Eligible
Employee shall not, at any time, exceed ten percent (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company (as increased
from time fo time). Provided that the grant of Options to Eligible Employee in any one calendar year exceeding
one percent (1%) of the paid-up capital of the Company (as increased from time to time but excluding
outstanding conversions) shall require the approval of the shareholders of the Company under regulation

3.6. Options shall be granted to an Eligible Employee specified in Clause 1.1.16.

3.7. An Eligible Employee who is on long leave (i.e. leave in excess of the normal leave requirements provided in
the terms and conditions of employment) may also become entitled to such Options as may be determined by
the CC in its discretion from time to time.

4. Exercise of Oplions

4.1. An Option or any portion thereof shall be exercised during the applicable Exercise Period, subject to expiry of the
relevant Minimum Period.

4.1. An Option or any portion thereof shall be exercised during the applicable Exercise Period, subject to expiry ofthe
relevant Minimum Period.

4 2. There shall be a minimum period of one year between the grant of option and vesting of option. Anemployee shall
not have right to receive any dividend or to vote orin any manner enjoy the benefits of a shareholder in respect of
option granted to him, till shares are issued to him on exercise of option.

4.3. An Option may be exercised in full orin part, fromtime to time within the applicable Exercise Period (subjectto
expiry of the relevant Minimum Period).




4 4. In order to exercise an Option in whole or in part, the Option Holder must, after expiry of the relevant Minimum
Period and prior to expiry of the relevant Exercise Period, deliver to the Secretary of the Company an Option Notice in
writing specifying the number of Shares in respect of which the Option is being exercised, and deliver a copy of such
Option Notice along with the Option Certificate. Payment for the Option Price relating to the Option or partthereof
being exercised must also be made to the CC, in readily available funds accompanying the Option Notice and/or, in

case Claused.5is applicable, by the Option Holder opting for the Cashless Exercise of Option there under. The date of
delivery of the Option Notice to the Company shall constitute, for all purposes, the date of exercise of such Option.
Each Option Notice shall be given only in such form, and shall be subject to such other requirements and modalities,
as the Company may from time to time prescribe.

4.5. Underthe Cashless System of exercise of Option, the Company may, in its discretion, fund by way of an interest
free advance, up to the entire amount of the relevant Option Price, to the Eligible Empioyees that come within the
scope of the proviso to Section 86 (2) of the Act, The CC may, within ten working days of receipt of an Option Notice
opting for a Cashless Exercise under this Clause4.5, (inits discretion) either refuse the funding of such Option or
make payment (by debiting the ESOS Account of such Eligible Employee) of the relevant portion of Option Price in
respect of which such Eligible Employee has opted for Cashless Exercise under this Clause4.5 (as specified in the
Option Notice).

4 6. As soon as practicable and in any event not more than thirty days after the later to occur of receipt by the Company
of each Option Notice and the payment of the applicable Option Price, the Shares in respect of which the Option has
been exercised shall be allotted by the Company to the Eligible Employee. Employees exercising the option must
have account in CDC and the Shares shall be directly credited through book entries into the respective Central
Depository System (CDS) accounts of allottees maintained with the CDC and the name of such Eligible Employee
shall be entered in the register of members of the Company in respect of the Shares so allotted. The Option Holders,
therefore, must have a CD5 Account at the time of exercising the Option. Provided, however, in case the Eligible
Employee has opted for a Cashless Exercise under Clause4.5 in respect of all or part of such Option Price, the
Company shall have a lien on the Shares allotted there under up to the amounts advanced by the Company under
Clause 4.5, and the Company shall be entitied to sell such number of Shares as are required to repay such amounts
and reduce the debit balance in such Eligible Employee's ESOS Account to nil.

4.7. No Option Holder shall have any right to receive any sort of dividend or to vote in any manner or enjoy the benefits of
a shareholder inrespect of any Option granted to him until Shares are actually issued to him on exercise of the Option
(and thereafter such rights shall be limited only to the extent of the Shares issued to him).

4.8. There is no lock-in period for any Shares allotted and issued to an Option Holder on exercise of his Option, i.e. an
Option Holder shall be free to sell or otherwise dispose of his Shares (subjectto the provisions of Clause4.5, if
applicable). Please refer to Annexure-A—Time Schedule [and mechanism] of the Scheme.

5. Lapse of Options
5.1. The unexercised portion of an Option shall |lapse at the completion of the relevant Exercise Period.

5.2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, upon an Option Holder ceasing to be in Employment for
any reason (including termination of employment for misconduct) other than Retirement or death or permanent
incapacity, only such Options or portion thereof held by him for which the Minimum Period has expired on or prior to
the date of termination / resignation shall remain valid and all other Options or portions of Options shall immediately
lapse thereafter. The Options or portions thereof that remain valid under this Clause5.2 may be exercised any time
up till the expiry of applicable Exercise Period or within the period of nine months from the date of termination/
resignation of the Option Holder, whichever is earlier, and the unexercised Options or portion thereof, if any, shall
lapse thereafter. Provided, however, the Compensation Committee may, inits discretion, extend the permissible

period for exercise of the aforementioned Options beyond the aforementioned period but not, in any case, beyond
the Exercise Period relating to such Option.




5.3. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, upon the Option Holder ceasing to be in Employment by
reason of Retirement or permanent incapacitation, all remaining Options held by him on the date of Retirement or
permanent incapacitation shallimmediately vest in his name (irrespective of the applicable Minimum Period) and
will remain capable of exercise only up till the expiry of applicable Exercise Period or the period of twelve months
from the date of such Retirement / permanent incapacitation, whichever is earlier, and any unexercised portion of
the Option shall lapse thereafter.

5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, upon the death of any Option Holder, all remaining
Options held by him on the date of death shallimmediately vest in the name of his legal heirs (irrespective ofthe
applicable Minimum Periods) and will remain capable of exercise by such legal heirs only up till the expiry of the
applicable Exercise Period or the period of twelve months from the date of death, whichever is earlier, and any
unexercised portion of the Option shall lapse thereafter. Provided however that such legal heirs shall, priorto
exercise ofan Option, be required to show evidence to the Company's satisfaction that they are the only legal heirs
of the deceased Option Holder.

5.5. Upon the lapse of an Option, any outstanding Shares for which the Option was issued and not exercised may be
offered by the CC to other Eligible Employees and shall not be double-counted for the purposes of the Entitiement
Pool.

5.5. Upon the lapse of an Option, any outstanding Shares for which the Option was issued and not exercised may be
offered by the CC to other Eligible Employees and shall not be double-counted for the purposes of the Entitlement
Pool.

6. Calculation of Entitlement

The Board, on recommendation of the CC, shall determine the entitlement to Options of the Eligible Employees in a
meeting to be held within 30 days of the Date of Entitlement.

1. Compliance

7.1. The Scheme shall be administered and implemented in due compliance with law, including without limitation,
applicable provisions of the Act and the Regulations.

7.2. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the Board shall ensure compliance with reguiation 7 of the
Regulations.

7.3. The policy and system for controlling insider trading shall be as follows:

(a) the Company will ensure that each Eligible Employee is provided with a copy of the Scheme prior to grant of any
Option;

() while granting any Option to an Eligible Employee, he/she will be cautioned in writing that all Options granted will
lapse forthwith if the Eligible Employee is found guilty of insider trading;

(c) the Company will provide the Eligible Employee, priorto grant of any Option, with copies of the relevant sections
of law (including any up-dates or amendments thereto) dealing with the prohibition againstinsider trading;

(d) allfrades of the Company's securities by all Option Holders must be reported within five (5) working days to the
Gompany Secretary of the Company;

(e) An Eligible Employee shall neither disclose any inside information to any other person nor make
recommendations nor express opinion on the basis of inside information as to trading in the Company's
securities.

7.4. Without prejudice to the foregoing, the CC may from time to time modify the aforementioned policy or make other
suitable policies and system to ensure that there is no violation of insider trading provisions of Securities Act, 2015
and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act, 1997 or the rules made under these laws.

7.5. “Inside information” and “insider trading” shall have the same meaning as described thereto in the Act, 2015.




1.6. It any Option Holder is found involved in or suspected of insider trading, the Options granted to him but not yet
exercised shall be withdrawn.

8. Expenses

Any expenses of the Company involved in any issue of Shares in the name of any Option Holder shall be payable by
the Company.

9. General

9.1. Any notification or other notice in writing which the Company is required to give, or may desire to give, to any
Eligible Employee or Option Holder (or his legal representative, as the case may be) in pursuance of this Scheme
shall be sufficiently given if delivered to him by hand or sent through postin prepaid cover addressed to the Eligible
Employee or Option Holder at the last address knownto the Company as being his address. Any certificate,
notification or other notice in writing required to be given to the Company or the Secretary of the Company shail be
properly given if sent to or delivered to the registered office of the Company.

§9.2. The Board shall, at all times, keep available for issue such authorized and un-issued Shares as may be required to
meet the subsisting subscription rights of the Option Holders.

9.3. The decision of the CC in any dispute or question relating to any Option shall be final and conclusive, subject to the
written confirmation of the auditors of the Company whenever required in the determination of the break-up value or
fair value of the Shares for the purposes of this Scheme.

9.4. Participation in this Scheme by an Option Holder is a matter entirely separate from any gratuity, provident fund or
pension right or entitlerment he may have and from his terms or conditions of Employment and participation in this
Scheme shallin no respects whatsoever affect in any way an Option Holder's other rights or entittement or terms or
conditions of his Employment. In particular (but without limiting the generality of the foregoing words) any Option
Holder who leaves Employment shall not be entitled to any compensation for any loss of any right or benefit or
prospective right or benefit under this Scheme which he might have otherwise enjoyed whether such

compensation is claimed by way of damages for wrongful dismissal or breach of contract or by way of
compensation

9 5. If a provision of this S5cheme is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable, that shall not affect the legality, validity
or enforceability of any other provision of this Scheme. office or otherwise howsoever.

9.6. In case of a conflict between the provisions of this Scheme and the provisiens of the Act or the Regulations (as the
case may be), the provisions of the Act or Regulations (as the case may be) shall prevail.

9.7. In approving this Scheme, the shareholders ofthe Company shall be deemed to be expressly permitting issuance,
from time o time, of Shares under or pursuant to the Options granted hereunder as shares other than right shares.

10. Maodifications and Alterations:
10.1. Theterms of this Scheme may at any time be modified or altered only in accordance with regulation 7 (1) (viii) of
the Regulations.

10.2. Rights already vested in Option Holders' by the grant of Options cannot be retrospectively altered or modified to
the Option Holders' detriment by any alteration or modification to the Scheme.

11. Termination

11.1. The Board may at any time resolve to terminate this 5cheme in which event no further or new Options shall be
granted, but the provisions of this Scheme shall in relation to Options then subsisting (i.e. options granted and not
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